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BLOCK

Duroply stands at the cusp of
unprecedented growth, redefining its
business and embracing the future
with vigour.

The Company’s profit turnaround
and market expansion highlight

a commitment to innovation and
resilience.

The Company recapitalised its
Balance Sheet, infused net worth and
strengthened liquidity.

These initiatives are expected to do
for the Company more than merely
provide additional resources.

They are expected fo create a
building block that could make all
growth sustainable from this point
onwards.

Enhancing value for all
stakeholders.

wm®

Corporate Overview

PART1

WHAT
WE ARE
AND
WHAT
WE DO

Statutory Report Financial Statements
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Europly respondad
with o decisive inifiatie
axpached o genanote far-
renching implicotions in

FY 23-24

The Company
recapitalsed its Bolonce
Shaat with tha obiechve

i creabe o mulh-year

growth building block

6 | Duroply Industries Limited

PRINCIPAL
MesSAGES OF
THIS ANNUAL

REPORT

The infusion ts sepecied 1o
kelp the Compary sooda
ity proegreisivaly aisad-ligh
madel towards enhanced
walus creation and
buniness susanabiling

wm®

The net worth infusion

will help the Company

leveroge is established
compeiancies mons

affectively

Tha snhoncad Bquidity ks

axpaciad ko unleash iha

value of weicus business
arms thot aperated
garier In constraind

Corporate Overview

OUR PERASONALITY

Dure is not just an enduring plywood
brand in India.

By the virtue of inifiatives underiaken in the
last few years, it has emerged as one of
the most exciting as well.

During the last few years, the brand
has invested with a structured
appreach to enhance visibility and
stakeholder trust.

These initiatives are expected o deepen
the brond's enduring recall: trust, product
infegrity and responsive service,

Statutory Report Financial Statements
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THIS IS WHERE >>
WE COME FROM

Ohar purpose: To ensur ewery hoems in
Inechien ey dduraible woodwerk

Dhar vision: 1o be the most admied
wod-Dased company thesugh
innovation and excellence in customar
SETICE

Owrr mistion: 'Wa aim fo continuousty
inves! in fechnology and in Bunan
resources o bring innovathe and
sustginable products jo cur clients,
rapidly grow our market share, creale
profitable growth in harmong and of
ther same time play o bigger mde in
arnvicnmemal sestainabdity and socal
responsability

Owr promize: Duro uses fhs baat rew
matarial sewcad frem acros tha wadld
All o prochucty ane sushainable ard
promade Pealthy ving.

Chur commitmeni: We oo nol use o

miierials sowced from

» Fanests subject bo unloedied bogging
praclices

v Fanestsd in breack ol Cuslomany of
givil righits

¢ Forash wham conservation volues
am thaeotaned by the manogament’s
oCtivitins

# Farests that are being cormered 1o
cropa o other non-lorest uses

wm®

Cwur eanfarmance: 'We manulocium
I,'II{J:E-CI[."a l:||.-[|::||:~;5 I}Il_ll_.llld {l'-ll;,lhllru_l]
maficnal and inemational reguialeny
benchmarks

= Low formaoldebyde emision products
corforming to B0 and E1 emission nonms

= IS0 8000, 155 140010, OH5A5
18001 carified company

= FRC-corflied

= Member of Indion Green Budlding
Ciouncil

QUR HISTORY

Dwraply Industries Limited was
asbablaubhed o8 Sarda Plywood Industres
Pt Lid. in 1957 funderwent a name
change in December 2018), il niSoled
openliond i iea chest rrtn-rluin:'urlng
in Jeypore, Assam, | commissioned a
raruhacturing bacihty in Rajkot in 1998
The Compary sustsined Bs facus on ksa
processing and plywood manufociuvee
writil 2021, A shrahagic e shcn whrd
made b divest the tea business theough
o sflump sale, =#h e manogement
salecling %o concenfrabe on ihe plewoaod
business

OUR GOVERMANCE

BAr, Alhilesh '-'.'.I'.:‘.l-nr\-g.-: wos oppointed
tamaging Director and Chisf Executive
COfficer from Apell 01, 2024 onwords
With o professional enure exeeding

14 ywars, he benefits from the guidance
o bAr, udenp Chitlangia, I hsodrrron,
who brings more than 34 yeors of
experience fo the business, The oversighi
of the monufocthuring funclion is with

Mir. Abhishek Chilangia, who beings an
aEienancy of more than B years 1o tha
busingeEs

BIG NUMBERS

2000+

Mumber of chormel

Corporate Overview [EESIFIRT o @ NS0y Financial Statements

QUR SUPERIOR QUALITY

The Company manulssiues phreosd
froem presminnm fmbers sourced from
global lorests. RBigorous bessing is
conducted, evaluating the mbers onoss
high physic.-mechanical standands for
sirength, ditbnsss, eppsaance and

boad bearing capacity. The plywood
manutactured by the Company
undergoss chamical ineatment b
enhance dumbility and pes lermiled and
borers)| msiskonce

QOUR TALENT

Az ol March 31, 2024, the Company
comprised o falent of 538 individuols,
gvemging 38 years of oge. The
em|:||nl.'nm. e shilled in woles, |:||1:"-d|n-g.
marketing, monufacturing, finance, legal,
distribution, product dewelopment and
human resouce management, among
oihmrs

COUR DISTRIBUTION
HETWORHK

Tha Company's progucts o marksied
throwgh a 4000+ network of redoil
gutlets, suppored by noflonside dealers
and destribuions

538

Muembar of

QUR DURO EXPERIENCE
CENTER

Tha Dure Espenience Canler, spanning
2000 2. #, in the Natonal Capital
Region affers cusomars a first-hand
RS ENCE al p|'.'wu-u-d ared albed
praducts. |t colem bs architests, mnbaror
designeds, and speciliens, showcosing
a ronge of plywood, bleckboards,
wansers, and doors. In 2023, |:|l.ln:h|.'-3'|.
lounched an Exparience Canber i Euiﬁ-:‘a!.
transdorming the purchose exparance
of vansort, doors, blockhoards, and
phywood

QUR LISTING

The Company is listed on BSE Limibed
and enjoyed o market copliolsation of
r254 85 Crome ot on March 31, 2024

CREDIT RATING

The Company mairtoirs o CARE BRS
Stable long-ferm credit rofing ond

o CARE Ad shor-tarm credit roting
Tha ratings reflect tha intarplay

of exporisnced promolerns, sirong
openational history, enduring brand,
bmodbosed geogrophic presence ond
distribudion nateord

SMploPEEs 0s On
Maech 31, 2024

= Forasty 1hat hove been plamad with
genetcally snglreenad planis

pariran as on
Miarch 31, 2024

450+

nnowative detign

20+

Fure ks el cpeality
sk Bt aoch
with product pedes

Architecss &
Dinsignary argoged
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THIS IS WHERE DURO IS
PRESENT ACROSS INDIA

10 | Duroply Industries Limited

= Agarialo
® Almisdabad

Bangalom
Bhopal
Bhuibaneswaf
Chandigarh
L_henno|
Cinchin
Deheadun
Ghaziabad
Guwahati
Hipeba ksl
Jaipiar

Jameni

The Company is located pon-india.

wm®

* Kolloota

(head office)

(R T

Ludhiana
Murnbai

Mamppur

& v Dathi

[eorporate office)
Paing

Puna

K alpur

Rajkat [Faciony)
Ranchi

s Vijgypreada

Corporate Overview [EESIFIRT o @ NS0y Financial Statements

OUR COMPANY’S
PORTFOLIO

DURO ADVANTAGE

Dwroply has cdubbed fogether @ leatures sought by cusiomerns ond lounched under brond nome “DURC: ADVAMTAGE"

Our company provides a large variety of interior infrastructure products

Frrmshinld Technalaos

PREMIUM PLYWOOD
AND BLOCKBOARD
RANGE

(WITH A LIFETIME
GUARAMNTEE)

Tmanwm  DERBY

RANGE

Anuual Report 2023-24 | 11
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wm®

POPULAR PLYWOOD
RAMNGE

Nicpiarmum  MACPRIME

DECORATIVE
VEMEERS

o wunes DURO TERH

FLUSH DOORS

DURODOOR  TECHPLY'

B I e

e
MLLT:H—* .||I|.\_h.

Corporate Overview [EESIFIRT o @ NS0y Financial Statements

1997 1976

The Campany was-estabhished vndar tha Chslained |3 cardificotion.
o of Sarma Plewood Indusiries Privets
Limited

1964 1986

Commanced commarcial phrecod Ligted an tha BEE a1 o public
prodiction It company

1963 1987

Yenhuring Into door mandocturing, the Lownched Dure Pumoply, o premivm
Company introdueced the ‘Dumnbom” and all-weginar pywood,
Twreloor” bronds.

JOURNEY

OUR MULTI-DECADE

1974 1994

Acknowledged as o public imited The Company entered the vanaer
company, the business mroduced o market with Duro Mobure's
it p-n:-dul:.* lirne nomed Do Teak abgreabure brond

(decorative pleeood),

> > >

EEEEEEELEREEEELEEER TR PP EE PR PR PRI |

Anuual Report 2023-24 | 13
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. DURO

HOW WE HAVE
PERFORMED

19939

Commanced cpenoiions in Rofkot,
L rujarat

2012

Consolidaled enwirormental credenials
Iy obbaining FAC (licence coda
FSCC10B194) and £1 cestifications,

2013

Fioneered the production and
marketing of phywood mada from
Eurﬁp-nnn Besch.

2016

Firit company fo infreduce a lifetima
puarsnise [ram insect inbesiation bor it
fpremiven products.

-

2017

Inguguroted the Duro Exclusive
Exparience Cantra in Mew Dalhi

2018

Renamed as Duroply
Industries Limited.

2021

Introduced 7 inch and 10 inch phpsood
variafies block boards and dears under

the Diura Plus beand,

2022

Raised growth capial of ¥28.03 Crome
fhrough the preferential allobmani o

eglly thared and warronis

>

2023

Lounch of Duro Boeyond
Blisaprints podoost, an nifiole
i uncoeer tha hiddan gems of
Architecture & Design

2024

Introd wced Dunds Advarioge = 9 kayers
ol pmdecion ocross s premium brands

a3 o urigue propastion for disserming
cusiomars wonling the best,

>

LEELEERECEERERRERERELCEREER R C LT LR CE TR Ee

14 | Duroply Industries Limited

ACROSS THE YEARS

REVEMUES
i in Crom)

EBITDA
[T i Lrorm)

181,29 19083 30234 3234

)

t

Fy 21 Frx2 F33 Frld

0.34 6.7 )

=2
]
{er]
]

T
-
]
i

Fr 21 Frx B

Definition
Grrevwih ip revenus nel of i

Why this is measured

B is an index 1hol showooses the
Company's ability ho moxdmise
rewanuns, which provides o basia
against which the Company’s suctess
can be compored with seciorol peers

What this means

H-E!p:. enhdnos intadmes thal, o han,
rakas it possable 1o amadtise or pay for
CE

Volue impaoct

Aggregole rvenves increassd by
&0 3% 0 T804 48 Crom in FY 2354

Definition

Eamings bafore the deduction of
inlerast, dapreciation, exdrecrdinary
iterns ard hax

Why thiz iz measured

It is an index that shorecases the
Company's abiléy to generate o
surplus ofter oplimising operating
costs, providing o bose ke comparison
with secion] paers

What this means

Halps creats o rabust growth surplus-
genanating engine thal enharces
reinvesiment and dabit serdcing
l.ur.u.||.1|||l'|l

Value impoct

The Compamy epored o decline
in EBITDA in FY 2324 due 1o an
increaze in row maberial costs

HET PROFIT
[Tim Ciroem)

P45 (631 523 100

Fr 21 Fr22 23 Frd

Dafinition

Profit earmed during e year ofies
daducting all mpenses and previshony
Why thiz iz measured

It highfights the strength of the
business model in enhancing valise for
sharehoiden

Whai this means

This ensures thal edeguate cosh
avislobls for reivvestment, leading 1o
Basi ik sustanability

Value impoct

The net profit declined on account of
higher row material costs,

Anuual Report 2023-24 | 15
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EBITDA MARGIN ROCE GEARING
(%] (%] {x]
020 3.54 aer & 2 5 053 0.82 047 0.32

b ]
.

E

Fr 2l Y22 F®23 Frad

poooon-
100

Fr21 X 23 Fr

21 22 FY23 B2

Dafinition

EBITOW, margin is o prefiabiling
meaiure b alcaninin o company's
operating efficiancy

‘Why this Iz measured

The ERITDA margin provides an idea
&l howe mivch a COMpQny Sams (bufq-m
gcoounting lor interest, depreciation,
amoriisation and foxes) on eoch rupes
of sales

What this means

This measwe damonsiraies the bufles
in the business, which, whan muliplied
by seake, con potanticlly snhanca the
surpdis

Value impact

The Company reposted o 197 bps
decrease in EBITDA mongin o 3.97%
in FY 23-24 on occount of highar row
mxierial cosis

16 | Duroply Industries Limited

Definition

This is @ financial retie that messums
alficiency with which capital
emplayed in the Company’s business
Why this is measured

RolE is an inssghtful meiric &
COmprs Frufﬂnblllrg,- QCroFs COmpEnhas
based on their respectiva capital
afficiency

What thiz means

Enhonced BolE con potentally dive
waluations and marksl percaphicn
Volue impoct

The Company reporied o P00 bpa
decraase in ReCE in FY 23-24

Definition

This is darived through the rasio of debd
o el worth

Why s this measured?

This is ona of the defining meaiures
of o Company's Bnancial heolih,
indicafing the obilty of the Comgpany
to nsmunanie shorebolders over debl
providess (ihe lower the gearing the
batiar)

What does it mean?

Adds value in the hands of the
sharaholdars by strengthaning tha
Uity sada

Value impact

The Compary's gearing improved
from 0,47 0 0.32 following ncreased
net worth

Corporate Overview

PART 2

Statutory Report Financial Statements
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The big picture at Duraply

Wa stand of the cusp of a seminal change in our forunes

We expect o emangs o3 The fnsiest growing Indian phesood company

W possess o sirolegic clanily on how io foke cur business info fhe next orbl -r

We possass intangible competencies of experdence, brand and relationships

W potsats 0 young manogemant leodership team with o growth appolite

One, wail for realities
to improve in India’s
plywood sector.

There were
two options at

our company
in FY 23-24

»

Two, move ahead of the
indusiry curve. A quick recap of whot we achieved in the last

few years

Wa tumad the Company arcund froem loss o peofit

We evobed from on assel-heowy o asset-light model <
We grEw o second Broneg lor the price-samitive marked s

Wa protected our share in the morkess of cur presence

We widened ond despensd our dalribution network

To redefine aur
business

We
decided...

«

To be ready for the

fituie The last puzzle piece thot we oddressed in FY 23-24

We racognied that o reslrsciuned arganhalion moe rveciodd & L
moopitolised Holanos Sheal

To grow foster than
the il'l-dLl‘S“l'"f' average ‘W feli that with our intent in ploce, what we now needesd wos hmely coplfol infusion
The Compary attracted new long-teim irvastons in FY 23-24

Tha new imvegion confributed 34390 Crorm 1o he Comparny's ned worlh in FY 23-24

This rebalonced the dabl-equity rotic broim 0,43 10 0.32

18 | Duroply Industries Limited Anuual Report 2023-24 | 19
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Why the net worth infusion of FY 23-24 represents a
seminal point in our existence

It completes our thise-yeor strategic business phan
It will strengthen working copital flows
1§ prenades all-round gr~|:r\-.1|' visshality and scolahiay

I8 will armnpower the Company o gron using shamboldsr funds [l
bnrrﬁmﬂgr.]

It Is sapacied to enhance wlume revenwes) cnd volue [monging)

Heow this net worth infusion represents the start of

a virtuous cycle I]I:IH'I‘ g

It will irsnaterm o working capibol-sretched company fowards

anhanced Sguldity
> It will empoewver the Compony o negotiate sffectively for matenals T H E
It will help the Company ineest in the brand, profecting realisalions MANA EM E N Tr
It will ampower the. Company ho oplimise costs and widan margin G S
It will generate o groeing surplus bor reimvestment P E RS P E C T I v E S

This is our vision at Duroply

Procede qur.|||t'|' wood-based solulion: thot ore ruly susioinoble

Demonstmbe excellancs in cushomer service
Susinin continpous innovation ond produect delvery aficlency
Enhancad value for ol stakehodders

Plory o signilicand eale in Indio’s inlrastctiune peeds

20 | Duroply Industries Limited Anuual Report 2023-24 | 21



Youthfulness

Integrofion of younger sanior
lraders ko inject visality inlo tha
orgonisation’s dynamics

@)

Brand investment
Increéasad brand investrment
aimed af strengthening
Duroply's brond visibility and

recognifion

w1
Distribution broadbasing
Broadbasing the dealer netwark and

imglamanting struchured programs 1o
aplinmie aaley sllonmes

Al

Mid-priced segment
Vianduring inbo thie popidly
grareing mid-priced prvood
segmant 1o copitelise on

s rging markat frends

22 | Duroply Industries Limited

Digitalisation
Implamantosion of digital foolks

o enhanca engagemant with
customens and irode partners

E)

Marketing orientation
Transiion from o legocy
manufocining opproach

ho o markel-fecing product
outsourcing snaiagy

&

Geographic de-risking
Explorabon of markets bayond
Porth India b broodan
geographic presence

3¢

Ly

Building twe brands
Daepaning on Investmant in
Dore and Towar beandy io

oodrest diverse consumar
saqmants

(O}

MNet worth infusion:

Opfimising the Balonce Sheet fo enhance net
worth and robe infemal copial for growth

wm®

Automation
Enhanced manufocturing
oistormotican o siregemildinn
ProoRigs mdl.t:lng qu-urﬂ'

mework ond ossocioied expenses

@

Capaci
deboit nrgcing
Imvestment in copacify

debotilenecking ko enhance
production capacity

e

Enhanced voice share
Ineraasad imoesbmerd o nodis,
YouTube and podeasts 1a
esnharce brond recall

.

e

Protecting trade
discipline
Prinritising on fmaly cash
irflows from trode ossociaties,
protacting cesh flows

DUROPLY’S
BUILDING

BLOCK

WHY
ARCHITECTS,
DESIGNERS
AND TRADE
PARTNERS
TRUST OUR
BRANDS

Why architects
and designers
recommend us

Corporate Overview [EENIFIGSa@NGO Financial Statements

Complete
transparency
Duroply believes In

trarsparency ond honows i
commimants, marked by an
opennass ko business

&%

Seamless
execution
Churapdy’s siallad 1eam
anjures hassie-free
axecuEon, consisbently
delrvaring volue thet axcoeds
client sxpectations

Bl

Extensive product
range
Duroply ofess the most
comprehensive selechon
of imnovaiive pheoad,
blockboards, doors and
vengars, erhancing design
posuibilifes

¥

Deep
knowledge
"With over G0 yeors of
EXpARAnoS N SEONRE
oustomens, Duroply
postrsas diylinciive
phwood Indusiny Lm-.--laujg-:—-

Anuual Report 2023-24 | 23



Growth
opportunity
for trade
partners

24 | Duroply Industries Limited

By
o)

@f
et -]

Unparalleled
potential
iy FEarg marked seaks
nigh-parformance plysood
Duro products enablas liode
pariners 1o oddees this
:|E||'|;,:I:{|_ .'||_r||_-:“.'|.|'|i,‘3| FR ]

&

Comprehensive
support team
Dune ensumes continuesus
r|I_|-q_|-'_l SR, -:"lHi‘!Il"l.:| |r_|||-
Tier Bechneto ang m |.'k|-_-'|.|'.;|'.
oesistance o frode portners

Lucrative returns
Tha busnass madel
'}I:I 173 i el |"|l:\l| ilers &

subsigntial refurm on

ekl In Bha Hl!x:!.' |_|||.f

E{:--:g B FTEY

A,
d9.8
Specialized training

Daalers recedva axclussia
fraining, conduchad by
.I'rcf,_l‘1|'|.' TR, .'||1:JI-:;I|'|.'
ard b parsan, o E:Iu:nm;_:
seomless sobes and growth
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REVIEW

OVERVIEW

The big message thal | muwst provide 1o
sharehalders in my maiden address aos
hanaging Direclor is thaol oller decodes
of being in business, the Company
shands of an inflaclion point of climbing
irta R e ekl This may mal be saly
stk by |r_'1:|i-:|r|r_4 salely @t cur fincmcials
o the lasf linencial year, The Company
undertook multiple iniliofives duning fhis
panicd and all these indiotives ore likely
o genamnte o collactine ouleome towarnds
building o sironger company

B weould b necessary o prewida
sharshaldan with o paripedtive of 1he
landscape of our seciar hor tham o
appreciabs the vast growth heod oom

i B !I'_:| 5] L||{|r||J :u,,e Oiars Tl'n-_- ':-du_|||
plvwood sechor 8 valwed of areund

¥222. 3 Bdllion; our company atcounted
bor o mere 1.45% of the sector during
tha year under resies. Duning fhe kst few
years, wa have consistently indicated 1hol
evar il we wera bo mise our share of the
ceganied marke! by a mominal 100 bps
= 5h'=|r|:r|:|:||-l |_1;_|'|.|_--\.-|;| -t |'.|'.1. wire G

THE COMPANY
IS POISED TO
COVER LOST
GROUND

WITH SPEED
CATALYSED BY
THE RECENT
STRENGTHENING
OF ITS BALANCE
SHEET THROUGH
EQUITY
INFUSION

e about in o few VEOFE = i wiidd il
leave us with o considerable eodmom
for susioinabbe growwth

At Diar SR, 1.'||;|n-l:'|ll'.|_lr||:d G
cradentials o address thes wast and
Qeowing hegdroam ¢E.-r-r-;_.1 the last l'_".'-..ll'.'ll:
of yeara, The Company went through a
SANHC manage Tl :|1.\_.J.||n:\-I ||-||:r|:- bairh

a greater [ocus on brand building, the
Company rabslonced ds parsanality fram
q.q:-:l'-p!e'f raniulacture o progiaisng
assal-light sutsaurcing and heme was a
deaper penetrofion across the maorkools of
tocuss. Mons |mp|_'|r||;|r"|.,'. 1 |-_r||—|F|n|_-|'\-'.'
enobilised griwth capital in the iest
il |_;-'. 1A I|;,;||1.||_|r|.-:|_|!||_|r. = g_.\_r_-ll_l:u.'-;-
business growih,

This IS TREEE o AL fand l'FII"IE: CK
i the Botiombine et out a messa e
fhat the Company hod cvercome fhe
'*:!"-'I!'-'I"‘:\j'::' ol thei eiES! ond Wi potsed o
ambark on e susloinabla l:_|r|:|'n-!'| AT

The perdormance of the last inancial
yoar was relatively muled with fhe
Lompany, This performance rpreserns
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o

| can assure shareholders
that the future is bright
with the Company

poised to grow rapidly,
improve its profit margins,
bring better returns fo

all stakeholders, and
more importantly, play

a large part in India’s
infrastructure growth story.

26 | Duroply Industries Limited

a weiback and an |l pr e e

our greredh [oumsy; hoeeser, our

e M T il minved willy goeed du'lr'll;
thie yuar ta oddmes multgle inhesant

L ITel] .l_'ﬂE.‘_':. “I'l'LI'. norsy r_l'l'l:l'.'.dl_': us 1l.'|||'|
the foundation for o multi-pesr growth

[ELAnEy

Thim princhea eason loe e eliobae
|.~'||_||_'-'--|'_-r_'-:'i|'_|||r":|:||'\{l_' |,".'.|r|| 'ﬂ ri:|_1 |-;,|-_.|
fimancial vear was an nodegqualely
copitolised Holance Sheet. [ha 728
Cromg that had been mobilised wos
suillably allocobed towards “""":""lli.b
copital, capaciy debotlemnscki w3 G
oaset modamisatian. This srengthaned
parformance quexdty over the lost couple
of years but once the headroom hod
ln_lE'!l |:|:|||:.|_l|"||h_| [Eitighe Raili] .=.I'i|r||_||:I|

DT i RDn O OUF d 0 a, Qi |:I|||:“m'1'l
||&|_|m' i+ plq',ilr:-\.;.l.l I8 Wl envigani :J.l.rll'l::i
e et Tinarecial [ )

The manogement af Dureply mcoognised
thot with mostly oll the pieces falling inta
proce, the only big pece walling 1o be
insarted was that of financial lguidity
Ihe Company nesded o spcond roursd
ol i-\.-l'.-:lnn-:] thad would provide odegquate
growwth copilal o groduwale the Company
indo the neat level, This recognition

was underscored by the foct thot the
Chire and Tower bronds pedormed
creditably In:-:|:|||:-||f-r.| later in the repor),
the Company occounded for visible and
leading market shares in prominent
naSoncl markets, the distributicn
paetners remoined loyal ond ganerated
increased ofake, Virwelly eventhing
thot we hod plonned wos In ploce encapt
for the finoncial gunpowder o creohe g
strong building block

Yaur company oddressad thas c"u||1:|'-:J-e
al bevty levels |J|.'|-|U._| thie ot [inancial
year, The Company mode a peivale
plocement of eguilty shames ot T203 per
share jo kong-berm investors who share
our vithon; This tranalafed indo an equity

wm®

dilution of 7 -:--'Ilr}C-I whieh shall mederate
ihe promoters’ shake from &2.47% o
55.01%. When consolidatad, Bhes
1 pa e "|d|cule G ne ':g.'r;.u'llll waill
b obla 1o fund res malessl purchapas
=] 'E'\-'\-:jl:]l'-l WY B |:|: oy FRAERITT &
atiraciively yaar-on-year, anhance
riarging. oy 400 bpa aver time, suitobdy
udilise the aphanced cash Hlows 1o
[ ket ] r|r'|:| !,'l.,|||r_| LI I0F 1'||||.|'-|'-ﬂ-'!l;':
verhue, 'Wa balisve that this approach
- mobilisofion, prodent deployment,
rasource oodl modaration, cash Tlow
reirvestment and superics value creation
represents o nesponsble oporoach o
I:'u'.:;-:-p m bl rees suatainabiling

Al Dyroply, we one iIncreasingly
convanced that o rabus? Bolonce Shisst
- |".'||";||'i| |:|_| |'i:| |,'||:..1_||."l'|' hl:ll:l_'l-'r'l"'l:_'. e
cosd of sioying in business ond o business
largaly drivan by s kinefic momanium
— will e tha ossat thal makes all the
wifver Irewdoms ond ochssvement o
el |'|| W aiar r||-;'||'|{:|._;|;|r":'rn" b ] 'j.l_':_[l_'|_| ol
this pricrity and ewargthing fhat we peak
o achisve [os exploined in the loter
pogas of this repart) will ba directed o
|_l|'||'||.'|||{| I'-\.'-l [+ 11§ {lu;ll’l.l" '!:,i.:\_..ll By

The Company is poised fo grow mopidly,
improwe its profit manging, genenabe
bstter retums o sokeholders, and more
impofantly, phoy a larger port in india’s
infrestrachure grosmth shory

The kiture is bright and vwe are prepared

Akhilesh Chitlangia
Manoging Direclor and Chasl Executive

Oiificar
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PART 4

A
QUESTION
OF
ANSWERS

A sequence of answers
to all the questions that
stakeholders would
have liked to ask the
management on ifs
performance and prospects

28 | Duroply Industries Limited
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Q: At the end of the financial year,
the Company infused net wort
following the issuance of equity shares
and warrants on a preferential basis.
How will this net worth infusion be
allocated ¢ What attracted these new

investors?

Az The Company os g sfnuchured
¥
approach ks how B inlends fo deplay ihis

et ‘woin

Iy principal allocotion of this 743,90
Crom mobilisofsion will ba i the
Lompary™s working copiial. This wil
enande botlar procurement larms and
heodioom ke substonfial revenue growih
woding o Righer margirs folkeving o
battar omartisation of our fived cosls

The deployment of odditional resources
fi cophal mamdgemen! & r:-:pnc'ed jix]
trenziomm the Company's inanciols. Tha
pricrity could kickstart a virvous oycle o
e proporfion of resources available
lar working copital manogemant would
ba available fram our samings (hence
e cosl], enhancing our cash o
sstainability

Thi rismws A alf IFRSEHTE, .'|'|-,' BT
mpressad by ke following credenfials

uﬂ. thasts Wi O ||.'I-'||||||I|I-|' with e
manogement since Duroply is o &8:peor
company. This validated the foct that the
Compary Is rot Hy-by-night ond that,
coming with this extended endurance,

1 pOEREESas Ihd Copaciny o withsiand
market cycles

Twng, th inrvesiors browghd inko the ElE numHEHE

ovarall scope af the sacior. Indio
consumas bess than 10% of tha plysood
::’-I'.!u,.'l""li'_lj ] fl: 415} while |r'||_|||| [+ 47 114151
ofr O h-{;':-:u F_n_:\-|_:|,.|::||||||'| This iedicabos

an exdensive under-consumplion of wood E 1 D
paneds in India. The imvesiors heal thot ™
recdien 13 at tha cusp of @ long-term growth Wiaring cogial

twrne, Y 23-24

curvd, framilating mbo increcssd homea
;,.l-'rl'l_ll',h 2] |'_||1:J 'r||:|-l'r'||;| |.-'r|_||"l::|'|:';|l -n'|:|-\.;l!
hould randate nka g I-':'l'_il'--' x'_lf'\-‘ﬂ.l':"ﬂﬁ 1 1 .36
Consumplion Wordking copiial

] Ff o L
Three, the invesiors fociored the vost hums, FY 22.23

heodroom available for the Comparry
Thay felt thot thene wos o vost mbsmaoich
bobwwen the strmngih of cur beonds [Dwo
and Tower] and our revenues. They leh
1 the Digges! ossst of the Lompany

= ity bronds = could easily shoulder o
arger soles throughpit

Feur, during tha last fhree years,

fhea TR S | had chigved what
mias felt wos difficult = turned the
Company around from boss o prolil
Iveastors realsed thal the bump had
been cvercome and B was now cnly o
fyuaEaFisn o 5 u|-'l[.| 1he DUt s, whizh
\heir copiiol infusion would boecilils

How we intend to transform our working capital management

Cash Poy macusce
mabilisation 1o vendars

be albocoted sebectivel;
torwerds suparior upfront

woaking copital
rac g e |

30 | Duroply Industries Limited

Capitaleses SEFAE the Erhance the Erance valwme
of affractive } ereditars’ epcla } araailability of " G marging
MESOUMTS and atiroc compeatitreahy

arbilroge vendor loyalty peiced row

apportumies msgbacial
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Q: Does the management have a
structured plan to transform one-off
profitability into medium-term or long-

term sustainability®

B Yes, A the hoort of this struchured
approach ez o mCogndtion hat oosh
b trected s a alical miaurce F-H,:-I @
:j.:l.:.-h P SO ity i-ial:l |--"-"-5'L':r .L. 1
a5 0 company will nurse o rmasenabls
mrranécry of mre maleriod, thare is now
an urgant reguiremant fo balld @ cazh
corpus fhat lubrcotes he Fy¥lam and
wereicns tha Immaediatn noods of al
-.I-'|L-'i|'rc‘\-:-"!'-| !

Ihe Company launched a s-gmilccn'
nifiotive iowonds the loter port of the losi
fimmncial vaar when it mobilised 743 90
Crom through on issuve of prelerential
Equity shares and corsartible warnsnlbs
ol o price of T203 each. Wa believe that
this inflow will provida the Company

wilh the necessany copitol o build the
busingss for the net round of growth

This carpus will arhanes ower liquidity,
Strac! e, makea i |:u'.".-1.||:h|e e rihaun
walent, inves! im brond visibiley ond aswre
tnade pariners thot we will supply ondime
ond in-full

Wa foreseds 1had starfing from e cumant
timancial waar, the Company witl by o
"'H.llla-'lr_li:. (L] ::.l.-w:ll el i rll'hl.‘l'ﬁ-l,’.

for timaly ramunerotion, prodecs)
oudsource o lorger quanity of hinished
products, service dealens with enhonced
pradictability, sall moe and taster by
capialis fig (gt 1:-«:5-51I- af ity bBramnds
ul'l_i inaET il :.|_l|1::,_|' il I|‘||_I |_||,. SIrHIEd
pooaiaroding the viruous oyca

We beligve that wigh the infusicn of net

woith, the lost gop bos been plugged
ond we hove created ke foundafion

i grover o company for the nexd e
poars. 'We see all the growth genemisd
trom This point coscoding 10 enhanced
shorsholder value

The Company’s prospects were validated
i_1_- Ii'..: pahént |Qn.\_-_.ll_l-rrr| |;|_1|_'|!|;|| L,l-‘,:--_ g|1!
in by the new shaeholders, "“-'lF'""i:" -lr_.||'-‘-
size 1he Balancs Shest and fdkdng e
Compary growih-ready from FY 24-25
|:||'.'.-|ur|;|:.

wm@

BIG NUMBERS

43.90

¥ Crors, copsial
mfusan i FY 2374

25

%% af nal worth

gaditon ko The tolgl
rapinl employsd in
1P i

30

"o &l nal Wil
andelibewn b Hhas fatal

il i -r-"||.'||.'|'|.'\-'_' T

et Bertorais

How we foresee the net worth infusion transforming the Company

Mt wiosih Maf worth fight-

MO > siped around o
J-year business
plan
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IMIGERSES
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LU PRTIOF S OHHOHTNER
@Cross wvary business
functior
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Q: What is that one distinctive shift
in the Company’s approach with the
objective to enhance profitability?

B One of the dacisive calls that wa
1ok durirg the au limencial pear wa o
|'.-\.'||:l:'J:||n|__:|:| aUlssUneE B r||-:|r||l:||f"l.|"|':
it |1E_-w|r|'h'| r|rr||'|-'—"\. We higva |'|-'\-r||||'.
doing so acros vendors with under-
ulilmed CAREE]Es i ha -_.|-.--.v7-r1;:-lue->

;_:-| GUF pidid RN Ti'\.'!. il |:-rl||;l|nl_ h-l_llh

i e e |_':||';,.|'|{-|_-d .'|_||:||'.;\.; P el igr] Iq_ll
S 8 |F'|||||P-'1. ard o bty :u'.'ﬁ'l'l:__lli ol
o brends

Ihe mamsagement must ossure
stakeholders of the responsible nature
of the ermangomaent, | he Compaony
oiMsounces monsiacturing only to those
vondors who ore within fre counbry's
cmganised syslem, poy their lokes,
comply with responsible monulochuring
guidelines and helicw guality prochices
Ihe Company deapenad s relofionships
wfih hese suppliers during e losi

N nchad vear, wire t TR Capei mhiad
wirfually oy on exlension of fhe
Compamy’s mamfochuring premises

La0ing ahead, fhese responsible
oulsourcing armmngements will be
increased. The proporiion of evenues
derived from oubourced manufocivre

will ncresse, The Baturn on Gross
El-l'_li'!. ! ||L::_: o i T|1|_- I_-:}rl'.;r_lrw walll
i '!i:-l_- 'i|-3'::||.'|:||"'|l 10 Bapy MO
T aflitferemt elberricmed i Treaers S
dupersed manubocturing lecolions,
mr-dr_!rrrhn__q '-'_\-t',‘.-sllq oty on the one
|-|||-||'_| el 1-|'|'.|'|F.I-'||_| IiEE-1G-F '||'||'i.:|!¢r [+ ]
iy witbsar

Ihis arrongement anjoys o longs

heaad nopamu; the phywood indusiry s
soddled with mxcess manufocturing
copocity, This is likely fo tronslate inlo
attroctive telling or manulochuring
copacity isasing rmoies, benatiting growin
huingry componies like ours, Bosides,
such omangements ore lksly 1o modemte
our copifal spending and shiftt the needls
ol our investmants towards supesicd
waorking copital managemant

The increased proporfion of aur
revenues being derbved from responsible
outsaurcing is likely o strengiben

our revenues, Fill redail shielves losher,
strengthan our service orientafion,
enbanca our Mmool responsiveness and
widen our margins

wm@

BIG NUMBERS

28.74

% of revenis daread

g gty ed

I_.-'I.'H.r*'l'll.'lrlﬁ

ermangements, FY 21-23

k-

How responsible outsourcing can fransform the Company’s financials

39.29

o of revenues danvesd
from oot red
maanufacharing

errancenenis, FY 7374

Reduce 1he Erihance Flexibility
Company’s fued o source from
ossal invaskmanis ,‘ wandon who

CFCHI S SRS R

walus
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tmpower 1ha Transter costs fram

Lompany fo select tha Balonce Shieal
b' vandors from } bo the Profit & Loss

regions of growing HAccount

demand

Liberate funds

| Ln] |l|!'-l.‘||:[||d'||!|J
} in supsarior

working capital

management
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Q: How did the Company’s brands
perform in FY 23-24¢

i The bég message that we seak to send
i 12 gl |,]|-'E||_|-Il:\l O |l::-ﬁ|¢l| =1l ..'\.:‘:...,:l:d
;\j'l.:-l'-'.rl ;,::,_.rln'l[j L0 ] |¢ﬁ1 'i.llq;.l:r'ul.ﬂ Wi,
thea hectth of cur bronds continued 1o
b protocted ond the mubed growth was
ne due tor g wegkoness in our beonds
Dl Dy O ghs el o K :.||'||“!|| l:l!;.l.'-cll
|"-|'-|,| g e :|:':\_|.:.||'|:'.i:r T Pl:d_llj by = LE=TET
brand siralegy conbtinues 1o be sirong
and leods our recall ooross The morkets
of cur presence and wolting for the
it I-|| Gap IS e lllvljl.‘l':l:]

These ame some of the strengths of

our brand strategy: cne, our Ragship
brand Dueo comies the recall of the
gocodes, marked by credibility, longesity
ond produch quolity; two, our brand
opprooch comprises bao bronds

Duro and Tower = oddmssing diffenent
phywnood price ranges and cusiomer sl
[harses for CoUrsRs); Brese, our Dranos
oo mot nped indansive imsesimant ard
ther rerturn on brond spemnding has bean
attrective. |ho resull B Shat owr brong
spending effectiveness - every rupes

ol reverue dertved from every rupes of
prand invesiment = resmoined afoctva
during the year under revies

Cur Dure brand sustoined it presemncs
aonoss The premium and super-premium
CORSUITHET SEqmiss which olhereise
was affected by the shiggishness in the
natonal pewood space durdng ihe las!
Ill'.:'l"_ll:ll 'l'ﬂ:qr r._:l' ) Ii:i'ﬁ'f" .rrql'h'] Fll o .'I"'u.
1o ba an outperdormer: the proportion o
our lohal revenues derved from Tower
ncreased from 14.8% to 19.4% in

FY 23-24, Tewnr solas Increased 40.56%
i FY 2324

Tower oddrassod the entry-lewel
consumer. This seqmenrd has besn
omong the Tosles! growing within the
SOUSY § p'.rtm:'ad Sp00E I Me last fisw
years, largety bacouss n.lr-d:-'gun-:-td
plorpers hove reduced their csposure fo
this segment and this spoce is now being
occypied by oganised branded players
like Dhura, The growth of this segmeant
wai cotolysed by o growth in personal
nicgemes, widened home finencing
network ond sustained gowermment
neanitves lor affordable housing

Ti‘m Hiar l_;qd'—_'llll-_l-:'l |r_.r|;-:|.|:|||! falgledd 1o

'|'|-I: Tl fii- |_'.:ur||_‘| a upr;||_1:_|'. profsciad

recall elarty, salience and preveried

w1 pyl |;|u||-u-|‘ G :Ji-!.ll::F1. thias !.HJ'HJ“'! u )]
made il possible for the creation

ol dedated leaims wilh Fed s inee

brond spending budgsts, enbancing
accousnbakbility.

A significont pordion of the Company's
berand bailding wos ollocated o

il r'||.'\-|l|||:|'| irCa el s arnd lIII-Ei;:-\.j!_I.'H_I'Il'a_
IM-F1CE Ol QLT-Cf - F006Nh I_'\-'l_lll:l'l-]__

B ke ing trachs wsibility, and 'j"_i'l“l

i ripr Lty ]
L

Soing ahoeod, we mped lower's
groswth 1o be sushoined on ocoount of

o struchaml shil within the mid-priced
prywood segmeni, codupled with chonnel
partner nefwork expansion, groduating
ihe brond from the regiconal 1o the 1onal

What makes Duro distinctive acrass the counter

Crimranies from insect inlesiaion, mnging from 10 years 1o Metimes

Ja Money Bock Promise ocnces the product rongs

Inclia’s lint company te morket 10 leet plywood langth, boards and door

Triple Heot Treotmend in manufociure, enbancing product supesiorisy

GIF coda-based unique sdentioation o prevent fraud

How we strengthened our brands

wm@

BI6 NUMBERS

13.91

¥ Crora, brond
spsemding m FY 23-24

12.46

P Crprn, buand

Epsratifig a P 2223

19.4

% ol faaniiend o Hvad
fran Towas, FY 23-24

14.8

% of revenues denved

from Tower, FY 22-23

40.6

% prowah rom tha
Tovwenr brand, FF 2324

534

% growih rom tha
Tower brand. FY 22.23

Corporate Overview

e ucnd Emphaisoed
ik el ;’,‘n’_urﬂ'. > G B PR
:".\_Il .:J:'lle:elﬂ '.-|_|||_||=
prcsdiict BRODONTON
DO IR
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[ prizenvecd Mlaheed

|E'|:|'||| |i|||'|_:'||'i o pak ""_I
guotity, price and products, feature
langevity o leafire

E.l,.':.ll_u"ll"'-;,! |_.I-:'|'||_I

} ipending

roads

E-::;:..-:;:.-.._ﬂ Ty
r-nﬁ:'il hrlll'rc't'j.l 1
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Q: How is the Company emerging
younger in mindset, method and

meansé

Aj: The |.|;||-||;|r_||-|" MECO]FiSng !I‘Irjl iR
winaing brands in a compeditive wardd
e imevitably 1hase thal are mmbla,
FouUng and rEapondive

-_'-|;,.l|-""|__'| thie bt herw years, the Company
-|'h":-;"ﬁ:|l.|:|h|$ ] :I‘:I"IIJI:. :II imihate 1o
anhance youthiulress,

The Company enhonced is presence on
th social modio through Dung T on
YouTube and o smort plypsocd buying
guidebook

The Campany widened its prodect
posiiolic 1o customized salutions for
pramium fumiture manulodunars

'I'rn-p_- |:‘:|3r|:|_3||'_||'|,' r||||_||:||_|'_' Ed I|'|'= -|_','_1|IE'|h||_'|
inxtured vamear panals collachion,
compraing five diverss bextures and over
35 unique products. Hi-Res Venessrs

fram Dure Mature’s Signatene affer o
30 1ouch and fesl, adending the neal
exience of wood 1o inkerion

The Companys Dues Advanioge
pramium produc provides value o
dr!..;'-e-'-::r:g homa buyars wha are not
willimg to compromise

Chira Beyond Blueprints oddresses the
desagn innowvation neods of archilects
ond designers

These Inftiatives have randlated inte a
distinctien irasction for the Company’s
products, which should start translating
ta the topline and botomline follewang
enhanced working capital availobility

How we have enhanced youthfulness at our company

wm®

OUR QUALITY ASSURANCES AND
CeRTIFICATIONS

Lifetime guarantes: 'We provide o
Lifetima Product Guaranies ogainst
inlasiation with o 3x money back
ESUITITICR

FSC cartification: Cur limber i
FSC.cartibied, indicating that it is
sourced susiainably from forests with
no defaretiation. We engoge with lacal
officers to ensure the regpdwth af frees
and minimize long-ferm envinmen
darmogpe

IGBC mambership: We are membery
of ihe Indian Gresn Bullding Council
[BGECY, that prodmstas grEEn cansinciion
5] :'II'_III_I F'i,-w-}.:u_l 1k I|'-|:l iaial ‘-q,:-ﬁ.-j"
wslainable and envirenmenially Triendly
PSR Wi rl-uq..nrrnue- e wes ad

BT LI".II'.EIIII'_I"" FHar I||||_|| ';"llJ NS

renewable ok waod

ECr certificotion; We weme omong the
first fww bronded companies o offer EQ
carditicotion cr (ARE carihcofion. We
preduce EQ products with. peng hanmitul
chemicols, proteciing consumer health

Orther initiatives: Plpwood is twice mone
aflicient than raw timbar, maximizsing
ililisation ond reducing timber wosioge
W abildin teice the yald from e same
tirnber compared o row limbes

Wia regenardie imber fo balancs
BT .|n:|'|1|'|||'_|| Pl i :;lld ||-,| IELd
oS,

1 Company The Compary
raviewed all nveshed in
prochices in fhe kot > progressive
bowor s digitolisaotion
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There has been

Ve enhonceg

> o griater respact } youthfulness hos oftrocted

for dalo-bosed

o new gensrotion of eco.

decizion making sysiem paringrs
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Q: What is the one feature of the
Company's FY 23-24 performance that
shareholders are likely to miss?

Az The outparformance of our Towar
brand i ome feature that enbanced the
raspaciability of aur publishad numbers
afl FY 23-24

r._||!.,"'h|r:!_| na :|':¢n|'_|l..-|_’.":-:}r| ol {__.IF.'| FSHELR
yoeors ogo, thare wos o growing mealing
that tha shadow aconomy would yiedd
groand to e orgonised sachor, The
TR '|-|._. lovwaT lox streciung -'r;_'-ll:l
anbance e coamipa il ralrdg {f tha
|:u-§'i-_:m1.-|:|u .::-!-u'l it 'Fhl:ll'l SO Gl Wil
thar unoeganised ployers who paikd no ios
ol gll. Even though the unomanised cos
srucliirs waoy ::5- Pl il |:\_|.d||'|_l|'I 'i'll_l'l-l
il O -g\_::’{‘"\.-. fig] i |:'|'||1|||I_'|r'| 'ill_lr Liglih Lo
H.f_"l.\llla_l |_||_| =] |::-n.f_-| |1||'_||1|-"_-'.'--'Ir|;_| IO r|:|r
ikspry i o 1|§':|I'\.1--r||l'\-5\.'r TEIE B e asfin

Ihis is precisely what has fronsp red |n
tha lost few yoars, As the diffsrential
batwmen e cmonised ond unoganised
plarpers declined, thare was o grovwing
consumer moognition shal the price
walue propostion hod shibled. B wos now
e longer prudent 1o ey thes e s
procuct becouse with only 0 reosonobde
Incracss in price the conswmer oould

40 | Duroply Industries Limited

-i_.":||'|-\.||:|'|3- B O Ih'l'll.{]al'.l i'"':"-l"'“ |'|::-': kel

|-'|. aaidd '||||'..';! re s i i g e

Diuring th lost few years, this theony
l'ﬁ_:uul": i teanglate nko ||_F.|||-'.I Then
aiferdable howsing finance segment

of tha countny grew following the
gowamemsant's infarest subvention schama
This cotalysed the offfoke of plyweod os

1hsi Pl il :.'.Jl_'l'\-"l’l!-l_l .;,.l'l'llil_l: t. Tt o Tl T

I8 thal tha !'I-!I:r-:-l"h'l:l |||m¢-¢-'| :.1_'\-:3|r||"'r||
hos grown boster In percarioge: fenms
thiEn any othar segmant

This ransformasion has influenced the
revenug mix of the Company as well
The Tower brand of the Compary

- oddresses the lower end segment -
outperformed the percemioge growth
of the volue-odded Diurg brand during
ths yoar under review, Toeer offfoks
jurped 40.6%. For a brond that was
re-launched o few pears ogo, Tower has
grovan from scroich and is expacted i
repor o = ;',-'lu"-\:nr" ¥ Improved hamover
ini tha curmen! yeor ond Smengs a3, o
sizoble revenoe driver in five years

wm@
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Q: How is the Company responding

to the Great India
Story?

onsumption

.l.l "li} -c|{l-:'|'§.:.i_l 1L A=l |__.:|."|:.l:|'|l"\.
fipnid ¥ b Gl-l::ll |l'.-c|-c|r|
Conmsumplion Story & a moognition

thod wihat worked tn the post wewld

nad weoirk In the huture. bn view of 1his.

'i'\.-l:l ':__I}ﬁlb'l{.ll"'.'p i‘:rll!'llrh‘_ _5 15 ts] |‘||:|||1.'||'
'||::"'.||'H|."||_;|I||_|-||_ |:||,J|:]'|I_':..'.||'\-§ '.-||1||;,J:|| Ul
SR ] r:‘l )] |w|~|m-|hr~,-

Une, the L ompany mdnvented

dsell o5 o youthful player in India's
phwood industry, reflecied in its brond
positioning, promation ond produd
rrediln

T'-r.-n. the fmrlpur-'. (1 Lol e dig el
ther promater monogemen| with the
nircduction of the younger ganeration,

Ti'kr"ﬂ. he f:{"\-'l'\-rh'll'l:f =d"\.'\-'\lr|||:‘|le'|| ||||n'!'|,l|n
madia [social] 1o reoch prospeciive
;.l.ll'-_h:r_.!_' |||!|.\,l|-_l'|l LHE]

Fowr, the Company is widening its
rresenca beyond its traditional Morth
Inddicy sfronghold fo capitalise on svalving
consumer ond geogrophic segmwents

Frve, the Compony enhanced brond
nwvestments = physical ond digitol - os o
deiver of prospeciive offiake, crealing o

muliplier afect,

Siﬂ_, LUt '._:'II.'I:II'JI"|I 1§ ||I:.'I!|I'I|':I.'III'.-'J ;'.}rl'
o manulochuring-driven approoch o g
manufacturing cum oulssurcing steoiegy,
anhancing businass soolobdiy that will
maka it possible 1o sendos growing
:'.-|'l|1'||_||rq,."

Sevan, the Company commissioned
Exparience Lenters in Delhi ond Eajkot,
translorming M Consmar expenence on
flwe oo hard ond enhancing its brond
contemparariness on the other

E-|-n|"|.1r .'|'e '::-l_"-l.'h':‘-':l'.'r I.J.'\-I'hPIEI'F-l_'I'h'Ed i
ongtiandang premium Dun brond with
Tavwss that addredied tha mad |:ru'.-HJ
segpint, broodbasing s releance
:rl:ll'l Ii'e oy pmnl o "ha ;,:.'.:-rril_.lr. -
somplete consumer joumey. Besides,
it choice cum awailability of praducts
acEd Ineredsed price pobfirs enhanced
afferdability and prospects of convesfing
an engquiry into sale

The enhanced youtrlulmess of the
Compary - the biggest iranslormation

of then kst Tew WTE — |8 I-:'l|_l'_':.:l.'l'.| e
anlance consurmnar mecall, produet

=l 1) ;,"'rl-lll]lrl-l-:! g :ll'_l'n.-P -\:;l'r| [=]
':-_-h‘-l?n'luJ af e B - BT I s o

busineis. susiainakbdli

wm@

BIG NUMBERS

80.6

% al revbras fram

tha gegvnmsin grinnt
FY 2324

19.4

% ol revmnues from the
i revoricat segmant,
Y P

How we have enhanced our relevance to the sweeping consumer change in India

I Company drow I s reimaogination I his relmogination Thass abribubes one This mirmention
oul O programmae COWRTS @y Is ernhancing aftracfing o new halped the

o reimogine s } ospect ol he > the Lompony™s , gEnsnation al seo- ’ Lipamipany mobilise
parsonality Lompony youthiulness and syatem poriners precisus growth
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FEEpOMEYENEis

copital in FY 23-24

Corporate Overview
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Q: Why is the Company optimistic

about its sector an

business?

Ai The Commgrary |3 optimisiic of B
secior on account of the extensive
headream avallable fae groesh

Incha’s plywesd manulochunng volume (s
one-reanBieth of China, This gap is Bealy
i decline o8 a number of counrias seek
wood parel supply chains oway from
Ching, Sama of this demand could come
o Il cowpled with ferelgn Irvestment
that could make [ndio an esgodts hub in
addiion ko addressing its rich desmestic
comumptien pabantial

There am cfher Indian odvontages. indio
i5 land-gbundont; Indio s the second
lorges agricullural scanomy, the wardd’s
sEvenniin r-prgu-.:r nafion h'.- land arsa

and tha fifth lorgest aconomy, Indion
talent cost i considerobly lower than in
an Inflaficnary China; aulomation has
anhonoed Indian peaductivity in the last
T yarg; wood pamnel phoducts am
baing mpceind

From o directionsl perspectie, the Indian

govarmment is supporing the growth of
the wood panal sacior, transhafing into

enbanced lorm ncomes of one leval
[Erbar plarbation provides ona of the
mast remunea g farm | libsncdie] @
addrassing home buildng requinements
ol the other. Besides, enhonced plywood
manubaciuning copocity is especied jo
strengfhen Indio's competitiveness and
emergence as a depandable exparter.

I India ewan cabches i fractionally with
Ching's capocity, the outcome could be
a significant Indian muli.yeor phpsood
gmrn"i'r Shoary.

Bagidas, the timber plantation sagment
will find increasing govarmiment supgso
@8 o noscent bee enjoys high carkon
secpuesfralion and is contidened pasitive
far the ervirenmand

The complement of these realitas
inelicatas that prospacts of ihe esource
and downsiraam weed panel secor
mimain cpfimistc inle tha long-ferm,
berwfiting serious long-term ployers like
Charoiply

wm®

Plywoed sitting on a favourable long-term Indian growth story

Fundamantal to intaniors Economies of ool 'i":".dﬂ-r'mg rezoiirce bows Rising long-ferm resource
consiraction > emarging ocross the volue } on acccamt of plansofion > sacLriby
chain BCONCATICS
W
Emfry of Intemational Increasad movamend Rising demand within Platform for axports and
tamiture brands o market ‘ towards mody-1o-buy { India to creals a { domasiic consumplicn
codalysl furmiiysa consumar plll sarvicing

44 | Duroply Industries Limited
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OUR
COMA_/I\_gMENT
GOVERNANCE

AND VALUE-
CREATION

Anuual Report 2023-24 | 45



.

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE (ESG)

Our objective is to build a responsible, profitable and
sustainable business

OVERVIEW

A Duraply, we are
committed fo aligning
sushainabiliby with

Environmental focws: Businesses musi
pricrifise :u:r-:ﬂghﬂir"l oy oplimising
resource use, recychng, reducing hossil
fuel relionce, oddessing climate rsks,

respansib ity and and minimizing our carbon foofprin
refitability. Ouwr E5C
gpprnncll'llwmn:suh'lﬂ Cocial commitmant: Bidlrese

meed ko irmvest in people, fodlera
potifive anganisational eulfure, nuue

cushcmer relatianships, and fullill our
poncie] remponsibilities.

our dedicafion 1o
canscious, athical,
and inclusive business
prociices,

Governance guidelines; Businesses
reeds o pricritise responsible conduct,
sirategic clarity, ethical volues, o
balanced Board compasiticn, and
aligrement with the United Mations
Global Compoct (UNGC,

wm®

ESG MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

We periodically conduect E5G
maderiality axsessmanty bo prioritise
Ezues cruciad o our takeholders,
emuring our E3G shategy evolves wilh
global dynamics,

ENTERPRISE RISK
MAMAGEMENT

Owr onnual process covers ESG,
sirotegic, finoncial, oparotional,
kagal, regulatory, human copital, and
hazord risks; enabling effective risk
maEnagement

ESG STRATEGY

Chur E5G steategy focuses on hoalthy
g and commundty suppon,
emdnsamenial sesamnbhip, and
respanstible sourcing, creating value
through socially responsible precices.

QOur
Environmental
commitment

A Duroply, wi emphasise reducing
material and resource consumpticn,
abgning with the LIN's Sustaingble
Development Goals. O initiotives
inchide collaborafing across
dievstopmant, manuecturing, ond
operations for emdronmental complonce

and strategy. VW haw implamanted
rigorous risk mitigation measunes,
ambifiows lomgets, performance
maoniforing, and cngaing improvement.
Chur focus s on reducing fresheaer
consumption ond oclively managing
waber impocts. We uphold tronsparency

46 | Duroply Industries Limited

and accouniobidity, with pariodic
susdginability mporting direcied 1o the
Boord of Direciars. We also proctice
responsible wasle monogement through

mess, ecycling, and repurpesing,

Corporate Overview [EESIFIRT o @ NS0y Financial Statements

Our Social
commitment

At Dyroply, we recognise the impordonce
of relofionships in driving our business,
comprising the dedicofion of o
employess ond trusted vendors

Employaes: Wa nuriune strong
connections, iresting in an opanational
culture that aligns with the haghest secor
siandards. This inclisdes enhancing

Employees

2,864.51

P Lakh, remurssrsicn b
srmployses in FY 2223

3,220.93

T Lekh, roinrse oben W
ql’rlp'-u-l'm i FY 73.24

workforce productiity, skill developmant,
rale akgnmant, and talent sofeby

Customers and vendors: Chur salde
vendor ecosyyiem, comprising suppliers
of copital eguipment, spare ports, and
rETAUREEL, EALUFEY SEmm e openalions
Longstanding partnerships with primary
cuslomers conbribule bo our revenues and
enhance predicability.

Customers

30,233.86

F Lakh, revesmues from sales in

FY 2223

32,267.47

4 Lll.thl remrrams from soles in

FY 23-24

Our governance
commitment

in o rapldly changing warld, Dusaply
champians gevanance, morked

by o commitmant to acoountability,
mansparency and athics.

Governance philosophy: Cur
marfiocrofic approach ansuIres
complionce with SEB| regulations ond
legal requiremaents kor Direcior selection,
gssessmenl, and mmunergtion, incheding
diverse represenhaticn

Parfarmancs and remunanation:
Amnisal competence assessments uphold
buisiness stondands, selacting Dinecton
with waried backgrounds and skills
Tronsparent remunerofion is aligned with
patormancs

Ethical practices and commifiess:
Chroarsight commiitess manoge audi,
risk, ond sinadagy, promoting ethical
conduct. 'Wa moinkoin o zero-telarance
podicy on bribery ond comuption,
suppding whistle-blowar ovenues and
angalng sthicel sducation

Code of Business Conduct: Upholding
high eihical stondards through owr
compreharsive Code of Business
Conduct, with no visdotiors reporied

Audit and accounhability:
Sirengthening reporting neliability through
perdodic intemal and extemal audits.

Sirategic consittency: Emphaising
predsciability by ralraining fram
speculative alvwosd purchases

Community engagement; Duroply
angogps with communities arsind s
manifacturing fodilities, promoling
prosperity in alignment with the United
Mathons' Sustainable D«wur-ppmmﬂ
Goals, Wa moinéin safe, senitany,

ond healthy work environments,
boosting employes productivity, manale,
crqdi'mrnrﬂ'nnrm, and competitivensss

Vendors

20,453.64

F Lokh, procurement from
vandion in FY 33-23

22,650.82

T Lakh, PrOCuTersel frear
wandbart = FY 73-24

Brand investrment and innovafion:
Incremiing brond visthility, innovotion,
and ogility fo support market presence
and ConsAETDr oopeal,

Long-ferm perspective: Investing in
susfainable gnn'-.-!h. priceifsing stability,
sinkehaldar sippod, ond plpwood-
focused brand identisy,

Conirolled sxpansion: Growing within
finoneial copocily bo ensine sushainable
businets exparion.

Daote protection and privacy: Ensinng
150 27001 -condied dota pebvacy and
afficiant 1T manEQoment, wih no rocani
complaint. related fo doio o customer
perivacy beemchens
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2.

HOW WE INTEND

TO ENHANCE

SHAREHOLDER VALUE

Virluwertion

92.18

¥ Crore, marioet
copdolisohon, Morch 31,

2023 2024
Brand
& |nvested £1.3.91 Crone in the
brand, FY 23.24

& |ncreased tha propodion of
brand spending in redalion 1o
reverues by 0019 bps i FY 23-24

= |ncreatad beand ENpoiure;
snhanced brand sdentity with a
bocus o immavation and raliabiling

Presence

= Broadbased the footprin
beyond Morth Indio o encompass
West / South and Eost India

= Serengthened regeonal coveroge
= PMuigged market white spaces
= Enhmncad urban visbbility

48 | Duroply Industries Limited

254.85

¥ Crore, market
copiabsghos, Morch 31,

N

L '
/

Marketing

& Tromsitioned from o mnrnl.rfnn:h.rnng-qqﬂh'i:
nppr-n-ur.h o a rrnrkming-d-nmn strofegy

= Ciptimised the product mix; focused on
incroased overoge realisaficn and copiial
efficiency

= Recrufied professicnals with backgrownds
beyond the phraood indushry

» Enhoncad brond viashalty

wm®

Astute Capital Management
= et worth infusion of £43.90
Crorm in FY 23.24

= Mominal premater eguity dilulion

= [ncraosed seof nel worth in
business growth

u Right-sized e Balance Sheat

* Committed o moderoie debt and
improve the infarost cover

Manufociuring assets

= [nvesimant in copocity
debaitlanecking and modamisation
ol the Rnilml pfurﬂ

= Enhanced manmdocharing capacity
= mplemented auncmalion
= fAoirmssed infrostrochure uiilizadion

Corporate Overview [EENIFIGSa@NGO Financial Statements

OUR OPERATIONS
TEAM AT DUROPLY

Sudeep Chitlanglia

Chainman

Mr, Sudeep Chitlangia hos ower 36 yearn
ol BXpEraBnoe 1A e p|f-wi ||"||'|ul||r'l|l
In 1993, ha has bean oppointed o tha
Chadman, He & o wood material ond
openalion axper with comprehensivg
SapatiE o |I:{1’§|.|.|:{b-|'\'_||n"||_:| L -ﬁ.l}l:ld
techmodogies and culting-edgps

Manage meant proclises such o% i
Thaary of Consingints, Ha & on ool
mambar of the Kolkata Enfrepranaus
ﬂf.j.;.l:!.n:.:mn Suddesp 1y cuamantly o
Commifes Member for the Marchan
Chaméer of Commenoe and kduastry

in Kalkata, Me previouly served on the
board of ®he ndian Plysosd Indusivies
Regayirh el 'I|-|_'un:n:_| |rivhte 1o taen
tarms [IPERTH]

Powon Kumor Vermo
Chied Finangial Officer

Mr Posan Euvmor Yerma is o Bochelor
of Commarca ond o quuﬂll;llld THE T e
of tha Institute of Chorered Accounionss
of Indio. Ha has beoen with cur company
for 15 years. He hos cverseen o

diverse range of duties in hnance and
commarcial, M5, budgeting, working
copital mancpament, toeatisn, fund
management, budgeling ond allecation,
baook clowmes, shohyiory ond intermal
oudit, vendor manggemarnt end shatubory
complonces

Akhllesh Chitlangla
Managing Direcfor and CEQ

Ar, Axhilagh Ell.nllrmgq'_u P werked
the plpvend industy lor aver 14 years
He specioliies in disiibulion exponsion,
SRR G T gama ginid Thea
implamanboiion af mew nlfetbas, As
Managing Dlirscter and CECY, Akhibath &
bazad in Maw Dalbi snd 48 in I:'MI{H ol
the Company’s day-fo-day opsnations

He has eomed o Bochelor of Science in
Businass Adminstrotion ond a Bochalor
of Aris in BEoonomics from Bosion

Linisarsity in the United Stotes.

Shoshonk Hiszaria
Vice-Presicent

#r, Shoshank Hissorio hos been with our
SOy lor 35 YIS and hox handled
mulfipda possithons of responsibiling

He ploys o key role in Supply Chaln
Monogement and the ooguisition ol
high-guality rorer materials. He is cumently
in charge of confrect manulachwing and
the sourcing of fow-cost mataiol for our
Towar brand,

..."-..

Abhlshek Chitlangla
President, Monuleduring

Mr, Abhishek C I"l1|-l:|"lf|::| e evwar B paar
ol industry exparience. He is currently in
charge of DURO s praduction adivities
ard has octively premoted lean and six
sigma to improve quaelity and olfecinmey,
He i o mamber of The MOCF Salebaards
Siandards Commilies and tha BIS
Wiorking Group on Plysood Siendands

Abhishek gradugied from the Unheerity
ol Michigon 3umma Cum loude with

a dual degres in BSE Industried ond
Cparotions Enginesnng and o BBA
from the Boss School of Business, Prioe
i joining Duroply, he held various
posiione with Vantoear Indugiriss
{Michigon, LI53A) aond Bain & Compory
{Chicogo, LISA]

Dippaman Samanta
Sr. ¥ice Presidernt, Sole

Mr. Cippaman Somanto hos done his
Bachelors in Engineaning [Machanical|
trom lobalpur and hos over 30 yeor
of experience in Diverse Indusiries

in the fields of Distibution, Chonnel
monogeman, B28 sales, Product
Lotegony management & Supply Chain
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 67th Annual General
Meeting of DUROPLY INDUSTRIES LIMITED will be
held on Friday, the August 09, 2024 at 04.30 P.M (IST)
through video conferencing / other audio visual means to
transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vinay Agarwal
(DIN: 06431086), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Appointment of Mr. Shivram Sethuraman
(DIN: 07946245) as Non-Executive Independent
Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 149, 150 and 152 read with Schedule IV and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof,
for the time being in force) read with Regulation
16(1)(b) and other applicable provisions of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, (“Listing Regulations”) (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof,
for the time being in force), and pursuant to the
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors,
Mr. Shivram Sethuraman (DIN: 07946245), who was
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company
w.e.f 17th May, 2024, to hold office until the date of the
next Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161
of the Act and who has submitted a declaration that
he meets the criteria for independence as provided in
Section 149(6) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder
and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations,
as amended, be and is hereby appointed as Non-
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Executive Independent Director of the Company for
a term of five consecutive years w.e.f. 17.05.2024 and
upto 16.05.2029, not liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors
of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all
the necessary acts, deeds, matters and things as may
be considered necessary, expedient and desirable to
give effect to this resolution.”

Appointment of Mr. Anup Kumar Agarwal
(DIN : 07571695) as an Investor Director of the
Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 152 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Companies
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and
pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board of Directors, Mr. Anup Kumar Agarwal (DIN
: 07571695), who was appointed as an Additional
Investor Director of the Company w.e.f 17th May,
2024, to hold office until the date of the next Annual
General Meeting in terms of Section 161 of the Act,
be and is hereby appointed as an Investor Director of
the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, in terms
of the shareholders agreement entered into by the
company with a group of investors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors
of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all
the necessary acts, deeds, matters and things as may
be considered necessary, expedient and desirable to
give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors

KOMAL DHRUV
Date: May 17, 2024 Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata ACS-41850

NOTES:

11. In view of the extraordinary circumstances due to

b)

outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) by Circular No.14/2020
dated 8th April, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated
13th April, 2020,Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th
May, 2020, Circular No. 2/2022 dated 5th May, 2022,
Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022 and
Circular No. 09/2023 dated 25th September, 2023 (the
MCA Circulars) read with Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 SEBI/
HO/CFD/CMD?2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January,
2021 SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62  dated
13th May, 2022 SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4
dated 5th January, 2023 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-
PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated 7th October, 2023 (the
SEBI Circulars) had permitted sending of the Notice
of AGM along with Annual Report only through
electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail
addresses were registered with the Company / RTA /
Depositories as well as conducting the AGM through
Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual
Means (OAVM).

In compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the MCA and SEBI Circulars
the:

Notice of the AGM along with Annual Report for the
Financial Year 2023-24 is being sent only through
electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail
addresses are registered with the Company / RTA /
Depositories.

67th AGM of the Members will be held through VC /
OAVM.

Members may note that the AGM Notice along with
the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-24
has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.duroply.in. The Notice and the Annual Report
can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchange, i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com.
The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website
of CDSL i.e. www.evotingindia.com. The proceedings
of the AGM will be deemed to be conducted at the
Registered Office of the Company at 9 Parsee Church
Street, Kolkata, West Bengal 700001.
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The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102
of the Act and the additional information pursuant
to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations, in
respect of Director proposed for appointment /re-
appointment at the meeting are annexed hereto.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act,
read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended),
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-
2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India (“ICSI”) and Regulation 44 of the Listing
Regulations read with MCA and SEBI Circulars, the
Company is providing remote e-Voting facility to its
Members in respect of the business to be transacted
at the 67th AGM. For this purpose, the Company has
entered into an agreement with Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating
voting through electronic means, as the authorized
e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a
member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting
system on the date of the AGM will be provided by
CDSL.

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed
ShriAtul Kumar Labh, Practicing Company Secretary,
(FCS-4848), as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the Voting
process in a fair and transparent manner.

In terms of the MCA Circulars since the physical
attendance of Members has been dispensed with,
there is no requirement of appointment of proxies.
Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies
by Members under Section 105 of the Act will not be
available for the 67th AGM and hence the attendance
slip, proxy forms and route map are not attached
with the notice. However, in pursuance of Section
112 and Section 113 of the Act, representatives of the
Members may be appointed for the purpose of voting
through remote e-Voting, for participation in the 67th
AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and e-Voting during
the 67th AGM.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM
mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the
procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of
participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be
made available to 1000 members on first come first
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11.

12.

served basis. This will not include Large Shareholders
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Stakeholders
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend

Committee  and Relationship
the AGM without restriction on account of first come
first served basis.

Attendance of the Members participating in the 67th
AGM through VC/OAVM Facility shall be counted for
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section
103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to section 91 of the Act, read with Rule 10
of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 42 of the Listing
Regulations, the Register of Members and Share
Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed
from August 03, 2024 to August 09, 2024 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of 67th AGM.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under
Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts
or Arrangements in which the directors are interested,
maintained under Section 189 of the Act, and all the
relevant documents pertaining to the resolutions
proposed vide this notice of Annual General Meeting
will be available electronically for inspection by
the members during the AGM. Members seeking
to inspect such documents can send an email to
investors@duroply.com.

Members are requested to intimate change in their
addresses, if any, to the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent in respect of equity shares held by them in
physical mode and to their Depository Participant(s)
in respect of shares held in dematerialized form.

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Act, members holding
shares in physical form are advised to file nomination
with the RTA. In respect of shares held in Electronic/
Demat form, Members may please contact their
respective Depository Participants(s).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities
market. Members holding shares in electronic form
are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to
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their Depository Participants (DPs) with whom they
are maintaining their demat accounts. Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN
details to RTA viz. Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. /
Company.

SEBI, vide its notification dated January 24, 2022,
has mandated that all requests for transfer of
securities including transmission and transposition
requests shall be processed only in dematerialized
form. In view of the same and to eliminate all risks
associated with physical shares and avail various
benefits of dematerialisation, Members are advised
to dematerialise the shares held by them in physical
form. Members can contact the Company or RTA,
for assistance in this regard. Accordingly, the
shareholders holding shares in physical form, in their
own interest, are hereby requested to take necessary
steps to dematerialise their shares as soon as possible.

The shareholders may approach the nearest
Depository Participant or browse through the website
of National Securities Depository Limited (www.nsdl.
co.in) and Central Depository Services Limited (www.
cdslindia.com) for further clarification in this regard.

Updation of PAN and other details

SEBI vide its Circulars dated November 3, 2021 and
December 14, 2021 mandated furnishing of PAN,
KYC details (i.e. postal address with pin code, email
address, mobile number, bank account details) and
Nomination details by holders of physical securities
through Form ISR-1. It may be noted that any service
request or complaint can be processed only after the
folio is KYC compliant.

Accordingly, the Company has sent individual letters
to all the Members holding shares of the Company
in physical form for furnishing their PAN, KYC
and Nomination details. Members holding shares
of the Company in physical form are requested to
go through the requirements hosted on the website
of the Company at www.duroply.in and furnish the
requisite details.

Members are also requested to intimate changes,
if any, pertaining to their name, postal address,
email address, mobile number, PAN, registration
of nomination, power of attorney registration, bank
mandate details, etc. to their DPs in case the shares
are held in electronic form and to the Registrar at

15.

16.

1.

1il.

mdpldc@yahoo.com in case the shares are held in
physical form, quoting their folio number. Changes
intimated to the DP will then be automatically
reflected in the Company’s records.

Further, effective April 1,2024, SEBI has mandated
that the shareholders, who hold shares in physical
mode and whose folios are not updated with any of the
KYC details viz. (i) PAN (ii) Choice of Nomination
(ii1) Contact Details (iv) Mobile Number (v) Bank
Account Details and (vi) Signature, shall be eligible
to get dividend only in electronic mode. Accordingly,
payment of dividend (as and When declared), subject
to approval at the AGM, shall be paid to physical
holders only after the above details are updated in their
folios. Shareholders are requested to complete their
KYC by writing to the Company’s RTA, Maheshwari
Datamatics Private Limited. The forms for updating
the same are available at Company’s website www.
duroply.in and RTA website www.mdpl.in

Members holding shares in physical or demat form
as on the cut-off date i.e. August 02, 2024 shall only
be eligible to vote on the resolutions mentioned in
the Notice of Annual General Meeting. Those who
become Members of the Company after dispatch of
AGM Notice but on or before August 02, 2024 (Cut-
off date) may obtain the login ID and password by
sending a request to the Registrar & Share Transfer
Agent at mdpldc@yahoo.com or to the Company
at investors@duroply.com. However, those already
registered with CDSL for e-voting can use their
existing user Id and password for Login.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS
WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES/ MOBILE NOS.
ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/
DEPOSITORIES:

For Physical shareholders - Please provide necessary
details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN
(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAAR
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) by
email to Company at investors@duroply.com/RTA at
mdpldc@yahoo.com or visit RTA website.

For Demat shareholders — Please update your email
id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP).

For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update
your email id & mobile no. with your respective

1v.

17.
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Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory
while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository.

The company/RTA shall co-ordinate with CDSL and
provide the login credentials to the above mentioned
shareholders.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS
ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/ OAVM
ARE AS UNDER:

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to
attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the
CDSL e-Voting system. Shareholders may access
the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under
shareholders/members login by using the remote
e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM to
attend meeting will be available where the EVSN
of Company will be displayed after successful
login as per the instructions mentioned below for
Remote e-voting.

ii. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting
through Laptops / iPads for better experience.

iii. Further shareholders will be required to allow
camera and use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

iv. Please note that Participants connecting from
Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended
to use stable Wi-Fior LAN Connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

v. Shareholders who would like to express their
views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending
their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number
at investors(@duroply.com.The shareholders who
do not wish to speak during the AGM but have
queries may send their queries in advance atleast
7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name,
demat account number/folio number, email id,

mobile number at investors@duroply.com.

vi. Those
themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to

shareholders who have registered
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1.
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express their views/ask questions during the
meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS
FORE-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS
UNDER:-

The procedure for e-voting on the day of the AGM
is same as the instructions mentioned below for
Remote e-voting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in
the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have
not casted their vote on the resolutions through
remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through
e-voting system available during the AGM.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through
the e-voting available during the AGM and if
the same shareholders have not participated in
the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then
the votes cast by such shareholders shall be
considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during
the meeting is available only to the shareholders
attending the meeting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote
e-voting will be eligible to attend the AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the
AGM.

NOTE FOR NON - INDIVIDUAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND CUSTODIANS

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and
register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing
the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance
User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to
link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login will be
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mapped automatically and can be delinked in case
of any wrong mapping.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and
Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued
in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be
uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are
required to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email
address viz; investors@duroply.com, if they have
voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in
the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

INSTRUCTION FOR REMOTE
ELECTRONIC VOTING (REMOTE
E-VOTING) AND E-VOTING DURING AGM
AND JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC/
OAVM:

The instructions for members voting electronically

are as under:

L.

IL.

I1I.

The voting period begins on August 06, 2024 at
9:00 a.m. (IST) and ends on August 08, 2024 at
5:00 p.m. (IST). During this period, Members of
the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off
date being August 02, 2024 will be eligible to vote
by electronic means or at the AGM. The e-voting
module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting
thereafter.

Those who becomes Members of the Company
after dispatch of AGM Notice but on or before
August 02, 2024 (Cut-off date) may obtain the
login ID and password by sending a request to the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at mdpldc@
yahoo.com or to the Company at investors@
duroply.com. However, those already registered
with CDSL for remote e-voting can use their
existing user ID and password for Login.

To enable e-voting to all the demat account
holders, by way of a single login credential, through
their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/
Depository Participants. Demat account holders
would be able to cast their vote without having

to register with multiple e-voting service providers
(ESPs), for facilitating seamless authentication and
also enhancing ease and convenience of participating

Corporate Overview [EENIFIGSa@NGO Financial Statements

Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode are allowed to vote through their
demat account maintained with Depositories and

in e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,

Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised
to update their mobile number and email Id in their
demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-voting and joining virtual meetings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
Demat mode with
CDSL Depository

1.

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
existing user 1d and password. Option will be made available to reach e-voting page
without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and
click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

After successful login the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see the e-voting option
for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information
provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see
e-voting page of the e-voting service provider for casting your vote during the
remote e-voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDIL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the
e-voting service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN from a e-voting link available on www.cdslindia.com
home page or click on http://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotinglLogin. The
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email
as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
able to see the e-voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to
directly access the system of all e-voting Service Providers.

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
Demat mode with
NSDL Depository

1.

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-services
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://
eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home
page of e-services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able
to see e-voting services. Click on “Access to e-voting” under e-voting services and
you will be able to see e-voting page. Click on company name or e-voting service
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.
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Type of shareholders

Login Method

2.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open.
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-voting page. Click on company name or e-voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities

in Demat mode)

login through

their Depository
Participants (DP)

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-voting facility. After
successful login, you will be able to see e-voting option. Once you click on e-voting

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful

authentication, wherein you can see e-voting feature. Click on company name or

e-voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-voting service provider

website for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period or joining virtual

meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and

Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Members holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL.

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk

securities in Demat mode with CDSL | by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting(@cdslindia.com or contact at

toll free no.: 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact

securities in Demat mode with NSDL | NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in  or

call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30
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b) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual

shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders.

1.
2.
3.

10.

11.
12.

13.
14.

15.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com;
Click on “Shareholders” tab to caste your votes;

Now, select the Electronic Voting Sequence Number “EVSN” along with Duroply Industries Limited from
the drop-down menu and click on “SUBMI'T”;

Now Enter your User ID;

a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID.

b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID.

¢) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below :

For Physical Shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in demat

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

* Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/ RTA
or contact Company/ RTA

Dividend Bank Details | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as

or Date of Birth (DOB) | recorded in your demat account or in the Company records in order to login.

e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please
enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be
also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to
vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for “Duroply Industries Limited” on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/
NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK?”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and
accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
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16. You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting
page.

17. If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password, then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on ‘Forgot Password’ & enter the details as prompted by the system.

18. There is an optional provision to upload BR/ POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to the
scrutinizer for verification.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding AGM and e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call at 1800 22 55 33.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi,
Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal
Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com or call at 1800 22 55 33.

By order of the Board of Directors

KOMAL DHRUV
Date: May 17, 2024 Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata ACS-41850
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102

OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 3

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Board of Directors of the Company, on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, appointed Mr. Shivram Sethuraman
(DIN:07946245), as an Additional Independent Director
of the Company with effect from 17th May, 2024.

In terms of the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies
Act, 2013, Mr. Shivram Sethuraman would hold office
up to the date of this Annual General Meeting. He is
proposed to be appointed as an Independent Director
for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years w.e.f. 17.05.2024
upto 16.05.2029 pursuant to Section 149 (including other
applicable provisions if any) of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder.

He is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director
in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and has
given his consent to act as a Director. The Company has
also received declarations from Mr. Shivram Sethuraman
that he meets with the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder and applicable provisions of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Over the years Mr. Sethuraman has also been on the
Board of several companies which includes AWT Energy
Private Limited, Apollo Home Healthcare Limited, Apollo
Hospitals, Indore and Imperial Hospitals Bengaluru. He
was also a Chief Operating Officer at Intercraft Trading
Private Limited Mumbai (Leading Distributor of Luxury
Perfumes), Executive Director — Human Resources
at Sanmar Group Chennai, Director, Human Capital
Advisory Services at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu India
Private Limited thus adding on to the excellent strategic
oversight over business operations, managerial experience
and leadership skills.

The Board is of the opinion that the experience of over
30 years in Human Resources Management and extensive
expertise in Strategic HR Consulting across industries of
Mr. Shivram Sethuraman justifies the skills & capabilities
required for the said role. He also fulfills the conditions
specified in the said Act and the rules made thereunder
and possesses appropriate balance of skills, experience
and knowledge so as to enable the Board to discharge its
functions and duties effectively and he is independent of

the management.

The Board considers that his experience and expertise
would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is
desirable to avail services of Mr. Shivram Sethuraman as
an Independent Director for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive
years w.e.f. 17.05.2024 upto 16.05.2029. Brief profile of Mr.
Shivram Sethuraman is given in the Annexure - 1 to this
Notice.

The draft letter for the appointment of Mr. Shivram
Sethuraman as independent director setting out the terms
and conditions is available at https://www.duroply.in/.

Except Mr. Shivram Sethuraman, none of the other
Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
their relatives, are concerned or interested financially or
otherwise in this resolution.

The Board recommends resolution set out in Item No. 3
of the notice for approval by the members.

Item No. 4

In order to give effect to the terms and conditions of
the shareholders agreement dated 14th February, 2024
entered into amongst the company, its promoters and a
group of investors , the Board of Directors of the Company
have approved the appointment of Mr. Anup Kumar
Agarwal (DIN: 07571695) as an Additional Non-Executive
Investor Director of the Company at its meeting held on
17th May, 2024.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of Companies
Act, 2013, the regularization of aforesaid apointment
from additional director to director requires approval of
Members of the Company through ordinary resolutions at
a duly convened General Meeting.

He is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director
in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
has given his consent to act as a Director.

Brief profile of Mr. Anup Kumar Agarwal is given in the
Annexure — 1 to this Notice.

Except Mr. Anup Kumar Agarwal, none of the other
Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or
their relatives, are concerned or interested financially or
otherwise in this resolution.

The Board recommends resolution set out in Item No. 4
of the notice for approval by the members.

Anuual Report 2023-24 | 59



3

wm®

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF THE COMPANY

Particulars

Name Mr. Vinay Agarwal Mr. Shivram Sethuraman | Mr. Anup Kumar Agarwal
DIN 06431086 07946245 07571695

Date of Birth / Age 11.04.1956 (68 yrs) 11.07.1966 (57 yrs) 09.12.1981 (42 yrs)

Date of Appointment | 09.08.2022 17.05.2024 17.05.2024

on the Board

Qualification

Graduate of II'T" Kanpur and
IIM Calcutta

B.Tech, PGDM from Indian
Institute of Management
Lucknow, and Textile
Technologist  from  TIT
Bhiwani.

PGDM- Finance & Marketing

Expertise in Specific
functional area

Mr. Vinay Agarwal has worked
as a Managing Director/
CEO/COO  with  several
multinational companies like
Grindwell Norton Limited,
TVS Interconnect Systems
Ltd.

He founded PGT Partners
in 2011 to give assistance
to Companies Promoters to
double their profits in a year
and/or triple sales in three
years.

He is a speaker on Business
Growth & Scaling, Business
Turnaround and Marketing.

He is a Human Resources
Management Professional
withover 30years of experience
and has an extensive expertise
in Strategic HR Consulting
across industries and has led
engagements in organization

restructuring, performance
management systems design,
compensation studies,
competency mapping,

assessment & development
centers and management
training for numerous
organizations.

He is a highly accomplished
Finance professional with
over 13 years of experience .
He i1s skilled in fundamental
analysis, equity research,
options trading, and risk
management. Recognized for
meticulous organization, a
keen eye for opportunity, and
a commitment to maximizing
returns while mitigating risk.

Terms and Conditions
of Appointment / Re-
appointment

Non-Executive Non
Independent Director, liable
to retire by rotation

Non-Executive & Independent
Director, not liable to retire by
rotation

Investor Director, not liable to
retire by rotation

Skills & capabilities
required for the
role & manner in
which proposed
person meets such
requirements

(for Independent
Directors)

Not Applicable

Refer explanatory statement

Not Applicable

Number of Board
meetings attended out
of five Board meetings
held during the Year

Three

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Remuneration last
drawn by such person,
if applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

60 | Duroply Industries Limited

Corporate Overview

Statutory Report

Financial Statements

Particulars
Name Mr. Vinay Agarwal Mr. Shivram Sethuraman | Mr. Anup Kumar Agarwal
Directorship held Nil 1 (One) Nil
in other Public
Companies
Committee Nil Chairmanship in  Audit | Nil
membership/ and Nomination and
Chairmanship held in Remuneration ~ Committee
other Companies of Apollo Rajshree Hospitals
Private Limited
Relationship with Not related Not related Not related
other Directors/KMP
Number of shares held
in the Company :
a)Selt 25726 - 5000
b) As beneficial
owner

No. of listed entities
from which the person
has resigned in the
past three years
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Your Directors are pleased to present the 67th Annual Report of Duroply Industries Limited along with the Audited
Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars As on 31.03.2023
Turnover 32267.47 30233.86
Other Income 165.37 216.14
Profit before finance charges, Tax, Depreciation/ Amortization (PBITDA) 1285.46 1840.97
Less: Finance Charges 814.44 711.47
Profit before Depreciation/ Amortization (PBTDA) 471.02 1129.50
Less: Depreciation 370.12 337.71
Profit before Tax and Exceptional Items 100.90 791.79
Net profit before taxation (PBT) 100.90 791.79
Provision for taxation 0.15 269.22
Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation (PAT) 100.75 522.57
Other Comprehensive Income (50.86) (13.26)
Total Comprehensive Income 49.89 509.31

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

During the year under review, the Company has achieved
a turnover of Rs 322.67 Crores as against Rs.302.34 Crores
in the preceding financial year, an increase of 6.72%. Profit
before Tax is Rs 1 crores as against Rs 7.92 crores in the
preceding year. Profit after T'ax is Rs 1 crores as against Rs
5.23 crores in the preceding year.

DIVIDEND

During the year under review, the Directors regret their
inability to recommend any dividend for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Reserves and Surplus of your Company has increased
to 116.58 crores in the year 2023-24 as compared to 80.64
crores in the year 2022-23. No amount has been proposed
to be transferred to the General Reserve for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2024
was Rs. 9.86 Crores.
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Preferential issue of equity shares and

share warrants

During the year under review, the Board of Directors
of the Company vide its meeting held on February 13,
2024 approved the proposal for raising of funds by way of
issue, offer and allotment of upto 11,77,336 equity shares
of Rs. 10/- each (“Equity Shares”) for cash at a price of
Rs. 203/- (including a premium of Rs. 193/-) per Equity
Share and upto 9,85,220 warrants, each convertible into,
or exchangeable for, 1 fully paid-up equity share of the
Company of face value of Rs. 10/- each (“Warrants”) at
a price of Rs. 203/- each payable in cash (“Warrants
Issue Price”), which may be exercised in one or more
tranches during the period commencing from the date of
allotment of the Warrants until expiry of 18 months, by
way of preferential issue on private placement basis for an
aggregate consideration not exceeding Rs. 43,89,98,868/-
in terms of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 read with the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Shareholders
of the Company have approved the issue of such securities
in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on March
9, 2024. The allotment of 11,77,336 equity shares and
9,85,220 Warrants on Preferential Basis was approved by
the Allotment Committee in their meeting held on March
27,2024.

Conversion of share warrants into equity shares of
the company

The Company had issued 11,91,032 Convertible Warrants
of face value of Rs 10/- each on preferential basis to
allottees under Promoter category in financial year 2022-
23. Out of the total warrants issued, 9,12,808 warrants
pending for conversion into equity shares were converted
into Equity shares of face value of Rs 10/- each at a
premium of Rs 116/- each (2,12,754 warrants on October
16, 2023, 4,86,774 warrants on December 18, 2023 and
2,13,280 warrants on February 20, 2024).

Further, the fund raised through the preferential
issue in 2022 has been used for the stated purpose
to augment the long-term resources of the Company
for meeting funding requirements of its business
activities, strengthen balance sheet, maintain
adequate liquidity, pursue growth opportunities and
general corporate and other purposes and the funds
raised through the preferential issue in 2024 has
been used for the stated purpose i.e. working capital
requirements and general corporate purposes.
There is no deviation in the use of the proceeds.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of the business of the
Company during the year.

BORROWINGS

The total borrowings stood at Rs. 41.03 crores as at March
31, 2024 as against Rs. 41.46 crores as on March 31, 2023,
i.e. a decrease of Rs. 0.43 crores.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public
during the year and as such, there is no outstanding
deposit in terms of Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has constituted Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee in compliance with
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI Listing Regulations, with Mr. Sudeep Chitlangia
(Chairman), Mr. Akhilesh Chitlangia (Member) and Mr.
Probir Roy (Member upto 31.03.2024) replaced by Mr.
Kulvin Suri (effective 01.04.2024). The CSR Committee
laid down the CSR policy of the Company which can
be accessed at www.duroply.in. The Company was not
obligated to contribute towards CSR activities during
financial year 2023-24, as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. Annual report on CSR Activities is
enclosed as “Annexure-1”
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
REPORT

As required under Regulation 34(2) of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter
referred as the “Listing Regulations”), the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report is attached herewith as
“Annexure-2".

DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Directors

Retirement by Rotation

Mr. Vinay Agarwal (DIN: 06431086), Non-Executive
Non-Independent Director of the Company, retires by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment in accordance
with the provisions of Section 152(6) and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Appointment / Re-appointment of Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 and 152 read
with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules made thereunder, the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting held on 11th August, 2023, inter alia,
confirmed appointment of Sri Arun Kumar Singhania
(DIN: 00160194) and Smt Suparna Chakrabortti (DIN:
07090308) for a term of five years from 19th May, 2023 to
18th May, 2028 as an Independent Director on the Board
of the Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration committee and the
Board of Directors at their respective meetings held on
February 13, 2024, recommended the appointment of
Mr. Kulvin Suri (DIN: 03640464) as Non-Executive,
Independent Director of the Company to the members of
the Company and accordingly, the Company has received
approval of the members of the Company in the Extra
Ordinary General Meeting held on 9th March, 2024.
Mr Kulvin Suri has been appointed as an Independent
Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of five
consecutive years commencing from 13th February, 2024
to 12th February, 2029.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 17,
2024, based on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has appointed Mr. Shivram
Sethuraman (DIN: 07946245) as Additional (Non-
Executive Independent) Director of the Company w.e.f.
May 17, 2024, not liable to retire by rotation and Mr. Anup
Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 07571695) as Additional Non-
Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. May 17, 2024,
not liable to retire by rotation. The resolutions for their
appointment have been included in the Notice convening
67th AGM for the approval of Members.
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Re-designations and fresh appointments of Mr.
Sudeep Chitlangia and Mr. Akhilesh Chitlangia

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of
the Company, on the recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, have keeping in view the
Company’s long term strategic planning and the ongoing
transformation journey resolved following in its meeting

held on February 13, 2024:

a. The re-designation and appointment of Mr. Sudeep
Chitlangia (DIN: 00093908) as an Executive Chairman, in
the category of a whole-time director, with the title as the
“Chairman” of the Company, for a fresh term of three (3)
years commencing from April 1, 2024; and

b. The re-designation and appointment of Mr. Akhilesh
Chitlangia (DIN: 03120474) as the “Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer” of the Company, for a fresh
term of three (3) years commencing from April 1, 2024.

The special resolutions pertaining to the above re-
designations and appointments were duly approved by the
shareholders of the Company, with requisite majority, in
the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held
on March 9, 2024.

Completion of tenure of Directors

On 31st March, 2024 , Mr. Ratan Lal Gaggar (DIN:
00066068) , Mr Sujit Chakravorti (DIN: 00066344),
Mr Probir Roy (DIN: 00033045) and Mr Kali Kumar
Chaudhuri (DIN: 00206157) ceased to be Independent
Directors of the Company due to completion of their
tenure as an Independent Director as per the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) & relevant provisions of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Your Directors placed on record their appreciation for the
valuable contribution made by them during their tenure as
Director of the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel

Interms of Section 2(51) and Section 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
key managerial personnel of the Company as on date of
this report are:

¢ Sudeep Chitlangia, Chairman
¢ Akhilesh Chitlangia, Managing Director & CEO
¢ Pawan Kumar Verma, Chief Financial Officer

¢ Komal Dhruv, Company Secretary
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declaration from each of
the Independent Directors under Section 149(7) of
the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria
of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
Listing Regulations.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent
Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications,
experience and expertise in the fields of finance, people
management, strategy, auditing, tax and risk advisory
services, banking, financial services, investments; and
they hold highest standards of integrity.

The Independent Directors of the Company have
registered themselves with the Indian Institute of
Corporate Affairs, (‘IICA’) as required under Rule 6 of
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review, five Board Meetings were
convened and held. The details of which are given in
Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Report.
The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations were adhered to while considering the time
gap between two meetings.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS
COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Annual evaluation of Board, its performance, Committees
and individual Directors pursuant to applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable regulations of
the Listing Regulations, were carried out.

The performance of the Board was evaluated after seeking
inputs from all the Directors present in the meeting on
the basis of criteria such as the board composition and
structure, effectiveness of board processes, information
and functioning, etc.

The Board and Nomination & Remuneration Committee
had evaluated / reviewed the performance of individual
Directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution
of the individual Director to the board and committee
meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed,
meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in
meetings, etc. The Securities and Exchange Board of
India vide circular SEBI/HO /CFD /CMD/ CIR/ 2017/004
dated January 05, 2017, issued a Guidance Note on Board
Evaluation about various aspects involved in the Board
Evaluation process to benefit all stakeholders.

While evaluating the performance, the above guidance note
was considered. Performance evaluation of Independent
Directors was carried out by the entire board, excluding
the Independent Director being evaluated. A meeting of
the Independent Director for the FY 2023-24, was held on
February 13, 2024, to review the performance of the Non-
Independent Directors and performance of the Board as a
whole, on the parameters of effectiveness and to assess the
quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information
between the Management and the Board. The same were
discussed in the board meeting that followed the meeting
of the Independent Directors, at which the performance of
the board, its committees, and individual Directors were
also discussed. The Directors expressed their satisfaction
with the evaluation process.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

The information required pursuant to Section 197(12)
read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in
respect of managerial personnel and employees of the
company are attached herewith as “Annexure-3".

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES

As on March 31, 2024 the company is not having any
associate, subsidiary or joint venture.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTY

All related party transactions that were entered into during
the financial year under review were at arm’s length basis
and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no
materially significant related party transactions made by
the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel or other designated persons which may have
a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at
large. Accordingly there is no transaction to be reported
in Form AOC-2.

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit
Committee for approval. The detail of the policy on Related
Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors
and Audit Committee is available on the Company’s
website www.duroply.in.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has in place a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle
Blower Policy to deal with unethical behavior and to
provide a framework to promote responsible and secured
reporting of undesired activities. The Vigil Mechanism/
Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the
Company at www.duroply.in. During the year, no case was
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reported under this policy.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, are given
in the notes to the financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has formulated a policy on director’s
selection and appointment, payment of remuneration,
director’s qualifications, positive attributes, independence
of directors, selection and appraisal of performance of Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and their
remuneration and other related matters as applicable
under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company’s criteria for payment of remuneration to the
Non -Executive Directors and Familiarization Programme
undertaken for Independent Directors are available on the
Company’s website www.duroply.in and the Remuneration
Policy is separately attached herewith as “Annexure—4”’.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a defined risk management framework
to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate risks involved
in its business. The Company understands that risk
evaluation and risk mitigation is an ongoing process
within the organization and is fully committed to identify
and mitigate the risks in the business. The Company has
formulated and implemented a risk management policy
in accordance with Listing Regulations, to identify and
monitor business risk and assist in measures to control
and mitigate such risks. In accordance with the policy,
the risk associated with the Company’s business is always
reviewed by the management team and placed before the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews these
risks on periodical basis and ensures that mitigation plans
are in place. The Board is briefed about the identified risks
and mitigation plans undertaken. The risk management
policy as approved by the Board of Directors is available on
the Company’s website www.duroply.in.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has adequate internal control procedures
commensurate with its size and nature of business. The
objective of these procedures is to ensure efficient use
and protection of the Company’s resources, accuracy in
financial reporting and due compliance of statutes and
corporate policies and procedures. The Internal Financial
Control (IFC) system ensures recording and providing
reliable financial and operational information, compliance
with applicable laws, executing transactions with proper
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authorization and compliance with corporate policies.

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for
ensuring that Internal Financial Controls have been laid
down by the Company and that such controls are adequate
and operating effectively.

Necessary certification by the Statutory Auditors in
relation to Internal Financial Control u/s 143(3) (i) of the
Companies Act, 2013 forms part of the Audit Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c)
of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

(1) That in the preparation of the accounts for the year
ended March 31,2024, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures, if any;

(i1) That the Directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the
profit/loss of the Company for the year on that date;

(1i1) That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) That the Directors have prepared the accounts for the
year ended March 31, 2024 on a ‘going concern’ basis.

(v) That the Directors have laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively.

(vi) That the Directors incorporated proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws was in place and were adequate and operating
effectively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has in place the SEBI guidelines pertaining
to Corporate Governance. The Corporate Governance
Report giving the details as required under the Listing
Regulations is given separately as “Annexure-5.

The Corporate Governance Certificate for the financial
year ended on March 31, 2024 issued by CA Vivek Agarwal,
partner of M/s S KAgrawal and Co Chartered Accountants
LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the
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Company, is also attached herewith as “Annexure-6".

Certificate Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the Listing
Regulations is attached herewith as “Annexure-7”.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has seven Committees out of which three
have been mandatorily constituted in compliance with
the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations while four non-mandatory Committees have
been constituted to assist it in the management of the day-
to-day affairs of the Company and to increase the efficacy of
governance. The Board has adopted charters setting forth
the roles and responsibilities of each of the Committees.
The Board has constituted following Committees to deal
with matters and to monitor activities falling within their
respective terms of reference:

* Audit Committee

¢ Nomination and Remuneration Committee
e Stakeholders Relationship Committee

* Investor Committee

* Finance Committee

* Allotment Committee

* CSR Committee

Details of composition of the above Committees, their
terms of reference, number of meetings held during the
year, attendance therein and other related aspects are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming
part of the Annual Report. There has been no instance
where the Board has not accepted the recommendations
of its Committees.

AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDITORS

The statutory auditors of your Company namely, M/s. S K
Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP, Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 306033E/E300272)
(Formerly known as : M/s. S K Agrawal & Co.) were
appointed for a period of five years at the Annual General
Meeting held on September 28, 2022. The statutory auditor
confirmed their eligibility and submitted the certificate in
writing that they are not disqualified to hold the office of
the statutory auditors. The report of the Statutory Auditor
forms part of the Annual Report 2023-24. The said report
does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse
remark or disclaimer. The report of the Statutory Auditor
forms part of the Annual Report 2023-24. The said report
does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse
remark or disclaimer. During the year under review,

the Auditors did not report any matter of fraud under
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore no
detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Mr.
Sumantra Sinha, Practicing Company Secretary (ACS:
11247), was appointed to conduct the Secretarial Audit for
the Financial Year 2023-24. The Secretarial Audit report
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is attached
herewith as ‘“Annexure-8”°. The said report does not
contain any reservation, qualification or adverse remark.

Based on the consent received and on recommendation
of the Audit Committee, the Board has re-appointed Mr.
Sumantra Sinha, Practicing Company Secretary as the
secretarial auditor for the financial year 2024-25.

COST AUDITORS

During the year under review Cost Audit is not applicable
to the Company.

INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act,
2013 is not applicable for the Company as no dividend was
declared in the last financial year.

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at the BSE
Limited. The Company confirms that the annual listing
fees has been paid to the BSE Limited for the financial
year 2024-25.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information pertaining to Conservation of Energy,
Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Outgo as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in “Annexure-9”
attached herewith.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) read with
Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual
Return as on March 31, 2024 is available at the web link:
https://duroply.in/investor/document/annual-return
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF
ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

There were no material changes and commitment
affecting the financial position of the Company since the
close of the financial year i.e. March 31, 2024 till the date
of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED
BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There were no significant and material order passed by
the Regulators/Courts which would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

PROCEEDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016

There are no proceedings, either filed by the Company or
against the Company, pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 as amended, before the National
Company Law Tribunal or other Courts as on 31st March,
2024.

SETTLEMENTS WITH BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, no settlements were made
by the Company with any Banks or Financial Institutions.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT
OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT 2013

The Company provides a safe and conducive work
environment to its employees and has adopted a policy
on prevention, prohibition, and redressal of sexual
harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder. Internal Complaints Committee have been
constituted to enquire into complaints and to recommend
appropriate action, wherever required in compliance with
the provisions of the said Act.

During the year under review, no complaint was reported
to the Committee.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
ON BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

During the financial year, your Company has complied
with applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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ISO CERTIFICATION

The Company’s factory at Rajkot, Gujarat have been
certified ISO 14001:2015 for Environmental Management
Systems Standards.

Registered Office:
9, Parsee Church Street,
Kolkata — 700001

AKHILESH CHITLANGIA
Managing Director & CEO Director
(DIN: 03120474)

Date: May 17, 2024
Place: Kolkata
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Annexure — 1

Annual Report on CSR Activities for Financial Year 2023 - 24

1.

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

The CSR policy of the Company aims to contribute towards sustainable development of the society and environment
to make planet a better place for future generations. The philosophy of CSR is imbibed in the business activities and
social initiatives as it already carries out its business as being “T'he Forest Friendly Company”.

2. Composition of CSR Committee

SL Name of Director Designation Number of Number of meetings of CSR
No. / Nature of meetings of CSR Committee attended during
Directorship Committee held the year
during the year

1 | ShriSudeep Chitlangia Chairman 2

2 | Shri Akhilesh Chitlangia Member 2

3 | Shri Probir Roy* Member 2 2

4 | Shri Kulvin Suri* Member NA NA
* Shri Kulvin Suri was appointed as a member of the committee with effect from April 1, 2024 in place of Shri Probir Roy.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by

the board are disclosed on the website of the company

Composition of CSR https://duroply.in/investor/document/composition-of-board-and-committees
committee

CSR Policy https://duroply.in/investor/document/csr-policy

CSR projects approved No specific projects have been approved by the Board in the financial year under review
by the Board as the average net profit for the last three years was in the negative zone, the Company

is not required to spend money for CSR activities in the financial year 2023-24 as per
the policy adopted and as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended.

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule

8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report)

Not applicable as the CSR obligation for the period under review is NIL as against the prescribed threshold limit to
undertake impact assessment.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year,
if any

S1. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be set-off for the
from preceding financial years financial year, if any
(in Rs) (in Rs)
NIL
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6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) (d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : NIL

Average net profit for last three financial years is (8.38) lakhs. (e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Not Applicable

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) (f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : NIL

NIL as the average net profit for the last three years is negative. (g) Excess amount for set off, if any

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years

) SIL Particular Amount (in Rs.)
Not Applicable No.
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any 1 | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section NIL
Not Applicable 135(5) Avg. Net Profit is Rs (8.38) lakhs
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) 2 | Total amount spent for the Financial Year NIL
NIL 3 | Excess amount spent for the financial year [ (i1)-(i)] NIL
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 4 | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or NIL
activities of the previous financial years, if an
Amount Unspent (in Rs.) : P : Y — Y :
Total Amount 5 | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years NIL
Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund [(Gith)-(iv)]
Financial Year. (in CSR Account as per section 135(6). specified under Schedule VII as per
Rs.) second proviso to section 135(5). 9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Amount Date of
Fund transfer 1 (2) 3) 4) (5) (6)
NIL Sl. No. Preceding Amount Amount spent in the Amount transferred Amount remaining to be spent
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against Ongoing projects for the financial year: Financial Year. transferred to reporting Financial to any fund specified in succeeding financial years.
Unspent CSR Year (in Rs.) under Schedule VII (in Rs.)
Account under as per section 135(6), if any.
M @) ® @ ) © | o | ® ) (10) (1) e persection 133(0) fany
section 135 (6)
Sl. No. Name Item  |Local [Location of the |Project |Amount |Amount Amount Mode of Mode of (in Rs.) Name of Amount Date of
of the |from the |area project duration |allocated | spent transferred |Implementation Implementation the Fund (in Rs) transfer
Project listof  [(Yes/ for the in the to Unspent - Direct (Yes/ - Through
activities | No) project | current |[CSRAccount No) Implementing Agency NIL
in (in Rs.) |financial for the
Schedule State |District Year (in | project as Name CSR
\VII to the Rs.) per Section Registration . ) ) . ) . ) . .
Act 135(6) (in number (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
Rs.) year(s):
NIL @ | @ ®) *) ©®) (6) ™) ) )
SL. | Project | Name Financial Project Total amount Amount spent Cumulative Status of the project -
(¢) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: No. ID of the Year in duration allocated for the on the project amount spent Completed /Ongoing
Project which the project (in Rs.) in the reporting at the end

project was

commenced

Financial Year
(in Rs)

of reporting
Financial Year.
(in Rs.)

NIL

) @ ©) *) Q) (6) ™ ®)
Sl. No. | Name of | Item from the Local area |Location of the | Amount Mode of Mode of implementation - Through
the list of activities | (Yes/ No) project spent for the |implementation implementing agency
Proj ect in schedule VII project (in - Direct (Yes/
to the Act Rs.) No)
State | District Name CSR registration
number
NIL
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year : (asset-wise details)

a) | Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) NIL
b) | Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset NIL
¢) | Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is NIL

registered, their address etc

d) | Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and NIL
location of the capital asset)

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5)

Not Applicable
Sd/- Sd/-
(Managing Director & CEO) (Chairman of CSR Committee)
Shri Akhilesh Chitlangia Shri Sudeep Chitlangia

Date : May 17, 2024
Place : Kolkata
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Annexure — 2

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

Global economy

Crarview: Global economic growth declined from 3.5% in
2022 to an estimated 3.1% in 2023, A disproporonats shams
al global grewth in 2023.24 s expected lo come from Asia,
daipite the weaker-then-expacted recovery m China, susiainad
waakness in USA, higher anergy costs in Evrope, weak global
conaumer senfiment on occcunt of the Uraine-Russia war and
ithe Red Sea crisis resulting in higher logisfics cosls. A fighlening
monslary policy ranslated nbo increased pobicy rates ond inheresd
rabes for rinw loans,

Growth in advanced economies is expected to slow from 2.6%
in 2072 1o 1.5% in 2023 and 1.4% in 2024 o3 palicy lighlening
takes effect. Emerging market and developing sconomiss ane
projectad ko repor a modes growih decline from 4.1% in 2002
to 4.0% in 2023 ond 2024, Globol inflation Is expecied 1o
decline seadily brom B.7% in 2022 to 4.9% in 2023 and 5.8%
in 2024, due jo a fighier monelary policy aided by relatively
lwar itarnatianal commadity prices, Core inllafken decling is
expechad o be more gradual; inflathon |5 nob expecied o nefum
o targpat unfid 2025 0 most cases. The LIS Federal Resarve
approved o much-anticipated inlerest role hike that 1ook fhe
benchmark bormosing couts o thalr highest in mos than 22
PG,

Global trode in goods wos epecied o have declined neorly
UsD 2 triflion in 2023; rodw in services wos expected to hove
wxpanded L3S0 500 Billion, The cost of Brent crude ol overnged
LI5S0 &3 per bamel in 2023, down from LS00 per barmsl in
2022, with crude oil from Russio finding desfinations outside the
Ewrcpean Union and global crede ofl demand falling shon of
mEpachations,

Global eguity markets ended 2023 on a high note, with major
ighobol squity benchmarks delivering double-digil refums, This
outperformance was bed by a decline in global inflasion, slide in
the dollor index, declining crude and higher expeciotions of rote
culs b'r the U5 Fed ond other Central banks.

Regional grawth (%) 2022
Word oufput 3.1 3.5
Advonced economios - |.6% - 2.5
Emerging and develaping - 4.1 - 348
BCOAOMiES

iGousn: URCTAL, IMF)

Performance of major economies, 2023

United 3totes | Repared GDP growth of 2.5% in 2023
compared fo 1 9% n 2022

Chira GOF growth was 5.2% in 2023 compored o
3% In 2022

United GOP grew by 0.4% in 2023 compared fo

Kingdom 4. 3% in 222

Japan GOP greew 1.9% in 2023 unchanged from a

preliminary 1.9% in 2022
Garmany GOF confrocted by 0.3% in 2023 compared
1o |.8% in 2022
[Feursi; PR mport, 5T repan, IWF data, DECD cialg, Levwmin)

Cwtlook: Asia is expected to confinue 1o occount for the bulk of
ghobal growth in 2024-25. Inflation iz expacted to ease gradually
o8 cosf pressures moderole; headline inflation in G20 couniries
in wepeciad 1o decling. The global scansamy hat demansbated
resdlienice amid kigh inflakon ond manetary fightening, growth
oround previous kavels for the nest two pears

[Source; World Bank)

Indian economy

Crvarview: The Indian sconomy was sshimoted 1o grow 7.8% in
the 2023.24 fiscal againgt 7.2% in 2022-23 mainky on occoun
of the improved parformance in the mining and quorrying,
manufactixing and certain segments of the services sector. India
retained it position as the filth lorgest economy, The Indian nupes
disployad relofive mallience compared 1o the pravious yeor; the
rupess cpanad al TE2.68 against fhe U5 dallar on the first wading
day of 2023 and on December 27, was T83.35 verws the
greenback, o depreciation of 0.8%.

Inn FY 23.24, the CP inflation overeged 5,4% with rurl inflafien
axcoading urban inflofion, Lower production ond emofic weoather
lad 1o o spike in food inflofion. In contnost, come inflofien
cvaraged af 4.5%; o shamp decline from &.2% in FY 22-23. The
soflaning of global commedity prices led 1o o medenglicn in

con Inflatian,

The nation's bemign exchange reserves ochieved o historic
milestone, reaching US0 5456 Billion. The credit guality of
Indicn companies remained sirong between Oclober 2023 ond
March 2024 lollowing deleveraged Balonce Sheets, susbosned
domestic demand and govemment-led copital sxpenditure
Rafing vpgrodes continued o surpass rating downgrades in H2
FY 23-24, UP transoctions in Indio posied o record 546% rise in
volurma gnd 43% rise in volue in FY 23-24,
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Grawih of the Indlan scanamy

Y2l FY22 ma_

Real GOP =, 5% | 87 r2 82
grawih (%) l
Growth of the Indlan econemy quarter by guarter,
Ff 23-24

SLRETTED) -
Real GOP 8.2 |
growth (%)

[Bowres: Budgel Fr24; Economy Projecton, KRBl provectisns, Deceon Manld)

The FY Z3-24 growth in the sconcmy wos the highest since
FY 17, excluding the .7% post- Covid mbound In gross domestic
product (GDP) in FY 21-22 fram the 5.8% contrection in FY 20-
21,

India’s monsason lor 2023 hit o fiveyear bw, August wos the
driest manth in o century, From June 1o September, the country
received only 94% of its longdmm overoge minfll, Despite this
roality, whoa! production was expected 1o fouch a redoed 114
Million sonnes in the 2023.24 oop year on account of higher
cowerag e, Rice produchon wos expected fo decling fo reach 106
Million metric 1ons (MMT) compored with 132 Millon metic
tonngs in the previous yeor, Toll khoaf pulses production for
H023-24 wos estimated af 71,18 Lakh matric ionnes, lower than
tha previous year due bo climafic condifions,

A par the frst advance esimates of national income released by
the Mational Stofistical Office (NSO, the monufacturing sector
output was esfimoled jo grow 4.5% In 200324 compared io
1. 3% im 2022.23. The Indian maning sectar growdh was estimated
af B.1% in 2023-24 compared fo 4. 1% in 2022-23. Finoncial
services, real esfabe and professional services were estimated
b record a grn-'ﬂrﬂ'l of 8 9% in 2003.24 mmpu'ud jo 7. 1% in
P 22.23.

Real GOP ar GOP ot constant prices i 2023-24 was estimaled
af T171.7F Lakh Crore a3 agains the provitional GOP estimate
of 202223 of T140.06 Lakh Crore freleased on Moy 31, 2023).
Girovwth in real GOP during 2023-24 wos esfimoied of 7.3%
campared o 7.2% in 2072-23. Nominal GOP er GOP at current
prices i 2023 -24 wos estrated af £2946.58 Lakh Crose against
the provisionol 2022-23 GDP estimale of 272,41 Lakh Crome.
The gross ron-pedorming asset ratio for scheduled commarncial
banks dropped to 3.2% a: of September 2023, following o
decline from 3. 9% of the end of March 2023

India’s sxpors of goods and services were sxpected fouch USD
200 Billion in 2023-24 compared te USD 770 Billion In the
provicus year despite global heodwinds, Marchandise supors
s sapacind bo sxpond batwesn LISD 495 Billion ond LISD 500
Bilkion, while senvices sxports were expected o touch USD 400
Bilkion during the year. India"s et direct tox collection increcsed
19% o BD14.71 lokh Crom by Jonuary 2024, The gress
collsclion wot 24.58% higher than the gross collection for the
eomeapondng period of the previous year. Gross GST collecBon
of T20.2 Lokh Crom represensed on 11.7% increose; aweroge
menthly collection wes €1,48,000 Crom, surpossing the pravious
yoar's average of T1 50,000 Crone
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India reached a protal phote in M8 S.cures, chanacterised
by oceslaration in urbonisation, ndustialisction, housshold
incormas and energy consumplion. India emerged a3 the fifth
largest economy with o GOP of USD3.6 wllion and nominal per
capia income of INR 123,945 in 2023.24.

inchia’s Mifty 50 indey grew 30% In FY 23-24 and India’s shock
rorkat emenged o3 fhe world's fourth longest with o moarkes
capiialsation of US4 nillign. Fomign imvestiment In Indian
govemmant bonds jumped in the last thres months of 2023,
India was renked 43 omeng 190 sconomiss n the sase of dolng
business, sccording fo fhe loest Warld Bank anmeal rotiegs.
India’s unemgloyment declined 1o o fow of 3.2% in 2023 from
&, 1% in 2018,

Outlook: India withsinod global heodwinds in 2023 and is
likaly to ramain fhe world's fosfest-growing mojor sconomy on
tha back of growing demond, moderote inflotion, soble inems
rates and robust foreign exchange reserves. The Indian economy
b enticipoted 1o surpas USD 4 trillion in 202425,

Union Budget FY 24.25: The |nterim Union Budget 2034.25
refained s focus on capial expenditure spendng, compising
ivesimants In infrsstrociue, solar energy, fourisn, medical
ecovpstern ond fechnology, In 2024.25, the top 13 minisires in
terms ol allocohons occounted for 54% of the esfimoled fodal
mpandiure, OF these, the Minigiy of Defence repodied fhe
highest ollocotion of 76,21,.541 Crore, occounting for 13% of
the toial budgeted expendilere al the cental government. Other
minitiries with high allocotion induded Food fronspord and
hlng]'mupl (5.8%), Raibsoys (5.4%) ond Consumear Afgirs, foed
and public distribution (4.5%).

Fronrom: Tmat Paery Matwork, Economs Tomed, Buiinen Sondasd, Tires of
Irudas]

Global furniture market overview

The globol fumiture markel hos demonstroted growth, with
peojections indicofing confinumd axponsion. From 2023 to 2024,
it is sat to increose from USD 752.22 Billion 1o USD BOS.54
Ballion, o compound annual growth rote (CAGR] of 7.1% Despite
short-desm setbodks due fo the Russio-Ukmine conflict hindering
global sconomic mcovery, Including sconomic  sondlions,
increased commodity prices and supply chain disuptions, the
markat remained resibant.

On o global scole, the United Sigles leads in revenae, with o
projecied LSO 253 Billion expected in 3024, Foctoding in fotal
population figures, the per-peson revenus goneroled in 2004
overages oround USD 9888, Mearwhile, Ching's fumiture
market is witnesiing o surge in demand due to urbanisofion and
ncreasing disposable incomes.

The hemituee market is anficipated ko esperience mbust growlh
i the coming wears, reaching USD 104036 Blkon by 2028,
with o CAGR of &.8%. This projected growth is driven by several
fociors, incuding e odeption of flesible and mulfurcional
designs, a focus an susssinability and welines -oriented furritura,
axpansion in renbal markets and @ growing mbenes o luoiny
fumniture, Emerging rends such as smart fumiture, customisable
designs, rairo styles, biophilic design and spoce-saving solutions
ose shaping contumer praferences and driving innewation within
the industy.

Regianally, the Asa.Pacific region emernges as the market lader,
haasting a commanding 40. 1% share. This dominance s fuelad
by robust mandociuing bases in countries such as China and
India.

Furnibure manufaciureis ore odopling ougmanted reclity [AR)
techpologies a improve sales by aleeing soles repressniatives
1o showoose produch mone afecivaly ond ossisting cusiomerns in
maaking decisions. AR mobile apps |8l customens ploce virteal 30
furniture models in their rocms, offering them o comprabenaive
view ond anhoncing their thopping opeisnce. [Souncs:
reseorchandmarkels cavm,  grondviswresearch,  skafiss com,
rracthoat )

Indian furniture industry everview

The Indian furnitune industry, valued at USD 23 3 Billisn in 2021,
ia on a irjectory of seady growth, projecied bo reach LISD 35 9
Billion by 2028 with o compound annual growh mie [CAGR)
of 640% This axpanson meflecds the market's evolulan fram
basic fumiture 1o a diverse armay of intador fumishings, including
wurdrobes ond solas. Key drivers nclude the increasing demand
for madular ond confempeorary fumiture in whan amas, spered
by rsing urbanisation and o preference for durchble sealing
aptions, The thriving wood sachor in India plays o erucial rode in
managing production costs, further suppodting markel growih,

Adoptian of advanced technologies like the Internet of Things
[laT) by fumiire manufocturen sshances compatithaness. |al

services anchle copabilitas in design manogemant, pefarmeice
trocking, ond mainlenance, comnibuling o overall markes

devalopment, The highly competitive and frogmented nature of
the market sees srmanised players and multinational companies
giadually increasing e markel share, alongside the entry o
niew players due o kow eniry barmiers.

E-commerce bos revolutionsed furnitee  shopping, offwring
convenionce and globol reach, The surge in online shopping In
India Is axpacted 1o further boow digital fumilire soles. Dasa-
driven insights from e-commence plofforms empower refoilors fo
make informed decisions on product ossorimant, pricing, and
mekaling strofegies.

India"s vibront Burniture morked conbribobes ug'nl'ﬁ-;unﬂ'r 1o both
bscal consumpfion ond exports, suslained by o population of 1.4
Ballion ond o growing middle closs with increased disposable
income. Predicied to become the fifth-largest manufocturer and
foyrthdorgest hemiture consumer by 2022, Indip ronks 14% In
global fumiture gxporis, with projeciions indicofing o global
indusiry valus of USD B7 2.5 Bilicn by 2030, growing at o 4%
CAGR, [Source: imesclindio, com, ibef.ong)

Global furniture e-commerce industry
overview

The globe! e-commerce fumiture indusiry & sxpacied ‘o reach
USD 41 Bdlion by 2030, with on everage annual growth rate of
4.86% from 2023 1o 2030, The maost significant increase in onfing
fumniture sales is onscpoted in 2025, with millennicls smernging
a3 the most frequent online Rumiture shoppers, pariculardy for
orns like sclos, beds, and dining lobles. The avweroge crder value
for anling furniture purchowes slands o USD 500,

Infernofional glonts like Amozon ond Woyloir comast with
emnichonmel retolers in the online fumiture retil spoce. As
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economies  mbound from the pandemic, brdk.and-morkar
rirhailars offening dalivery or dick-and-collect sarvices ame ganing
irsction anline,

In s of shopping peeforences, In-slome shopping remaina
popular globally, fellewed closoly by eemnichannel options
Corvenlsncs i cfed os the primary reason for anline furniune
purchoses by opprocimaely half of surveyed ULS. shoppars, with
amund 34% maolivated by bewer peices. Globally, approsimately
ana-fifth of corsumen made monthly onlire purchases of homa
and garden product in 2023, (Source: sbarla.com, siolisis.com)

Indian plywoeod sector overview

The |ndia phewood market, valued ot 2222 3 Billian in FY 23.24,
it 48 b peach T372.5 Balion by FY 32.33, indicating o CAGE of
5 79 fram FY 2425 1o FY 32-33. Key deivers inchide expanding
distribution networdks, increased demand for lightweight and
sasy-lo-aisemble furniture and & surge in govemmant houling
and indrastructural peojects.

Market drivers

Construction boam: The thiving construction industy in India
is o major cotalyst, driven by phwood's growing wse In building
and indgrior design,

Furniture demand: Increasing demand fas furniture and hame
décor, coupled with rising disposable incames, is Fueling marks!
growth. Plywood, known for its versafility and durability, is a
prafemed cholos in fumiture opplicafion.

Gorgrnmant inifiotives: The Geveenmant of lndias facug an
infrotructune development and afferdable housing mnitotives &
becating plywood damand.

Emerging Irends: Foctors like eco-friendly building proctices,
o diverse ronge of plywcod grodes ond fhe ropid growth of
a-commarce contibute 1o o positive morket outlook,

Government policies and regulafiens: Govermnmment policies,
such os “Make in India,’ hove stimulsied domestic production,
buf sirict environmenial regulotions regarding wood hanvesting
and formaldehyde resin use pose challerges. Sirking o balance
between encouroging domestic production ond  ensuring
arviranrmental sustainability B crucial

Construction and fumiture industries: The plysood markedt
it linked to the pedormance of the consfruction and fumiture
industies. The high demand for housing ond miostrociunes
developmant, ditean by o rmpidly growing populakon and
uibanisaticn, directly bersfits the phwood indusig. The
flourishing real eslale sechar, with incressed corstruction of
commensa] and residential spoces, propels phwosd demand.
In the furndhere secter, tha rising preference lor modubar and
oesthatically appesling fumiture omong the maddla-clos
pepulation cortributes o increased plywood usage,

Teshnological advancements and innovation: Techrolegleal
odvancermants play @ vital rals in the plywood ndusing's growih
Adoption of modem morudociuning  fechnigues  enhances
product guality and varety. Inncvalions, such o5 woler-resisian
and fire-retordant phwood, sxpand application pessbiliies. The
incusing's incraosing odaplion of sco-fendly prodlices, liks wing
suskmnable moferials, abgns with smironmentolly conscious
consumer preferences.

Anuual Report 2023-24 | 75



-

Market trends

Consumer owareness: The growing oworeness omong
consumers obout quolity constnuction maolerials significandly
contributes fo phewood markoet growth,

Product innovatisn: Consumar prefenences ane shifting bowards
durable and eco-lrendly phywood products knoen for strength

and oesthetic appeal Innovative plywood hypes and sustainable
Forastny praciices enhance produc availability and diversity.

Distribufion svolution: The devalopment of reioll ond wholesale
disiribution networks, along with the intreasing use of online
plotforms, oooelerates the phywood morket’s growth in India.

Seurce: imaregreup.com, rprealtyplus, openpr.com)

Indian veneer market overview

bn the coming decade, demand for decorative vansers in India
i mpeted 1o grow by 4.2% anmually. The averall value in the
courdry is projected to increase from LSO 2497 Million 0 2023
bo LISD 3763 Million in 2033 The decorative veneer business
revanue in bndia i sat o expond by over 1.5 Smes wnid 2033,
with an expected 1.0% higher CAGR compared le beshoscal
Figures. This growth is diven by intreased demand lor venesrs
in applications like wall poneling, ceilings and fumiture, fusled
by population growth and a rising need for residential tems, In
the forecast period, West Indio iy expecied bo leod the dacorathe
vanser businass, holding arcund 30% share in 2033, [Source:
futuremarketinsighls. com)

Indian flush door segment overview

Flush doges offer 0 more budget-frendly ollemative comparnsd
to traditional wooden doors and come with variovs odwanloges,
including resistonce fo staing, scroiches, domoge, kermifes and
ooy mainfanance, Thesa features ore antizipated to booat the
demand for flush dooes in both residentiol ond commercial
construclion projects. Thers ore different fypes of Bush doors
avoilable, sech o3 lominoied flush doors, hollow com fush doors
and callular core Aush doorm.

fn the period from 2027 to 2029 the Asia Pocific region,
with major contributions from India and China, is expecied o
dominale the flush door marke!. The growth of the flush doos
market in this region is obidbuted to the ropid development of
infrostruciune, [Source: fodunabusinessinsights. com)

Growth drivers

Digital technologies: From smart humiture 1o 30 printing,
technology s ollowing fumiture monufoctenerss to creals
pieces that o nol onfy beoutilul but obo fumctionol and user-
Friendly, With the use of fechnology, humiture s becoming
more susioinable, duroble and odoploble fo consumaer’s noeds,
Sounce: fututredesignindio.com)

Rizsing population: The demond for plywood i Indio is legely
Fueled by fhe residenfiol sector, which is experiencing growth due
fo the country's Increasing population. With o population of 1.44
Bilkeon peopls, Indio surpassed China in 2024 1o become the
rical populous country in Bhe world. (Sounce: linkedin com)

Increase in nuchear families: India sees o significant rise in
nuclear families, comprizing 50% of all howssholds notionwide.
Tha souiham region lsods with 49% nuclear heussholds, while
the northem, eassern and western reglorns stond at 38%, 45%
and 49% respeciively. Ower the poat 14 yeams, three-fourths
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of newly added households have been Aeclear. [Sounce:
thehandubiesi resaline com)

Sustainability: This trend is poised to unleck promising avanues
for future growth while driving dewn anargy axpanses significantly,
Addaionolly, oveling conmumar peslorences ond purchasing
behwrviours are tesring furnitue menufochuren lowards digital
plafiorms  for sales, prompling heighterad invesimants in
e-commerce solutions. This shift s sccompanied by the sdopsion
of cutling-edge CGI and AR technologies to endch the online

shopping joumey. (Source: suramaniled

Urbanisafion: The increasing urbenisofion ghobally has spured
more construction projects, with o greater emphasis on creating
buildings thot can endure nofurol disosters such os eothquokes,
Az o result, them's boen o notoble riso in investments in plwood,
volund for its strergih ond Hexibility. Mumarous componins and
residentiol oreos one opting for plywood fo guoranies the stobiliay
and safety of thedr structures. Bource; futwremarketinsights.com)

Change in consumer prefarance: Shilling consumes preferences
within the plywood industry bove sparked o mowemen! fowand
the organised segment, fusled by o growing desire for superiar
quality and bronded products. This shift is expected 1o leed 10 o
further increase in the market share of orgonised players in the

plpwood indusiry in the coming yeors [Sowce: Times of ndig,
scribd. com)

Emergence of new market ployers: The phwood market
in the Asia Pacific region is projectad to taks the lsad, fusled
by escalafing demand fer solweed phwood in construction
senhures. This grewth sunge is cradited o sevesal lackars, including
the upswing in infrastructure projects, seift mdustrialization and
a significant porion of fumiture production within the region.
[Souree: futuremarketimaignis, linkedin.com, |

Dermand for interior design: The scpanson of the Inlerder
design and fumBure secton & propelling the phweed market
foreard. These industiies ore progressively fovodsing plywood
ovar row wood, relling in heightered plywood willsssion in
houssholds, Phesood's versalibly, suioble for divarse applications
Mo paaker conenction, coupled with ils cest-soving advonieges
semming from mimimal woste produchion ond superior dunobility
compared to porfice board ond MDF board, are fueling its
growing odoption, (Source: futuremarkesinsights)

SWOT analysis

Sirengths
*  The Company boosbs an edensve distibution netwerk
sponning ocross India, focilifafing occess 1o a vasi cusiomer

demogrophic.

*  The Company provides o vonety of plywood types to meet
tha divvrsn raeds of tha markat

= Distibution system of the Company guoranbess widespreasd
availobility and convenient aocess 1o their products for

customers,

= The Company's brand s iimly established and maindesns a
dominant market posiion as o lesdsr in the Morbaem Indion
oM.

= The skralegic posifoning of the Compamy’s manulociuring
focility provides o compatitive adge in fulflling the demaonds
and requirements of thedr forget marked,

*  The Company benelits fram a compatitive advanbage due ba
e signilicant barrecs 1o aniry in B ndusse

Weaknosses

= The Compony corlends with comgpefition from less
estoblishod or orgonised fims.

= Fluchealions in row molenal prices and resource availakslity
iy affect the Company’s operations,

* A surplus of the Compony’s products could advansly aflect
i financial perarmancs.

Opportunities
= The orgonised secior's morkel for wood ponel products is
growing boster than the unorganised sedor.

Corporate Overview [EESIFIRT o @ NS0y Financial Statements

*  The national per capila incadms of the country 4 incnsasing.

*  Indis has a higher perceniage ol its populason balonging io
the millennial gareration compored fo the global average.

=  The odoplion of G5T has hovlened the growih of bndio’s
organised fumiture indusiry,
Threats

+  |ndion unomanised plywood monufocturers may opt 1o
lowar thalr product prices, polenBolly impocing maordked
i paiton,

*  Expart restnictions could be Imposed on fimbar-rich counfries.,
*  Row moterial costs may continue on an upword growth path.

Details of significant changes in the key financial ratios

In occordance with the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, os omended, dedolls of significant
changes {chonge of 25% or more o compared to the immediotaly previcus Bnanciol yeor) in key finonciol ratios ard any chenges in
Raturn on Mat warth of the Company including ssplonations thesec! are given balow:

Ratio | vorch 2024 ISR EY % change*
Curnent mfio | .41 | 100 39.60
Dabt squity rotia 03| 0.43 -25.58
Debt service caverage ratio 113 | 1.52 -25.66
Ratumn on squity 0.01 | 0.06 B3.33
Ivmniory tumover iotic 347 | 377, -7.96
Trode receivablas hurnover rafia 1022 1242 -17.71
Trode payobles umover rafic 375 | 415 .64
Hat copital umovar ralia 1237 | 27.28 | 2843
Mat profit ratic - | 0.02 | -100.00
_Return on capital employed 0.05 0.12! -58.33
* For chonge of mose than 25% refer Bolonce Sheet Mote Mo 39

Company overview Business risk management

Duroply Indusivies. Limited (DI & o repuloble plywood
manufacturer based in India, running o production facility for
phywood and related praduets in Rajkat, Gujerat. The DURD
praduct line from the Company is gaining popularity amang
cuslomers, due bo ity innowalive design, shalled cra®smanship and
outthanding cusbomer sarice,

Company's financial performance

Dluring the year undar review, the Company generoted o revamnue
ol 832267 Crome compared 1o T302.34 Crore in the previous
year, o grnw‘lh-nfﬁ.m Howesar, tha f:mp-unyunrmd a nad
profit of ¥1.00 Crore, os compored fo a nat prohit of 25,23 Crore
m the pravious year,

Effeciive risk manogement is o cucial element for any business,
Establishing a thaeough risk managemeant nemework s essantial
for orgonsations to sccessfully address and reduce risks,
ensuring uninterupted business opemBiors. A well-designed
risk manogament syshem contributes fo minimising unexpectad
chaollengas, enbomcing service quality, peooctively hamdling
changes, sourcing ressurces ¥, opfimiting resounoe
dilisalan, preventing losses and reducing waste. Duroply
Indimtries Lirmited has implarmented a streng rek manageman
process, subgact ko megular review by the Board of Directars
o evaluale B eficocy. This process enhails osssssing sk
ossocioted with diverse business octhvities and implementing
efficient siredegies o mitlgate their impoct.
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Rizks and Concerns
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Competition rzk: |nerecied
compefiion could lead o o
decreose  in  the Compony's
market share.

Product rsk: The Compony
could foce o sconario whom it
products bosa redevanca, msuliing
in o downhurn in business, an
occumulotion of exorss inenlony
and o decrease in revenoes.

Fnance ritk:  [Inadequate
fincncial monagemsnt by the
Compary could odversely offact
the sustainability of #s operotions.

Quality risk: Poor product
guality could significantly impair
boith pru-:hu:l' sales ond brand
imoge.

Distribution risk: A daficient
distibution  matwork  could
pbstruct the Company's obifity to
sxpand googrophically.

Demand rtk: Thers & a risk
thet emarging product demand
iy ot mslerialise the woy once
forecohed.

People risk: The Company might
sruggle fo otfroct or refoin skilled
prodesglonaly.

Imnovation risk: The Company
risks brand erosion i it fallk to
imreale and  nlreduce  new

prosiuchs,

Mifigation: Duroply benelits kom a robust distribition mebwork and a diverse produd
poitlalio sponning phyeood, venesrs and doors, focildating exdernive markel penstraSion
Emghoss on produect quality and innovetion is anficipated fo dive growih throusghout the
market cycle,

Miigation: In croffing iy preducts, Duroply not only considers present trends but olso
enicipoies future ones: The Compoany pricsitses foclors such o5 product wsability, quality,
aasiheiic appeal and the volus proposifion pricing ofar,

Mitigation: With the help of a robust receivable and poyable manogement mechanism,
Dureplys cash and liguid irvesiment pesilian ax on March 31, 2024 sead ol B0L79 Crors,
ensuring an oplimal financial sobility. Moreover, The Compoany also benedits from o deb-
serdca rofio of 1.13 and a healthy interest cover of 1.58:

Mitigation: The Compary operabes stote-of-the-ar facilfties %o manulocture high-gualing
products, aiming fo maximlze rescurce ufilisofion and minimise wostoge.

Mifigotion: [Duroply hos declers, disfribuios ond  retailes spreod  throughout India,
coninbuting fo o robust logistics infrosiruciune that anables swilt response fo customa  needs.

Mifigafion: Each praduct segmend ofiered by the Company was chossn due o ibs ralaibely
unbapped demand, which has steadily espanded over time. The Company spacialees in a
praduct mis poised 1o become increasingly relewant in a theiving Indian market

Mitigotion; Ducpd stonds oit s o fop employer in it Induséry, boasting the highest
iclent refention rote within i secior, The Company provides unpoofleled avenues for both
prefassional odvoncomant and parsenal growth, saiting ihe stondond for cppariunities within
its fiald

Mifigahion: The Compony's BED lsam conusently launchas new proaduch, imdgonafing
iroe chanmals and keaping end consumen anpogad,

Corporate Overview
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Annexure—-3

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION

Part A: Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
[Read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

HIJI'!'IEI'I ressources !'I'IHI'I:IEEI'I'I*I'I"

The Compory emphosises the significonce of it werddorce’s
quality in ochigving success ond is commitiad to eguipping them
with the essenfiol skills and nowledge required 1o keep poce with
technotogical advancements. Throughaut 1he yeor, the Company
fostered positive miotionships with #s employess, conceninofing
on dnhuuﬂng I'mlnlng and opporiunifios for glcll d-n-.'\n|npmlnr
he ossist them in novigoting the evahing work londscops. As of
March 31, 2024, the Company's permanent employes count
wos 538,
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Cautionary statement

Certoin siofoments in this Manogement Discussion and Analysis,
describing the Company's objeciives, outleck ond sxpeciotions,
mary consfitule “forward-looking shofements™ within the meoning
of opplicable bows ond regulations. Actual resuls moy differ
materially from fose agpressed or implied, Severol fociors make
o significant difference to the Compam’s operations, including
chimofic condifions, sconomic scenario offecting demand and
supply, Goremmant regulofions, toaofion, rotunal colomity ond
such other foctors over which the Company does not hove any
direct condrol,

Requirement of Rule 5(1) Details
(i) The ratio of each Director to the median | Independent Directors
remuneration of the employees of the Company | Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri N.A.
for the financial year 2023-24 Shri Sujit Chakravorti N.A.
Shri Probir Roy N.A.
Shri Ratan Lal Gaggar N.A.
Smt Suparna Chakrabortti* N.A.
Shri Arun Kumar Singhania* N.A.
Shri Kulvin Suri** N.A.
Non-Executive Directors
Shri Vinay Agarwal N.A.
Executive Directors
Shri Sudeep Chitlangia 16.22%
Shri Akhilesh Chitlangia 10.60%
(it) The percentage increase in remuneration of | Independent Directors
each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief | Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri N.A.
Executive Officer (MD), Company Secretary or | Shri Sujit Chakravorti N.A.
Manager, if any, in the financial year 2023-24 Shri Probir Roy N.A.
Shri Ratan Lal Gaggar N.A.
Smt Suparna Chakrabortti N.A.
Shri Arun Kumar Singhania N.A.
Shri Kulvin Suri N.A.
Non-Executive Directors N.A.
Shri Vinay Agarwal N.A.
Executive Director N.A.
Shri Sudeep Chitlangia# (Managing Director) 15.48%
Shri Akhilesh Chitlangia## (Executive Director & | 14.26%
CO0)
Chief Financial Officer
Shri Pawan Kumar Verma 12.11%
Company Secretary
Smt. Komal Dhruv 13.04%
(iit) The percentage increase in the median | 11.92%

remuneration of employees in the financial year

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the

rolls of the Company

538 permanent employees as on March 31, 2024

(v) Average percentile increase already made in the
salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its
comparison with the percentile increase in
the managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial

remuneration

As per Company’s increment guidelines

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the Company

Remuneration paid during the year ended March 31, 2024 is as
per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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Note: 1) Sitting Fees paid to the Independent Directors is not considered as remuneration paid to the Independent
Directors.

* Appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. May 19, 2023

** Appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. February 13, 2024
# Re-designated as Executive Chairman w.e.f. April 01, 2024
## Re-designated as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. April 01, 2024

Part B: Statement of Disclosure pursuant to Section 197(12) of Companies Act, 2013
[Read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Names of Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the Financial Year 2023-2024:

Sl. | Name Designation Remuneration | Qualification Total Date of Age | Last employment
No. Received () years of | commencement
Experience | of employment
1 | Sudeep Chitlangia | Managing Director 85,68,097 B.Com 36 27-05-1988 57 |Nil
2 | Akhilesh Executive Director 56,02,040 B.Sc. BA. 14 01-07-2010 35 | Nil
Chitlangia & COO
3 | Devesh Ahluwalia | Vice- President Sales 51,28,836 B.Sc., PGDBM 32 03-07-2014 56 | Sheela Foam Pvt. Ltd.
4 | Abhishek Vice- President (Mfg) 39,89,999 BBA, B.Sc 8 01-04-2017 31 | Bain & Company
Chitlangia (Eng)
5 | Shashank Hissaria | General Manager 38,37,504 B.Com. 35 15-12-1988 54 | Nil
6 | Harender Verma | Dy General Manager- 37,04,268 M.Sc., MBA 26 26-09-2015 52 | Lafarge India Pvt. Ltd.
Sales
7 | Pawan Kumar Chief Financial 31,62,863 B.Com., ACA 16 18-12-2008 43 | Reliance Retail Ltd.
Verma Officer
8 | A Srinivas Deputy General 28,07,254 MBA(Sales & 26 09-10-2013 51 |HIL L'TD, (Formerly
Manager-Sales Marketing) Hyderabad Industries
Limited), C.K.Birla
Group
9 | Prakash Kumar General Manager 26,92,308 B.com 31 01-04-2022 53 | Pallorbund Tea Litd
Agarwal
10 | Sushil Tyagi Assistant General 25,81,380 B.A. 28 01-07-1996 55 |Nil
Manager - Sales
Registered Office: For and on behalf of the Board
9, Parsee Church Street,
Kolkata — 700001
AKHILESH CHITLANGIA SUPARNA CHAKRABORTTI
Date: May 17, 2024 Managing Director & CEO Director

Place: Kolkata
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(DIN: 03120474)

(DIN:: 07090308)

a)

b)
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Annexure-4

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration Policy for Non Executive

Directors/ Independent Directors

Levels of remuneration to directors are determined
such that they attract, retain and motivate directors
of the quality and ability required to run the
Company successfully. With changes in the corporate
governance norms, the role of the Non-Executive
Directors (NEDs) and the degree and quality of their
engagement with the Board and the Company has
undergone significant changes over a period of time.

Under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements)  Regulations, 2015
referred to as the “Listing Regulations”), every
company to publish its criteria of making payments to
NEDs in its Annual Report. Alternatively, this may be
put up on the Company’s website and reference may
be drawn thereto in its Annual Report. Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations
require the prior approval of the shareholders of a

(hereinafter

Company for making payment to its NEDs.

Further,inordertobe consistentwith globallyaccepted
governance practices, the company has ushered in
flexibility in respect of payment of remuneration to
NEDs. It has linked the remuneration paid to NEDs
to their attendance at the meetings of the Board
or Committees thereof, their contributions at the
meetings or otherwise, and on their position in various
Committees of the Board, whether as the Chairman or
Member.

All board level compensation (including to the
NEDs) is approved by the shareholders and disclosed
separately in the financial statements. Appropriate
disclosures are also made in the Annual Report of the
company. The board approves the commission paid to
the directors.

In addition, the company also pays a sitting fee on a per
meeting basis to the NEDs for attending the meetings
of the board and other committees.

Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directors
has been formulated, considering the following key
principles including but not limited to the basic
principle to have long term relationship with the
Company:

Key Principles:

Linked to strategy: A substantial portion of the
Executive Director’s remuneration is linked

to success in developing and implementing the
Company’s strategy.

e Performance related: A part of the total
remuneration varies with performance,
aligning with the shareholder’s interest.

e Long term: The structure of remuneration is
designed to reflect the long term nature of the
Company and significance of the protection of
interest of the shareholders.

e Fair treatment: Total overall remuneration takes
account of both the external market and
Company’s condition to achieve a balanced
“fair outcome”.

Elements of the Remuneration structure of
Executive Directors:

The remuneration to key managerial personnel shall
include:

e Fixed Salary
e Perquisites and Allowances
o Other benefits in accordance with the market

practice and industry analysis.

Annual remuneration reviews shall be based on

individual performance, Company Performance,

market environment and future plans.

The remuneration to any one Managing Director or
Whole Time Director or Manager shall not exceed five
percent of the net profits of the Company and if there
is more than one such director total remuneration
shall not exceed ten percent of the net profits of the
Company to all such directors and Manager together.
The total remuneration to its directors, including
Managing Director and Whole-time Director, and
its Manager in respect of any financial year shall
not exceed eleven percent of the net profits of that
financial year.

In case of no profits, or inadequate profits, the
Company shall pay remuneration to its Managing or
Whole-time Director or Manager in accordance with
the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act
2013.
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c) Remuneration Policy for Key Managerial

Personnel (KMP)

The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnels of
the Company i.e. Managing Director/Chief Executive
Officer/ Whole Time Director, Company Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer as defined under Companies
Act, 2013 read with related rules issued thereon, will
be fixed after taking into account educational and
professional qualification, experience & expertise of
the personnel and the competitive market practices.

Key Principles:

e Remuneration should be sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate best non-executive talent suits to the
requirement of the Company.

e Remuneration practice should be consistent with
the recognized best standard practices for Key
Managerial Personnel’s.

Elements of the Remuneration structure of
KMP’s:

The remuneration to key managerial personnel shall
include:

e Fixed salary

e Perquisites and Allowances

o (Other benefits in accordance with the market
practice

Annual remuneration reviews shall be based on
individual performance, Company Performance,
market environment and future plans.
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d) Remuneration Policy for Senior Management

Personnel and other Executives:

The remuneration to Senior Management personnel
shall be fixed considering internal, external and
individual equity; and also procedural equity.

Remuneration to Senior Management Personnel shall
include —

e Fixed Salary
e Perquisites and Allowances

e Other benefits in accordance with the market
practice

Annual remuneration reviews shall be based on
individual performance, Company Performance,
market environment and future plans.

Corporate Overview [EENIFIGSa@NGO Financial Statements

Annexure-5

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company’s philosophy on corporate governance is based on trusteeship, transparency, accountability and ethical corporate
citizenship. As a responsible corporate citizen, our business fosters a culture of ethical behavior and disclosures aimed
at building trust of our stakeholders. The Company recognizes that the enhancement of corporate governance is one of
the most important aspects in terms of achieving the Company’s goal of enhancing corporate value by deepening societal
trust.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company has an optimal balance of skill, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives on its Board, suited to
the requirements of the businesses of the Company. The Composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2024
is in conformity with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(1) of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing
Regulations”).

Composition
As on March 31, 2024 the Board comprises of 10 (ten) Directors, of which 7 (seven) are Independent Directors.
The composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2024, the number of other committees of which a Director is

a Member/Chairperson and the attendance of each director at the Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the Company were as follows:

Name of Directors DIN Category of the No. of | Attendance No. of Board Committee#
Directors Board at last positions including this listed
Meetings | AGM on entity
attended | 11.08.2023 Member Chairman

Shri Sudeep Chitlangia 00093908 | Promoter, Executive 5 Yes 1 -

(Managing Director) **

Shri Akhilesh Chitlangia | 03120474 |Promoter, Executive 5 Yes - -

(Executive Director &

COO)**

Dr. Kali Kumar 00206157 | Independent Non- 4 No 4 1

Chaudhuri* Executive

Shri Probir Roy* 00033045 |Independent Non- 5 Yes 7 3
Executive

Shri Ratan Lal Gaggar® 00066068 | Independent Non- 1 No 3 1
Executive

Shri Sujit Chakravorti™® 00066344 | Independent Non- 3 Yes 4 3
Executive

Shri Arun Kumar 00160194 | Independent Non- 3 Yes 1 1

Singhania@ Executive

Smt Suparna 07090308 | Independent Non- 4 Yes 3 -

Chakrabortti@ Executive

Shri Kulvin Suri# 03640464 | Independent Non- 1 NA - -
Executive

Shri Vinay Agarwal 06431086 | Non- Independent 3 Yes 1 -
Non-Executive

# Includes Audit Commuttee and Stakeholders Relationship Commuittee in both listed and unlisted public companies

* Second term of Independent Directors completed on March 31, 2024.

**Shri Sudeep Chitlangia re-designated as the Executive Chairman and Shri Akhilesh Chitlangia as the Managing Director & CEO of
the Company w.e.f. April 1,2024

@ Appointed w.e.f. May 19, 2023

#Appointed w.e.f. February 13, 2024
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As required under Para C (2) of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations, following are the number of other directorships
and the names of the listed entities where the Directors of the Company are also a Director and the category of their

directorships therein:

Name of Director No. of Directorships Name of the Listed entities in which the Category of
including the concerned Director is a Director Directorship
Company**
Shri Sudeep Chitlangia 1 - -
Shri Akhilesh Chitlangia 1 - -
Dr. Kali Kumar 4 Manaksia Limited Independent Director
Chaudhuri Manaksia Steels Limited Independent Director
Shri Probir Roy 6 Industrial and Prudential Investment Co. Ltd. | Independent Director
Century Plyboards (India) Ltd. Independent Director
Shri Sujit Chakravorti 4 Deepak Industries Limited Independent Director
WEBFIL Limited Independent Director
Shri Ratan Lal Gaggar 5 International Combustion (India) Limited Independent Director
Shri Arun Kumar Singhania 2 - _
Smt Suparna Rydak Syndicate Limited Independent Director
Chakrabortti Dhelakhat Tea Co. Ltd Independent Director
La Opala RG Limited Independent Director
Shri Kulvin Suri 3 - -
Shri Vinay Agarwal 1 - -

**Foreign Companies, Private Companies and Companies
under Section 8§ of the Companies Act, 2013 are excluded
for the above purpose.

There 1s no inter-se relationship among the other
Directors of the Company. In terms of Regulation 25(8)
of the Listing Regulations, Independent Directors have
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or
situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated,
that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their
duties with an objective of independent judgement and
without any external influence. Based on the declarations
received from the Independent Directors, the Board
of Directors have confirmed that all the Independent
Directors meet the criteria of independence as mentioned
under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that
they are independent of the management.

Board meetings held during the financial year ended
March 31, 2024

During the financial year five Board Meetings were held
on May 19, 2023, August 03, 2023, November 07, 2023,
February 13, 2024 and February 14, 2024.

Information placed before the Board of Directors

As required under the Regulation 17(7) read with Part — A
of Schedule-II of Listing Regulations, all the information
were placed before the Board.

Code of Conduct
The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted
a Code of Conduct for the Directors, Key Managerial
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Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of the
Company. The said Code of Conduct of the Company has
been uploaded on the website of the Company and can be
accessed at www.duroply.in.

Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading
by Designated Persons and Code of Practices and
Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished
Price Sensitive Information

As per the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended, your Company
has adopted a ‘Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor
and report trading by Designated Persons’. This Code
is applicable to all the Promoters, Directors and such
other persons defined as designated persons and to their
immediate relatives as well.

The Code is available on the website of the Company
www.duroply.in. The Company Secretary of the Company
acts as the Compliance Officer for the purpose of the
aforesaid Code to inter-alia, monitor the adherence of PI'T
Regulations.

The Company has adopted a Code of Practices and
Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information. This Code lays down principles
and practices to be followed by the Company with respect
to adequate and timely disclosure of unpublished price
sensitive information. This Code is available on the
website of the Company www.duroply.in.

As per the above Code, Mrs. Komal Dhruv is the Chief
Investor Relations Officer.

Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors

Shri Arun Kumar Singhania and Shri Vinay Agarwal hold
17,000 and 25,726 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each of the
Company as on March 31, 2024 respectively.

Independent Directors Meeting

Duringtheyear, the Independent Directors of the Company
met separately on February 13, 2024, without the presence
of other directors or management representatives, to
review the performance of non-independent directors
and the performance of the Board as whole and to assess
the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
between the management and the Board.

Details of Familiarisation Programmes imparted to
Independent Directors

Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations,
the Company should familiarise the Independent
Directors through various programs about the Company.
The Company has familiarisation programme for
Independent Directors with regard to their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in
which the Company operates, the business model of the
Company etc. During the year, senior management team
has from time to time made presentations to Independent
Directors giving an overview of the Company’s operations,

Corporate Overview EENIFIGS@NCOa Financial Statements

function, strategy and risk management plan of the
Company. The details of familiarisation programme
imparted to the Independent Directors during the year are
available on the website of the Company at the web-link
at  https://duroply.in/investor/document/familiarization-
programmes-imparted-to-independent-directors

Skill/Expertise/Competencies of the Board of
Directors

The Following is the list of core skills/ expertise/
competencies identified by the Board of Directors as
required in the context of the company’s business and that
the said skills are available with the Board Members:

I. Experience in and knowledge of the industries in
which company operates.

II. Behavior Skills — The attributes and competencies
enabling individual Board Member to use their
knowledge and skill to function well as team member
and to interact with the key stakeholders.

III. Financial and management skill

IV. Technical/professional skills and specialist knowledge
to assist with ongoing aspects of the board’s role.

V. Business Strategy, Sales, & Marketing, Corporate

Governance, Forex Management, Administration,
Decision Making.

In the table below, the specific areas of focus or expertise of individual board members have been highlighted. However, the
absence of a mark against a member’s name does not necessarily mean the member does not possess the corresponding

qualification or skills:

Area Name of Directors
¢ Shri Shri Shri Shri Shri Dr. Kali Shri Arun Smt. Shri Shri
o
Sudeep Akhilesh | Probir Ratan Sujit Kumar Kumar Suparna Vinay Kulvin
Expertise Chitlangia | Chitlangia | Roy Lal Chakravorti Chaudhuri Singhania | Chakrabortti | Agarwal Suri
Gaggar

Industry
knowledge/ v v v v v v v v v
experience
Technical
skills/ v v v v v v v v v
experience
Behavioural
competencies/ v v v v v v v v v
personal
attributes
Strategic

& v v v v v v v v v
expertise
Financial v v v v v v v v v
expertise
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
Composition of the Committee

The Audit Committee has been constituted by Board in
accordance with the section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The
Audit Committee comprises of three Non-Executive
Directors, all of whom are Independent Directors.

The names of the members of the Committee are Shri Sujit
Chakravorti (Chairman of the Committee), Shri Probir
Roy and Shri Arun Kumar Singhania. Further, owing to the
tenure completion of the existing Independent directors
on March 31, 2024 the committee has been reconstituted
with effect from April 1, 2024. Present members of the
committee are as follows — Shri Arun Kumar Singhania
(Chairman of the Committee), Shri Kulvin Suri and Smt
Suparna Chakrabortti. The Executive Directors, the
Statutory Auditors and the Chief Internal Auditor are
amongst the permanent invitees to the Audit Committee
meeting. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to
the Committee.

Terms of Reference

L To review the Company’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement
is correct, sufficient and credible.

IL To review the annual financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon before submission to the
board for approval, with particular reference to:

¢ Mattersrequired to be included in the director’s
responsibility statement to be included in the
board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-
section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013;

* Changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same;

* Major accounting entries involving estimates
based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

¢ Significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

* Compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial statements;

¢ Disclosure of any Related Party Transactions;

* Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

II1. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration
and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company;

V. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any

other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

V. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly
financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval;
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Reviewing with the management, the statement of
users/application of funds raised through an issue
(public 1ssue, rights issue, preferential issue,
etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes
other than those stated in the offer document /
prospectus/ notice and the report submitted by
the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization
of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making
appropriate recommendations to the board to take
up steps in this matter;

Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s
independence and performance, and effectiveness
of audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the Company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the
Company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance
of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function,
if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant
findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or
a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the board,

Discussion with statutory auditors before the
audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain
any area of concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends) and creditors;

To review the functioning of the whistle blower
mechanism;

Approval of appointment of chief financial officer
after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

XX The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review
the following information:
* management discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of operations;

* management letters / letters of internal control
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

* internal audit reports relating to internal
control weaknesses; and

e the appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall
be subject to review by the audit committee.

e statement of deviations: quarterly statement
of deviation(s) including report of monitoring
agency, if applicable, submitted to stock
exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) and
annual statement of funds utilized for purposes
other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

¢ it should also review (as and when it becomes
applicable) the utilization of loans and/ or
advances from/investment by the holding
company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100
crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary,
whichever is lower including existing loans /
advances / investments existing as on the date.

Audit Committee Meetings held during the year
ended March 31, 2024

During the year under review, four Audit Committee
Meetings were held on May 19, 2023, August 03, 2023,
November 07, 2023 and February 13, 2024.

Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings

Name of Director No. of No. of

Meetings Meetings

held attended

Shri Sujit Chakravorti 4 3
Shri Ratan Lal Gaggar™® 1 -
Shri Probir Roy 4 4
Shri Arun Kumar 3 2
Singhania™®

* Shri Arun Kumar Singhania was appointed as a member
of the committee with effect from August 3, 2023 in place
of Shri Ratan Lal Gaggar.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition of the Committee

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has been
constituted by Board in accordance with the section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the
Listing Regulations. The Nomination & Remuneration
Committee comprises of three Non-Executive Directors,
two of whom are Independent Directors.
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The names of the members of the Committee are

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri (Chairman of the Committee),
Shri Vinay Agarwal and Smt Suparna Chakrabortti.
Further, owing to the tenure completion of the existing
Independent directors on March 31, 2024, Shri Kulvin
Suri is appointed as the Chairman of the Committee in
place of Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri with effect from April
1, 2024. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to
the Committee.

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the Committee as specified
in Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of the
Listing Regulations, are as follows:

I.  Formulation of the criteria for  determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommend to the Board of
Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of
the Directors;

II.  Evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board and on the basis of such
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and
capabilities required of an independent director.
The person recommended to the Board for
appointment as an independent director shall have
the capabilities identified in such description.
For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates,
the Committee may use the services of an external
agencies, if required, consider candidates from
a wide range of backgrounds having due regard to
diversity and consider the time commitments of the
candidates.

III. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance
of Independent Directors and the board of directors;

IV. Devising a policy on diversity of the board of
directors;

V. Identifying persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria  laid
down, and recommend to the Board of Directors
their appointment and removal.

VI. Whether to extend or continue the term of
appointment of the Independent Director, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of
Independent Directors.

VII. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to senior management.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meeting
held during the year ended March 31, 2024

During the year under review, two Nomination &
Remuneration Committee Meetings were held on May 19,
2023, and February 13, 2024.
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Attendance at the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee Meeting

Name of Director No. of No. of
Meetings Meetings
held attended
Dr. Kali Kumar 2 2
Chaudhuri
Shri Ratan Lal Gaggar* 1 -
Shri Sujit Chakravorti* 1 1
Shri Vinay Agarwal* 1 -
Smt Suparna 1 1
Chakrabortti*

* Shri Vinay Agarwal and Smt Suparna Chakrabortti were
appointed as member of the committee with effect from
August 3, 2023 in place of Shri Ratan Lal Gaggar and Shri
Sujit Chakravorti.

Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent
Directors

The following are the evaluation criteria for the
Performance evaluation of the Independent Directors.

- Compliance with Articles of Association, Companies
Act & other laws

- Compliance with ethical standards & code of conduct of
Company

- Assistance in implementing corporate governance
practices

- Rendering independent, unbiased opinion

- Attendance & presence in meetings of Board &
committees

- Attendance & presence in general meetings
- Disclosure of independence, if exists

- Review of integrity of financial information & risk
management

- Safeguard of stakeholders’ interests

- Updation of skills and knowledge (Awareness program
through presentation at the Board and Committee
meetings)

- Information regarding external environment

- Raising of concerns to the Board

- Safeguarding interest of whistle blowers under vigil
mechanism

- Reporting of frauds, violation etc.

- Safeguard of confidential information

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and as per requirement of Regulation 17(10) of the
Listing Regulations, the Board has adopted the criteria
for evaluation of its own performance, its committees and
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individual directors and carried out the required annual
evaluation.

In respect of each of the evaluation factors, various aspects
covering general parameters in respect of all the directors
and its committees have been considered and set out in
the Performance Evaluation Policy in accordance with
their respective functions and duties.

Self-appraisal by the directors, based on their delegated
specific responsibilities has also been carried out.

Further, the Independent directors have evaluated the
performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board
of Directors as a whole as per requirement of Regulation
25 (3) & (4) of the Listing Regulations.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee had also
evaluated performance of each of the Directors based on
the aforesaid evaluation factors.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Particulars of senior management including the
changes therein since the close of the previous year-
- Sudeep Chitlangia — Executive Chairman
(w.e.f Ist April, 2024)
- Akhilesh Chitlangia — Managing Director & CEO
(w.e.f Ist April, 2024)
- Abhishek Chitlangia — President, Manufacturing
(w.e.f 17th May, 2024)
- Devesh Ahluwalia — Vice President, Sales
(Upto 21st May, 2024)
- Dippaman Samanta — Sr. Vice President, Sales
(w.e.f 2nd May, 2024)
- Shashank Hissaria — General Manager
- Pawan Kumar Verma — Chief Financial Officer

- Komal Dhruv — Company Secretary
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Pecuniary Relationship of Non-Executive Directors

The Company has no pecuniaryrelationship or transactions
of the Non-Executive and Independent Directors other
than payment of sitting fees to them for attending Board
and committee meetings.

Criteria of making payments to the Non-Executive
Directors are disclosed in the Policy and the same is
available on the website of the Company and can be
accessed at https://duroply.in/investor/do

cument/policy-on-payment-of-remuneration-to-ned

Details of remuneration to Directors

Name Salary & | Sitting | Total
Perks Fees

Shri Sudeep Chitlangia |85,84,157 -|85,84,157

Shri Akhilesh 56,14,383 -156,14,383

Chitlangia

Dr. Kali Kumar -| 1,00,000| 1,00,000

Chaudhuri

Shri Ratan Lal Gaggar - 20,000 20,000

Shri Probir Roy -| 1,40,000| 1,40,000

Shri Sujit Chakravorti - 97,500 97,500

Shri Vinay Agarwal - 60,000 60,000

Shri Arun Kumar - 80,000 80,000

Singhania

Smt Suparna - 87,500 87,500

Chakrabortti

Shri Kulvin Suri -1 20,000| 20,000

Shri Vinay Agarwal - 60,000 60,000

Notes:

a) The Company does not pay any commission or
performance linked incentives to any of its Directors.

b) The company pays sitting fees to Independent
Directors for attending the Board and Committee
meetings. Other than that, Independent Directors
have no pecuniary relationships or transactions with
the Company.

c¢) The aggregate annual remuneration to Promoter
Executive Directors are duly approved by shareholders
in the form of Special Resolution.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
Composition of the Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been
constituted by Board in accordance with the section
177(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of
the Listing Regulations.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of
Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri, Non-Executive Independent
Director and Chairman of the Committee, Shri Vinay
Agarwal, Non-Executive Director and Shri Sudeep
Chitlangia, Managing Director. Further, owing to the
tenure completion of the existing Independent directors
on March 31, 2024 Smt Suparna Chakrabortti is appointed
as the Chairman of the Committee in place of Dr. Kali
Kumar Chaudhuri with effect from April 1, 2024. The
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

Terms of Reference

The Committee performs amongst others the role/
functions as are set out in Listing Regulations and
includes:

* to consider, review and redress grievances of
shareholders, debenture holders and other security
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holders of the Company;

* to consider and resolve the grievances of the
shareholders / Investor’s like transfer of shares,
debenture, non receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of
declared dividends;

¢ to deal with all aspects relating to issue and allotment
of shares and debentures and/ or other securities of the
Company.

* to consider and approve sub-division, consolidation,
transfer and issue of duplicate shares and debenture
certificate;

* to delegate any of the powers mentioned above to the
Company executives;

¢ authority to take a decision in any other matter in
relation to the above functions / powers; and

* to do such other acts, deeds and things as may be
directed by the Board and required to comply with the
applicable laws.

* to specifically look into the various aspects of interest
of shareholders, debenture holders and other security
holders.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings
held during the year ended March 31, 2024

During the year under review, one Stakeholders
Relationship Committee Meeting was held on February
13, 2024.

Attendance at Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Meetings

Name of Director No. of No. of
Meetings | Meetings
held attended
Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 1 1
Shri Sudeep Chitlangia 1 1
Shri Vinay Agarwal*® 1 -

* Shri Vinay Agarwal was appointed as member of the
committee with effect from August 3, 2023 in place of
Shri Ratan Lal Gaggar.

Compliance Officer
Mrs. Komal Dhruv, Company Secretary is the Compliance
Officer of the Company..

Shareholders’ Complaints

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company
has not received any complaints from its shareholders.
No complaints were pending at the beginning and at the
closing of the year except those under litigation, dispute
or Court orders. No complaint was received through
SCORES, the web based complaint redressal system of
SEBIL
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INVESTOR COMMITTEE
Composition of the Committee

The Investor Committee has been constituted by Board
to deal with all the activities/terms of reference of
Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The Investor Committee consists of Shri Sudeep
Chitlangia, Managing Director, Komal Dhruv, Company
Secretary and Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri, Non-Executive
Independent Director and Chairman of the Committee.
Shri Kulvin Suri is appointed as the Chairman of the
Committee in place of Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri with
effect from April 1, 2024.

Terms of Reference
The terms of reference of the Investor Committee
includes the following:

* Oversee, review and approve all matters connected
with transfer, transmission, split, consolidation,
rematerialisation, etc.;

¢ Issue of duplicate share certificates in lieu of share
certificates lost, defaced or destroyed,;

¢ Issue of new share certificates consequent upon split/
consolidation of existing ones;

¢ Cancellation of share certificates in compliance with
the applicable provisions;

* To consider and approve subdivision, consolidation,
transfer and issue of duplicate shares and debenture
certificate;

¢ To specifically look into the various aspects of interest
of shareholders, debenture holders and other security
holders.

Investor Committee Meetings held during the year
ended March 31, 2024

During the year under review, fifteen Investor Committee
Meetings were held on May 04, 2023, May 25, 2023, June
15, 2023, July 6, 2023, August 3, 2023, August 17, 2023,
September 7, 2023, October 12, 2023, November 2, 2023,
November 16, 2023, December 14, 2023, January 4, 2024,
February 8, 2024, February 22, 2024 and March 18, 2024.

Attendance at Investor Committee Meetings

Name of Director No. of No. of
Meetings | Meetings
held attended
Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 15 12
Shri Sudeep Chitlangia 15 15
Smt. Komal Dhruv 15 15
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FINANCE COMMITTEE (Formerly Borrowing
Committee)
Composition of the Committee

The Finance Committee has been constituted by Board
in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and any
other applicable law for the time being in force.

The Finance Committee consists of Dr. Kali Kumar
Chaudhuri, Non-Executive Independent Director and
Chairman of the Committee, Shri Arun Kumar Singhania,
Non-Executive Independent Director and Shri Sudeep
Chitlangia, Managing Director. Shri Kulvin Suri is
appointed as the Chairman of the Committee in place
of Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri with effect from April 1,
2024. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the
Committee.

Terms of Reference
The Committee performs the role/functions as follows:

* To borrow monies (otherwise than by issue of
debentures) within the limits approved by the Board
and taking necessary actions connected therewith
including refinancing for optimization of borrowing
costs.

* To borrow monies by way of loan, for the purpose of
refinancing the existing debt, capital expenditure,
general corporate purposes including working capital
requirements and possible strategic investments within
the limits approved by the Board.

* To provide corporate guarantee by the Company within
the limits approved by the Board.

* To approve the opening and modification in operation
of bank accounts, including closure thereof.

* To approve the opening, modification and closure of
trading and demat accounts.

* To empower any of the officer/officers of the Company
to execute/ file the requisite particulars of charge with
the Registrar of Companies from time to time.

* To avail bill collection, bill payment, Cash management
services in all forms and from any Bank.

* To take decisions relating to investments and invest
funds of the Company from time to time.

* Any other financial issues or matters, whether out of
and incidental to these functions or not, as may be
assigned by the Board.

¢ To file the necessary forms with the Statutory Authority.
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FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
During the year under review, four Finance Committee Meetings were held on May 02, 2023, September 13, 2023,

October 9, 2023 and December 16, 2023.

Attendance at Finance Committee Meetings

Name of Director No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings attended
Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 4 4
Shri Sudeep Chitlangia 4 4
Smt. Sheela Chitlangia™ 1 1
Shri Arun Kumar Singhania# 3 1

* Resigned w.e.f. May 19, 2023

# Appointed as member of the committee with effect from August 3, 2023.

ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE

Composition of the Committee

The Allotment Committee has been constituted by
the Board of Directors on July 13, 2022, to carry out all
activities related to preferential issue & allotment of equity
shares and / or convertible warrants.

The Allotment Committee consists of Shri Sudeep
Chitlangia, Managing Director, Dr Kali Kumar
Chaudhuri, Independent Director (Chairman of the
Committee) and Mrs Komal Dhruv, Company Secretary.
Smt Suparna Chakrabortti is appointed as the Chairman
of the Committee in place of Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri
with effect from April 1, 2024. During the year under
review, five Allotment Committee Meetings were held on
October 16, 2023, December 18, 2023, February 20, 2024,
February 26, 2024 and March 27, 2024.

Attendance at Allotment Committee Meetings

Name of Director No. of Meetings | No. of Meetings
held attended

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 5 5

Shri Sudeep Chitlangia 5 5

Smt. Komal Dhruv 5 5

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the Allotment Committee

includes the following:

* IssueandAllotment of Equity Shares and/ or Convertible
Warrants.

¢ Co-ordinate with RTA and Depositories for allotment.
¢ Issue of Share / Warrant Certificate on Allotment.

* To settle any question, difficulty or doubts of the
allottees that may arise in regard to the issue and
allotment of shares/ warrants.

* Reference to Board of Directors in case of any question,
doubts or difficulty in respect of issue, allotment,
transfer of shares and any shareholders grievances, if
necessary.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
COMMITTEE

Composition of the Committee

The CSR Committee has been constituted by the Board

of Directors on May 19, 2023. It consists of Shri Sudeep
Chitlangia, Managing Director and Chairman of the
Committee, Shri Akhilesh Chitlangia, Executive Director
& COO and Shri Probir Roy, Independent Director. Shri
Kulvin Suri is appointed as a member of the Committee
in place of Shri Probir Roy with effect from April 1, 2024.
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the
Committee. During the year under review, the committee
met twice on August 3, 2023 and March 27, 2024.

Attendance at CSR Committee Meetings

Name of Director No. of Meetings | No. of Meetings
held attended

Shri Probir Roy 2 2

Shri Sudeep Chitlangia 2 2

Shri Akhilesh Chitlangia 2 2

Terms of Reference
The terms of reference of the CSR Committee includes
the following:

* Recommending to the Board the annual action plan and
the amount to be spent on CSR activities;

e Reviewing and approving, the CSR projects/ programs
to be undertaken by the Company either directly or
through implementation partners as deemed suitable,
during the financial year and specifying modalities for
its execution and implementation schedules for the
same, in terms of the CSR Policy of the Company;

* Monitoring the implementation of the CSR policy;

* Monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects
or programmes;

* Reviewing the need for impact assessment, if any, for the
projects undertaken by the Company and undertaking
the same if needed;

* Reviewing implementation of the action plan; and

e Carrying out/ performing such other responsibilities,
acts, deeds, and things as may be delegated to the
Committee and as maybe entrusted by the Board of
Directors/ arising out of statutory provisions from time
to time.
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Details of the last three Annual General Meetings are as under:
Financial |Location Date Nature Time Number
Year of special
resolutions
passed
2020-2021 | Held through Video 10.09.2021 AGM 11.00 A.M. One
Conferencing / Other
Audio Visual Means
2021-2022 | Held through Video 28.09.2022 AGM 12.00 P.M. One
Conferencing / Other
Audio Visual Means
2022-2023 | Held through Video 11.08.2023 AGM 11.00 A.M. Four
Conferencing / Other
Audio Visual Means
Notes: ¢ Issue of Equity Shares and Warrants convertible into

Special Resolution passed in the previous three
Annual General Meetings

The following Special Resolutions were passed at the 66th
Annual General Meeting held on August 11, 2023.

¢ Appointment of Mr. Arun Kumar Singhania as Non-
Executive Independent Director of the Company.

¢ Appointment of Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti as Non-
Executive Independent Woman Director of the
Company.

* Revision in remuneration of Mr. Sudeep Chitlangia,
Managing Director of the Company.

¢ Revision in remuneration of Mr. Akhilesh Chitlangia,
Whole-Time Director of the Company.

The following Special Resolutions were passed at the 65th
Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2022.

* Re-appointment of Mr. Sudeep Chitlangia as the
Managing Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation and fixing his remuneration.

The following Special Resolutions were passed at the 64th
Annual General Meeting held on September 10, 2021.

¢ Smt. Sheela Chitlangia, being longest in office, retires
by rotation, and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment as Director.

Extra Ordinary General Meeting

During the financial year 2023-24, one extra ordinary
general meeting was held on 9th March, 2024.

The following Special Resolutions were passed at the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 9th March, 2024.
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Equity Shares on a preferential basis to Non-Promoters.

e Appointment of Mr. Kulvin Suri (DIN: 03640464) as
Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company.

* Re-designation and Appointment of Mr. Sudeep
Chitlangia (DIN: 00093908) as an Executive Chairman,
in the category of a Whole-Time Director, for a fresh
term of three (3) years commencing from April 1, 2024.

* Re-designation and Appointment of Mr. Akhilesh
Chitlangia (DIN: 03120474) as the Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, for a fresh
term of three (3) years commencing from April 1, 2024.

Postal Ballot

During Financial Year 2023-24, the Company has not
passed any Special resolution(s) through the Postal Ballot.
Approval, if any required through, Postal Ballot during the
Financial Year 2024-25 will be conducted in accordance
with applicable law.

DISCLOSURES

a) There is no materially significant related party
transaction entered into by the Company that may have
potential conflict with the interests of the Company
at large. Details of the related party transactions are
presented in the notes to the financial statements.
The Company’s policy on related party transactions is
available on Company website at www.duroply.in.

b) There were no instances of non-compliance nor have
any penalties or strictures been imposed by Stock
Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory authority
during the last three years on any matter related to the
capital markets.

¢) The Company has followed the applicable guidelines
of Indian Accounting Standards as specified under

section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

d) The Company has adopted Vigil Mechanism/Whistle
blower policy. No personnel were denied access to the
Audit Committee.

e) The Company has complied with Secretarial
Standards on Board Meeting and General Meeting.

f) The Company has obtained a certificate from a
Company Secretary in Practice that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
to continue as Directors of any company by SEBI or
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authorities. The certificate is annexed separately to
this Report.

g) The Company does not have any subsidiary.

h) The Company has complied with all the mandatory
requirements of the listing regulations including
those specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clause
(b) to (1) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of the
Listing Regulations and sub-paras (2) to (10) of Part
C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations.

1) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

1. Number of complaints filed during the financial year
- NIL

ii. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial
year — NIL

iii. Number of complaints pending as on end of the
financial year — NIL

j) During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company
has not provided any loans and/or advances to firms/
companies in which Directors are interested.

k) Details of utilization of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A):

The Company has received Rs. 8.63 crores during
the year on conversion of 912808 Warrants into
Equity Shares pursuant to Preferential Issue done
in September, 2022. The amount has been utilised
for the objective for which the preferential issue
was approved by the members on 8th August, 2022
1.e to meet the funding requirements of its business
activities, strengthen balance sheet, maintain
adequate liquidity, pursue growth opportunities and/
or for general corporate purposes.

Further the company has received Rs 28.90 crores
during the year on issue and allotment of 1177336
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Equity shares and 985220 warrants pursuant to
Preferential Issue done in March, 2024. Rs 15.94
crores has been utilised for the objective for which
the preferential issue was approved by the members
on 9th March, 2024 i.e to meet the working capital
requirements and/or for general corporate purposes.
Funds unutilized as on March 31, 2024 is Rs. 12.96

crores.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a) Quarterly, halfyearly and annual financial results of the
Company are communicated to the Stock Exchanges
immediately after they are approved by the Board.

b) Financial results are normally published in all editions
of the Financial Express in English language and in
Duranto Barta in Bengali language.

¢) Financial results of the company are displayed on its
website www.duroply.in.

d) Presentations on the quarterly/ annual financial results
are filed with the Stock Exchange and also displayed
on its website www.duroply.in.

e) Media Releases are sent to Stock Exchange, as
applicable under Regulation 30 of SEBI(LLODR), and
are also displayed on the Company’s website www.
duroply.in

Fee to Statutory Auditor

Total fees (excluding reimbursement of expenses) for all
services paid by the Company to Statutory Auditor was Rs.
6,50,000/-

DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS

* The quarterly financial results are published in the
newspapers of wide circulation and not sent to individual
shareholders. Further the financial results are available
on the website of the Company and of Stock Exchange
where the shares of the Company is listed i.e., BSE
Limited.

* The Auditors’ opinion on the Financial Statements is
unmodified.

* Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit
Committee. He is a permanent invitee to the Audit
Committee Meetings and regularly attends the
Meetings for reporting audit.
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I. |Annual General Meeting As per the Annual General Meeting Notice
* Date and time
* Venue
II. |Financial Calendar for the year 2024-2025
Particulars of Quarter Tentative Dates
Results for the first quarter On or before second week of August
Results for the second quarter On or before second week of November
Results for the third quarter On or before second week of February
Annual Audited Results On or before last week of May
II1. | Book Closure Date As provided in Annual General Meeting Notice
IV. | Dividend Payment Date Not Applicable
V. |Listing on Stock Exchange BSE Limited
Corporate Relationship Department
Rotunda Building, 1st Floor, New Trading Wing,
P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 001
VI. |Scrip Code 516003
VII. Market Price Data
Month Stock Prices on BSE BSE SENSEX
High Low High Low
April 2023 154.70 123.30 61,209.46 58,793.08
May 2023 231.00 144.15 63,036.12 61,002.17
June 2023 250.00 192.85 64,768.58 62,359.14
July 2023 219.25 188.05 67,619.17 64,836.16
August 2023 208.90 178.00 66,658.12 64,723.63
September 2023 191.00 172.00 67,927.23 64,818.37
October 2023 229.95 177.65 66,592.16 63,092.98
November 2023 196.45 164.15 67,069.89 63,550.46
December 2023 203.00 151.05 72,484.34 67,149.07
January 2024 185.00 158.10 73,427.59 70,001.60
February 2024 369.80 167.70 73,413.93 70,809.84
March 2024 363.40 280.00 74,245.17 71,674.42

Performance in comparison to broad-based indices viz., BSE Sensex.
DIL Share Price Movement v/s BSE Sensex
April 2023 — March 2024

400.00 80000.0¢
350.00 = 70000.0(
30000 L = / 60000.0
250.00 / 50000.0¢
200.00 /\V/\—A\,/ 40000.0(
150.00 / 30000.0¢
100.00 20000.0¢

50.00 10000.0C

0.00 S 0.00

= Duroply Share Price High
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e BSE SENSEX High

VIIIL.

Share Transfer System

M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited are
the Share Transfer Agents/Registrars (both for
physical as well as demat segments) of the Company.
The Board of Directors of the Company has
authorized Shri Sudeep Chitlangia, Managing

IX.

Corporate Overview
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approved share transfers are submitted to the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

Credit Rating

CARE Rating Ltd. has given the following credit
ratings to the Company at present.

Director and Smt. Komal Dhruv, Company Secretary Sr. No. Particulars Credit rating
of the Company to approve all valid share transfer I Long T.i:rm Bank CARE BB;
requests on regular basis and accordingly all valid Facilities Stable
transfers are effected within a fortnight. Details of 2 Short Term Bank CARE A4
Facilities
X. Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2024
No. of shares of Rs.10 No. of % of No. of shares held Shareholding
each share Share %
holders holders
1-500 6734 93.0625 732272 7.4244
501-1000 204 2.8192 162309 1.6456
1001-2000 122 1.6860 182293 1.8482
2001-3000 38 0.5252 96120 0.9745
3001-4000 20 0.2764 69348 0.7031
XI. Categories of Shareholding as on March 31, 2024
Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held Percentage
Indian Promoters 5426070 55.01
Banks and Mutual Funds 10700 0.11
Body Corporates 1234799 12.52
Individuals/HUF/T'rusts 3166322 32.10
Clearing Members 1700 0.02
Non- Resident Indian 23287 0.24
Unclaimed Shares Account 200 0.00
Total 9863078 100.00

XII. Dematerialisation of shares

XIII.

XIV.

Registered Office:

The Company’s shares are available for
Dematerialisation and liquidity with NSDL

and CDSL. The ISIN allotted to the Company’s
Equity Shares 1s INE932D01010.

As on March 31, 2024, 81.92% of the Share Capital

has been dematerialised.

Outstanding GDR/ADR/Warrants

The company has allotted 9,85,220 convertible
warrants on 27th March, 2024. The warrant holders
has the option of applying for and being alloted
equity shares of the company at a face value of

Rs. 10/- each within 18 months from the date

of allotment of the warrants.

Plant locations

Plywood Unit Rajkot Gondal Highway
Shapar - 360024, Dist. Rajkot, Gujarat

9, Parsee Church Street,

Kolkata — 700001

AKHILESH CHITLANGIA
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 03120474)

Date: May 17, 2024
Place: Kolkata

XV. Address for Correspondence
(1) Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited
23 R N Mukherjee Road,

5th Floor Kolkata — 700001

Phone: (033) 2243 5029/2243 5809

Fax :(033) 2248 4787

E-mail: mdpldc@yahoo.com

(i1) Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Mrs. Komal Dhruv

113 Park Street, North Block, 4th Floor,
Kolkata- 700016

Phone: (033) 2265-2274

E-mail: komal.desai@duroply.com

XVI. E-mail id for investor grievances

investors@duroply.com

For and on behalf of the Board

SUPARNA CHAKRABORTTI
Dairector
(DIN: 07090308)
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requivements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Duroply Industries Limited
9, Parsee Church Street
Kolkata — 700001

West Bengal

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Duroply
Industries Limited having CIN : L20211WB1957P1.C023493 and having registered office at 9, Parsee Church Street,
Kolkata — 700001, West Bengal (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(1) of
the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the
Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for
the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as Directors of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
other Statutory Authority:

Sr. No. | Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1. Probir Roy* 00033045 09.05.2011
2. Ratan Lal Gaggar® 00066068 28.06.1976
3. Sujit Chakravorti® 00066344 27.09.2002
4. Sudeep Chitlangia 00093908 27.05.1988
5. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri* 00206157 24.01.2006
6. Akhilesh Chitlangia 03120474 30.05.2022
7. Vinay Agarwal 06431086 09.08.2022
8 Arun Kumar Singhania 00160194 19.05.2023
9 Suparna Chakrabortti 07090308 19.05.2023
10 Kulvin Suri 03640464 13.02.2024

*Ceased to be directors w.e.f. 01.04.2024

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
Certificate has been issued relying on the documents and information as mentioned herein above and as were made
available to us or as came to our knowledge for verification without taking any cognizance of any legal dispute(s) or
sub-judice matters which may have effect otherwise, if ordered so, by any concerned authority(ies). This certificate is
also neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Signature :
Name : CS Atul Kumar Labh
Membership No. : FCS 4898

CP No. : 3238

PRCN : 1038/2020
Date: May 17, 2024 UIN : 51999WB026800
Place: Kolkata UDIN : F004848F000390772
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD
MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT

On the basis of the written declarations received from members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel in
terms of the relevant provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, it is
hereby certified that both the Members of the Board and the Senior Management Personnel of the Company have
affirmed compliance with the respective provisions of the Code of Conduct of the Company as laid down by the Board for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

AKHILESH CHITLANGIA
Date: May 17, 2024 Managing Director & CEO
Place: Kolkata (DIN: 03120474)
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Annexure—6

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE
WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To,
The Members of
Duroply Industries Limited

We, S K AGRAWAL AND CO CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS LLP, Chartered Accountants, the
Statutory Auditors of Duroply Industries Limited (“the
Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions
of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year
ended on March 31, 2024, as stipulated in regulations 17
to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para
C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the
“Listing Regulations”).

Managements’ Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
is the responsibility of the Management including the
preparation and maintenance of all the relevant records
and documents. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control and
procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions
of the Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing
Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility was limited to the procedures and
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations,
it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance
whether the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Regulations
for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant
records and documents maintained by the Company for
the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the
compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by
the Company.

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records
of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note

on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the
Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the
“ICAI”), the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far
as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as
per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for
Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that
we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of
Ethics issued by the ICAL

We have complied with the relevant applicable
requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)
1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and
Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

Based on our examination of the relevant records and
according to the information and explanations provided to
us and the representations provided by the Management,
we certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation
46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2024.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on Use

The certificate is addressed and provided to the Members
of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling the
Company to comply with the requirement of the Listing
Regulations and should not be used by any other person
or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept
or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is
shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior
consent in writing.

For S KAGRAWAL AND CO CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP

Date: May 17, 2024
Place: Kolkata
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Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 306033E/E300272

CA VIVEK AGARWAL

Partner

Membership No - 301571
UDIN: - 24301571BKBFI1Q3289
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Annexure—-7

Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

To,

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
CERTIFICATION

The Members of
Duroply Industries Limited

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 we

hereby certify that:

A. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended March 31,
2024 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. We further states that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by company
during the financial year ended March 31, 2024, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code
of Conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls over the financial reporting and that
we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting
and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

D. We have indicated, based in our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and the Audit
Committee:

1. there has been no significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the financial year.

2. there has been no significant changes in the accounting policies during the financial year, except to the extend,
if any, disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

3. there has been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if

Date: May 17, 2024
Place: Kolkata

any, of the management or any employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control systems over
financial reporting.

For Duroply Industries Limited
(AKHILESH CHITLANGIA) (PAWAN KUMAR VERMA)

Managing Director & CEO Chief Financial Officer
(DIN: 03120474)
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Annexure—-8

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Duroply Industries Limited
9, Parsee Church Street
Kolkata — 700001

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to
good corporate practices by DUROPLY INDUSTRIES
LIMITED (CIN: L20211WB1957PL.C023493) having its
Registered Office at 9, Parsee Church Street, Kolkata —
700 001 (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me with
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of Company’s books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided bythe Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,
I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended
31.03.2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on existence of adequate Board process
and compliance management system, commensurate with
the size of the Company, based on the secretarial records
as shown to me during the said audit and also based on the
information furnished to me by the officers and the agents
of the Company during the said audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as
were appropriate to the best of my understanding to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the
contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and
practices followed provide a reasonable basis for my
opinion.

I have checked the Board process and compliance
management system to understand and to form an opinion
as to whether there is an adequate system of seeking
approval of respective committees, of the Board, of the

100 | Duroply Industries Limited

members of the Company and of other authorities as per
the provisions of various statues as mentioned hereinafter.

I have not verified the correctness, appropriateness and
bases of financial records, books of accounts and decisions
taken by the Board and by various committees of the
Company during the period under scrutiny.

Wherever required, I have obtained the management
representation about the compliance of the laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events, etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is the
responsibility of the management. My examination was
limited to the verification of compliance procedures on
test basis.

My report is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness or
accuracy with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

I report that, I have examined the books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended
31.03.2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules
made there under;

(i1) Secretarial Standards as issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India;

(ii1) Listing Agreement(s) with the Stock Exchange(s);

(iv) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and
the rules made there under;

(v) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and
Bye-laws framed there under;

(vi) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
rules and regulation made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(vi1) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 :

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulation, 2011;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with
client;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, provisions of the
following regulations/guidelines/standards were not
applicable to the Company:

(1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(i1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme ) Guidelines, 1999;

(i11) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009.

The laws specifically applicable to the Company
where compliance procedure are being observed as
per the representations made by the Management
are:

(1) Factories Act, 1948;

(i1) Relevant statutes prevalent in the State of West
Bengal and Gujarat, where the Registered office/
factory of the Company is situated, amongst others;

(111) Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
and Rules made thereunder;

(iv) Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and
Rules made thereunder,
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(v) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986;

During the period under review, based on my
examination and verification of the books, papers,
minutes, certificates, forms and returns which
were required to be examined by me for this report
and according to the information and explanations
provided to me in the course of my audit by the
Company, I report that the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

(a) The status of the Company during the financial year
has been that of a Listed Public Company.

(b) During the audit period, the Company has effected
the following activities/events/actions having a major
bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc. referred to above:

1. Resignation of Smt Sheela Chitlangia (DIN:
00174354) as Director w.e.f. 19.05.2023;

2. Appointment of Mr. Arun Kumar Singhania (DIN:
00160194) as an Independent Director for a term of
five consecutive years w.e.f. 19.05.2023;

3. Appointment of Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti (DIN:
07090308) as an Independent Director for a term of
five consecutive years w.e.f. 19.05.2023;

4. Appointment of Mr. Kulvin Suri (DIN: 03640464) as
an Independent Director for a term of five consecutive
years w.e.f. 13.02.2024;

5. Constitution of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee;

6. Re-designation and appointment of Mr. Sudeep
Chitlangia (DIN: 00093908) as an Executive
Chairman, in the category of a Whole-Time Director,
for a fresh term of three (3) years commencing from
April 1, 2024 and revision of his remuneration;

7. Re-designation and appointment of Mr. Akhilesh
Chitlangia (DIN: 03120474) as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the company,
for a fresh term of three (3) years commencing from
April 1, 2024 and revision of his remuneration;

8. Issueof 11,77,336 equity shares and 9,85,220 warrants
convertible into fully paid up equity shares of the
Company having a face value of Rs. 10/- at a price of
Rs. 203/- by a preferential issue on private placement
basis.
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(b)

(©)

(d)

Recording the completion of tenure as an Independent
Director, of Mr. Ratan Lal Gaggar (DIN:
00066068), Mr Sujit Chakravorti (DIN: 00066344),
Mr Probir Roy (DIN: 00033045) and Mr Kali Kumar
Chaudhuri (DIN: 00206157), as on 31.03.2024.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors/CEO, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

As informed to me, adequate notice is given to all
Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the
dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes. There were no such
views recorded during the period under review.
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(e) As confirmed and reported to me during the
conduct of this secretarial audit by the Company’s
authorized representatives, no creditor has filed
cases against the Company under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year under
review. In respect of dues beyond the stipulated
period, if any, to MSME vendors the requisite form
is pending to be filed with the MCA;

(f) There are adequate systems and processes in
the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

(CS Sumantra Sinha)
Practising Company Secretary
ACS 11247/CP No.:15245

PR: 1421/2021

UDIN: A011247F000370155

Place: Kolkata
Date: 17th May, 2024

Corporate Overview [EENIFIGSa@NGO Financial Statements

Annexure-9

Information required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule — 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
and forming part of Directors’ Report.

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
1. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

e Installations of Clear Roofing sheet for maximum
use of Natural Light in the whole plant and reduced
dependency on LED lighting

*  Optimization of seasoning cycle to reduce power
consumption and quality.

ii. Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of
energy

The Company is constantly taking steps to identify
various alternatives sources of energy at its
manufacturing unit. In pursuit of its goal towards
savings in energy cost, the Company while procuring
new machinery under phased modernization/
replacement program takes into account its impact on
energy conservation.

iii. Capital Investment on energy conservation
equipments

During the year review, there was no material Capital
Investment.

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
i. The efforts made towards technology absorption

* Company on continuous basis modifies and
upgrades the manufacturing process / parameters
which resulted into cost effectiveness, better
productivityin terms of quantitywithout compromising
quality of the products.

*  Development of new products, design, concept
and processes at regular intervals.

*  Modification of manufacturing process.

* Company installed automated L-type Panel
Jointer to achieve higher efficiency, quality products
and lesser defect due to low manual work.

*  Company automated the Dipping line of material
to achieve higher efficiency and lesser defect due to
Handling

ii. The benefits derived like product improvement,
cost reduction, product development or import
substitution

The C has derived 1 benefits f
Registered Office: = ""For and on behal

9, Parsee Church Street,
Kolkata — 700001

AKHILESH CHITLANGIA
Managing Director & CEO

Date: May 17, 2024

Place: Kolkata (DIN: 03120474)
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v.

new and improved technology and other activities 1.e.
Product (quality) improvement, reduced cost of final
products, Reduction in process time, Conservation
of energy, Smooth processing, conservation of
environment, Increase in customer base, Increase
in the brand value of Company, development of eco-
friendly processes result in less quantity of effluent
and emission etc.

In case of imported technology (imported during
the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year)

The Company has not imported technology during the
last three years and wherever required, the company
takes guidance from technical experts as well as from
suppliers of machinery within India.

The expenditure incurred on Research and
Development

During the year under review, the Company has not
incurred any material capital expenditure on research
and development. The Company continuously incurs
expenses for improving the processes, product quality,
etc. they cannot be specifically identified as research
& development expenses. Thus, the same has not
been shown separately.

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND

OUTGO
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: (Rs. in Lakhs)
(1) Foreign Exchange earnings NIL
(i1) Foreign exchange outgo 2325.57
(imports and other expenditure in
foreign currency)

f of the Board

SUPARNA CHAKRABORTTI
Director
(DIN: 07090308)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

Duroply Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Duroply
Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprises
the Balance sheet as at 31st March 2024, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive
Income), Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policy information and other explanatory
information for the year ended on that date (hereinafter
referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, read with
our comments in Key Audit Matter paragraph below,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March, 2024, the profit and total
comprehensive profit, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

wm®

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on financial Statements

Key Audit Matters

Keyaudit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S. No|Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

1. |Allowance for Credit Losses

The company determines the allowance for credit
losses based on historical loss experience adjusted to
reflect the current and future economic conditions.

In calculating the expected credit loss, the company
has considered the credit reports and other related
credit information for its customers to estimate the
probability of default in future.

We identified allowance for credit losses as a key
audit matter because the Group exercises significant
judgment in calculating the expected credit losses.

Refer Notes 10 to the financial statements.

Principal Audit Procedures

Our audit procedures related to the allowance for credit
losses for trade receivables included the following,
among others:

We tested the effectiveness of controls over the

(1) development of the methodology for the allowance for
credit losses, including consideration of the current
and estimated future economic conditions

(2) completeness and accuracy of information used in the
estimation of probability of default and

(3) computation of the allowance for credit losses.
For a sample of customers:

We tested the input data such as credit reports and
other credit related information used in estimating
the probability of default by comparing them to
external and internal sources of information. We tested
the mathematical accuracy and computation of the
allowances by using the same input data used by the
company.
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S. No| Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

2. |Conversion of Share Warrants and issue

of Equity Share on preferential basis

During the financial year 2022-2023, the Company
had issued convertible Share warrant 11,91,032
on preferential basis at Rs. 126 each, out of which
2,78,224 share warrant had been converted into
equity share during FY 2022-23 and the balance
9,12,808 share warrant were converted into Equity
Shares in FY 23-24.

During the financial year 2023-2024, the Company
has issued convertible Share warrant 9,85,220 on
preferential basis at Rs 203 each. Consideration
received towards these warrants which are pending
for conversion (25% of Issue price of Rs 203/-) was
depicted in ‘Other Equity’ which subsequently was
utilized for conversion into equity.

Further the company has also issued 11,77,336
equity shares on preferential basis during the year
at a price of Rs 203.

As the conversion of Share warrants and issue of
equity share by the company during the financial
year 2023-2024, has the effect of enhancing the
Equity of the Company the same is considered to be
a key audit matter.

Refer Notes 17 and 18 to the Financial Statements.

Principal Audit Procedures

Our audit procedure includes gaining an understanding of
the process of issue of share warrants followed by the
company, to include amongst others:

1. Authorization by the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company;

2. Passing of resolution in a validly convened and constituted
Board meeting of the company.

3. Passing of resolution in a validly convened and constituted
general meeting of the companyand necessary regulatory
filing done by the Company. Obtaining permission from
the NSE/BSE Ltd. under SEBI (Listing obligations and
Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015.

4. We assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the financial
statements.

5. We checked that allotment money are received in full and
in a separate bank account. Also, checked that funds are
flowing from the bank account of allottee only.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 39.2, where the company has
ascertained on the basis of legal opinion on Income Tax
Cases amounting to Rs. 5827.57 Lakh, which has a remote
possibility of occurrence. Therefore, the same is not
contingent liability.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors
are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in
the Company’s annual report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

The Annual report is expected to be made available with
us after the date of Auditor’s Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is

materially inconsistent with the financial statements,
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the financial
statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that gives a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
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and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that gives a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing
the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3) (1) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality
and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(i1) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the financial statements.

We communicate with management regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide management with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with management, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)

Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11)

of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure

A” a statement on the matters specified in

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

b. Inouropinion proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statements of Cash Flows dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account;

d. Inouropinion, the Balance sheet, the Statement of
Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash flows comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act;

e. On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in
terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

g.  With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended:
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1v.

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its
directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations which would impact financial position.
(Refer Note 39.2 to the financial statement)

The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts
which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to

the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
referred to Note 39.10 to the Financial Statement,
no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as referred to Note No. 39.11 to the Financial
Statement, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner
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whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate  Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have
been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i1) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 17, 2024
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No dividend has been paid or declared by the
company during the year.

Based on our examination which includes test
checks, the co has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of accounts which has a
feature of recording of audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has been operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instances of audit trail
feature being tampered with.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. — 306033E/E300272

CA VIVEK AGARWAL
Partner

Membership No - 301571
UDIN: 24301571BKBFIR8302
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Annexure — A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Duroply Industries Limited
(the Company’) on the Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March 2024. We report that:

L

(a)

(©)

IL.

In respect of the Company’s property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

(A) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

The Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its fixed assets by which
fixed assets are verified in a phased manner. In
accordance with this programme, certain fixed
assets were physically verified by the management
during the year and according to the information
and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets.

According to information and explanations given
to us and the records examined by us including
registered title deeds, we report that, the title
deeds, comprising all the immovable properties
of land and buildings which are freehold, are held
in the name of the Company as at the Balance
Sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of
land that have been taken on lease and disclosed
as property, plant and equipment in the Financial
Statements, the lease agreements are in the name
of the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property,
Plant and Equipment (including right- of-use
assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been
conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and in our opinion the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate. No discrepancy of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed during such physical verification.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working

III.

(a)

(b

~

(©

(d)

(e)

capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security
of current assets. Quarterly returns filed by the
company to banks against sanctioned working
capital limits are in agreement with the books of
account of the company.

According to information and explanations given
to us and the records examined by us the company
has not provided any security or grant any advance
in the nature of loan secured or unsecured to any
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
and other parties, during the year. The company
has made investments in companies and grant
secured and unsecured loan and provide guarantee
to the companies and other parties in respect of
which the requisite information is as below:

According to information and explanations given
to us the investments made and the terms and
conditions of the grant of loans, during the year
are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s
interest.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated and the repayments
of principal amounts and receipts of interest are
generally been regular as per stipulation.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, there
is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at
the balance sheet date.

No loan granted by the Company which has fallen
due during the year, has been renewed or extended
or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of
existing loans given to the same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period
of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(ii1) (e) is not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of
Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits with
the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to extent
applicable. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable.
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VI. According to information and explanations
given to us and the records examined by us, the
rules made by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records under section 148
of the Act, are not applicable to the company,
accordingly reporting under clause 3(vi) of the
Order is not applicable.

VII. (a) According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as
at 31st March, 2024 for a period of more than six
months from the date of becoming payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the details of statutory dues which has
not been deposited on account of any disputed
and were outstanding as at 31st March, 2024 are
given below.

Name of the Statute Nature of | Amount Amount Amount Period to Forum where
dues (R in Lakhs) Paid Due which the | matter is pending
(R in Lakhs) | (R in Lakhs) matter
pertains
Delhi Sales Tax Act,1975 | Sales tax 77.87 77.87 1990-91 Additional
commissioner of
sales tax
Central Sales Tax Act,1956 | Sales tax 47.52 47.52 1990-91 Additional
commissioner of
sales tax
Income Tax Act,1961 Income 0.87 0.87 AY 1985-86 Income tax
Tax Appellate
Tribunal
Central CGST 59.62 22.19 July 2017 Assistant
Goods and Commissioner
Service Tax
Act 2017
viil. There were no transactions relating to previously Company.

unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961).

ix. (a) According to information and explanations
given to us the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) According to information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of examination of
records of the company, the term loans were
applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, funds raised on
short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used
during the year for long-term purposes by the
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(e) On an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person
on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

(f) According to the information and explanation
given to us and on the basis of examination of
relevant records the company has not raised any
loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by
way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and
hence reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has made
preferential allotment or private placement of
shares and convertible debentures (fully or partly
or optionally) and the requirements of section 42

and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been
complied with and the funds raised have been
used for the purposes for which the funds were
raised.

xi. (a) No fraud by the Company and no material
fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section
143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT'-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up to the date of
this report.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle
blower complaints received by the Company
during the year (and up to the date of this report),
while determining the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures.

-

xil. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence
reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not

applicable.

xiii.According to information and explanations given
to us and the records examined by us the company
is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable
transactions with the related parties and the
details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

xiv.(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate
internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports
for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv. In our opinion during the year the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with its
directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

xvi.(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 17, 2024
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applicable.

(b) The company is not engaged in any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) In our opinion, there is no core investment
company within the Group (as defined in the
regulation defined by Reserve Bank of India) and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of
the Order 1s not applicable.

xvil. The Company has not incurred cash losses
during the financial year covered by our audit but
the same has been incurred in previous year.

xviil. There has been no resignation of the statutory
auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

xx. Corporate Social Responsibility under section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable to the
company. However, the company incurred losses
in previous years therefore no amount is required
to be spend under section 135 of Companies
Act, 2013 and consequently reporting under this
clause is not applicable.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. — 306033E/E300272

CA VIVEK AGARWAL
Partner

Membership No - 301571
UDIN: 24301571BKBFIR8302
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Annexure — B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Duroply Industries Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Ourresponsibilityistoexpressanopiniononthe Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
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evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorization of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting

to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 17, 2024
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material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 306033E/E300272

CA VIVEK AGARWAL
Partner

Membership No - 301571
UDIN: 24301571BKBFIR8302
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(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. As at 31.03.2023
I. ASSETS
(1) Non - Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 10,278.02 10,142.12
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 3 23.11 23.03
(c) Other Intangible assets 4 55.89 60.84
(d) Financial Assets
Investments 5 60.04 1.48
Loans 6 651.76 651.76
Other Financial Assets 7 83.17 43.76
(e) Other Non - Current Assets 8 27.81 11,179.80 56.48 10,979.47
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 8,761.59 7,190.90
(b) Financial Assets
Trade receivables 10 3,450.33 2,863.79
Investments 5 801.05 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 79.26 9.42
Other Bank Balances 12 330.70 333.62
Other Financial Assets 13 107.48 67.21
Others 14 115.81 86.35
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 15 46.98 48.96
(d) Other current assets 16 1,099.33 14,792.53 877.75 11,478.00
TOTAL 25,972.33 22,457.47
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 17 986.59 777.58
(b) Other Equity 18 11,657.86 12,644.45 8,064.39 8,841.97
(2) Non - current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 19 827.23 579.48
Lease Liabilities 20 485.16 329.91
(b) Provisions 21 615.55 517.20
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 839.34 839.19
(d) Other Non - Current Liabilities 23 45.28 2,812.56 56.13 2,321.91
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 24 3,276.12 3,566.13
Lease Liabilities 25 176.62 166.34
Trade payables 26
Total Outstanding dues of Mirco Enterprises 1,726.43 -
and Small Enterprises
Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other 4,676.51 6,390.17
than Mirco Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Other Financial Liabilities 27 366.66 966.39
(b) Other current liabilities 28 286.42 197.94
(c) Provisions 29 6.56 10,515.32 6.62 11,293.59
Total 25,972.33 22,457.47
Material Accounting Policy Information 2
Other Disclosures 39
The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached. On behalf of the Board
For S K Agrawal And Co Chartered Accountants LLP PAWAN KUMAR VERMA AKHILESH CHITLANGIA

Chartered Accountants

(F.R.NO. 306033E/E300272)

CA VIVEK AGARWAL
(Membership No. 301571)
Partner

Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date : 17th May 2024
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Chief Financial Officer

KOMAL DHRUV
Company Secretary

Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 03120474

SUPARNA CHAKRABORTTI
Independent Director
DIN: 07090308
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Statement of Profit and LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars Note Year ended
No. RIEEIWSWIVZE 31st March, 2023
I. Revenue from operations
Sale of goods 30 32,267.47 30,233.86
Other operating Income 31 74.83 12.29
Total Revenue from Operations 32,342.30 30,246.15
II. Other income 32 90.54 203.85
III. Total Income ( I+1II) 32.432.84 30,450.00
IV. Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 33 12,044.21 12,551.48
Purchases of stock-in-trade 34 10,606.61 7.592.26
Changes in inventories of finished goods,
Work -in-progress and stock-in-trade 35 (1,197.16) (543.66)
Employee benefits expense 36 3,220.93 2,864.51
Finance costs 37 814.44 711.47
Depreciation and amortization expense 3&4 370.12 337.71
Other expenses 38 6,472.79 6,144.44
Total Expenses 32,331.94 29,658.21
V. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III - IV) 100.90 791.79
VI. Exceptional items (Refer Note No. 39(14)) - -
VII. Profit/(Loss) before tax (V-VI) 100.90 791.79
VIIIL Tax expense :
Current tax 0.00 -
Deferred tax 0.15 269.22
IX. Profit/(Loss) for the year (VII - VIII) 100.75 522.57
X. Other Comprehensive Income
1) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
- Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liabilities 50.86 13.26
XI. Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX - X) 49.89 509.31
Earnings per equity share of ¥ 10/- each
Basic 1.25 7.40
Diluted 1.25 7.39
Material Accounting Policy Information 2
Other Disclosures 39
The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached. On behalf of the Board
For S K Agrawal And Co Chartered Accountants LLP PAWAN KUMAR VERMA AKHILESH CHITLANGIA
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & CEO
(F.R.NO. 306033E/E300272) DIN: 03120474
CA VIVEK AGARWAL KOMAL DHRUV SUPARNA CHAKRABORTTI
(Membership No. 301571) Company Secretary Independent Director

Partner
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date : 17th May 2024

DIN: 07090308
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Siqie meni Of ChCI nges in Eq U “'y for the year ended 31st March, 2024 COSh Flow Si‘dfe meni for the year ended 31st March, 2024
A) Equity Share Capital (% in Lakhs)
L. Current Reporting Period Particul | XVRCRZEIXNGLEGN For the year ended
Balance as the beginning | Changes in Equity Share Balance as the end of articulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Particulars of current reporting period | Capital During the year | current reporting period A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
No. of Shares | Tinlakhs | No. of Shares | T in lakhs | No. of Shares | ¥ in lakhs Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 100.90 791.79
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 77,72,934 777.30 20,90,144 209.01 98,63,078 986.31 Adjustments for:
subscribed and fully paid Depreciation and Amortisation expenses 370.12 337.71
2. Previous Reporting Period Provision f(?r f.ai.r.value ?f Investments (3.64) 0.08
Unspent Liabilities Written Back (5.40) (4.11)
Balance as the beginning | Changes in Equity Share Balance as the end of Government Grant (10.85) (10.85)
Particulars of current reporting period | Capital During the year | current reporting period Loss/(Profit) on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment B (31.45)
No. of Shares | T inlakhs | No. of Shares | Tin lakhs | No. of Shares | ¥ in lakhs Interest Income (59.32) (58.79)
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 64,60,742 646.08 13,12,192 131.22 77,72,934 777.30 Finance Costs 814.44 711.47
subscribed and fully paid Dividend Income (1.02) -
B) Other Equity Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes 1,205.23 1,735.85
1. Current Reporting Period ® in Lakhs) Decrease/(Increase) %n Non Current Ot}?er Fi.nancial Assets (39.41) 73.13
Reserves and Surplus Money Total Decrease/(Increase) ¥n Other Current Financial Assets (40.27) (0.74)
. - Received Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non Current Assets 28.67 (47.70)
Particulars Secur'ltles General Retalr'led Other . inst Sh Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets (221.58) (330.71)
Premium | Reserve | Earning | Comprehensive |2againstShare . .
Income Warrant Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories (1,570.69) (809.71)
- - Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables (586.54) (860.64)
Opening as at 1st April 2023 2,276.29 | 1,216.84| 4,283.72 - 287.54| 8,064.39 Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Provisions 47.99 90.21
Profit for the year - - 100.75 - - 100.75 Increase/(Decrease) in Short T'erm Provisions (0.06) 1.51
Converstion of warrant to Equity (287.54) | (287.54) Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (600.33) (24.86)
during the year Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 88.48 (205.20)
Received during the year 3,331.12 500.00| 3,831.12 Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 12.77 682.01
Remeasurment of Defined Benefit Plans _ _ _ (50.86) _ (50.86) Casb generated f.rom Operating activities (1,675.74) 303.15
Transfer to Retained Earning - -l (50.86) 50.86 - - Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) - 197 (11.85)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities (1,673.77) 291.30
Balance as at 31st March 2024 5,607.41| 1,216.84| 4,333.61 - 500.00| 11,657.86 . s
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
2. Previous Reporting Period (X in Lakhs) Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment (146.60) (258.28)
Reserves and Surplus Money Total Additions to Intangible Fixed Assets (7.38) (23.67)
Partioulars Securities | General | Retained Other Received Addition to Fixed Deposits ' 2.92 (23.54)
Premium | Reserve | Earning | Comprehensive against Share Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment . 40.29
Income Warrant Investments (855.97) -
Opening as at Ist April 2022 754.15| 1216.84| 3,774.41 - -| 574540 Interest Income 2980 2780
Profit for th T 257 Dividend Income 1.02
ronL fon e year - . : - - : Net Cash flow from/(used in) Investing activities (976.15) (237.34)
Received during the year 1,522.14 - - - 287.54| 1,809.68 C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Remeasurment of Defined Benefit Plans - - - (13.26) - (13.26) Proceeds from Equity Shares 3,540.12 1,653.36
Transfer to Retained Earning - - (13.26) 13.26 - - Proceeds from Convertible Warrants 212.46 287.54
Balance as at 31st March 2023 2,276.29| 1,216.84| 4,283.72 - 287.54| 8,064.39 Proceeds from Working Capital Loan (39.15) (200.39)
" ] ; ] : Cthe 1S Proceeds from Other Short T'erm Borrowings (120.00) (662.00)
e accompanying notes form an integral part of the I'inancial Statements. Proceeds from Term Loan 116.89 (307.20)
As per our report of even date attached. On behalf of the Board Principal Paid on Lease Liabilities (176.72) (142.34)
Interest Paid on Lease Liabilities (74.45) (80.53)
For S K Agrawal And Co Chartered Accountants LLP PAWAN KUMAR VERMA AKHILESH CHITLANGIA Interest Paid other than on Lease Liabilites (562.06) (486.24)
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & CEO Other Borrowing Costs (177.33) (150.49)
(F.R.NO. 306033E/E300272) DIN: 03120474 Net Cash Flow from/(Used in) Financing Activities 2,719.76 (88.29)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 69.84 (34.33)
CA VIVEK AGARWAL KOMAL DHRUV SUPARNA CHAKRABORTTI Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 9.42 43.75
(Membership No. 301571) Company Secretary Independent Director Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Note No. 11 79.26 9.42
Partner DIN: 07090308

Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date : 17th May 2024
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CGSh Flow S'atemeni for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Particulars

(X in Lakhs)

(i RISl For the year ended

F
31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Note No. 11

Balances with banks in Current Account 2.48 1.91

Cheques, drafts on hand 73.38 4.02

Cash on hand 3.40 3.49

Total 79.26 9.42
Note:

1)  The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the IND As 7 on ‘Statement of

Cash Flow’.

2) Figures in brackets represent cash outflow.

3)  Cash equivalents does not include any amount which is not available for use by the Company.

4)  Disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities including both changes arising from cash flows and non cash

changes are given below

(X in Lakhs)
As at 1st Net Cash | Change in | Unsecured Others As at 31st
Particulars April 2023 flows fair values/ | Perpetual March
Accruals | Securities 2024
Non Current Borrowings 955.62 116.89 - - 1,072.51
Current Borrowings 3,190.00 (159.15) - - 3,030.85
Interest Accrued 591 (6.51) - - (0.60)
(X in Lakhs)
As at 1st Net Cash | Change in | Unsecured Others As at 31st
Particulars April 2022 flows fair values/ | Perpetual March
Accruals | Securities 2023
Non Current Borrowings 1,262.82 (307.20) - - 955.62
Current Borrowings 4,052.39 (862.39) - - 3190.00
Interest Accrued 11.70 (5.79) - - 591
As per our report of even date attached. On behalf of the Board
For S K Agrawal And Co Chartered Accountants LLP PAWAN KUMAR VERMA AKHILESH CHITLANGIA

Chartered Accountants
(F.R. NO. 306033E/E300272)

CA VIVEK AGARWAL
(Membership No. 301571)
Partner

Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date : 17th May 2024
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Notes to accounts

1. Company Overview

Duroply Industries Limited (‘the company’) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India in
1957 under the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on BSE Limited. The Company is primarily engaged in
manufacturing and sale of Plywood, Decorative Veneers, Block boards, Doors, Tea etc. The registered office of the
Company is at 9, Parsee Church Street, Kolkata — 700 001.

2. Material Accounting Policy Information

a.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain
assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair values by Ind AS.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR”) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs,
except otherwise stated.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability i1s measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is Unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period or each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.
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Notes to accounts

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

Investment in quoted and unquoted equity shares

Financial instruments

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle

Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and the associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Significant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities include useful lives
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and investments, provision for employee benefits and other provisions, recoverability of deferred tax
assets, commitments and contingencies.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition
principle is applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also
to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs,
including regular servicing, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement
occurs, the carrying value of the replaced part is de-recognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment
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comprises major components having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate
items.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date
is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such
date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment (except free hold land which is recognised at fair value) recognised as at 1st April 2016 measured as
per previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.
The Company has intangible assets with finite useful lives.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets (Computer Software) are amortised on Straight Line method over a period of 5 years.
Depreciation and amortisation property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation or amortisation is provided so as to write off, on a Straight L.ine Method, the cost of property, plant
and equipment and other intangible assets, including those held under finance leases to their residual value.
These charges are commenced from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and are spread over
their estimated useful economic lives as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013,
or, as per technical assessment, or, in the case of leased assets, over the lease period, if shorter. The estimated
useful lives of assets and residual values are reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge
is provided in respect of assets that are fully written down but are still in use.

The estimated useful life of the Property Plant and Equipment is given below: -

Asset Group Useful Life (in years)
Factory Building 30

Non - Factory Building 60

Plant & Equipment 8-15
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(1)

(1)

Electrical Installation 10
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Office Equipment and Vehicle 5-8
Computers 3

Freehold land 1s not depreciated.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations
differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective
basis.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
1s greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Leases

The Company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulfilment of a
transaction is dependent on the use of a specific asset and whether the transaction conveys the right to use that
asset to the Company in return for payment. Where this occurs, the arrangement is deemed to include a lease
and is accounted for either as finance or operating lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessee

Operating lease — Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases
are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

The Company as lessor

Operating lease — Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying value of the leased asset and recognised
on a straight line basis over the lease term. For change in lease accounting policy refer note 2.1

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVI'PL”) on the basis of following:
The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
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Amortised Cost
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are
met:

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through OCL

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

The Company has measured quoted equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated
upon initial recognition as FVT'PL.:

Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVI'PL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial asset. In case of trade
receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments for
recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company
to track changes in credit risk. The Company calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a
provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss experience.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards

Anuual Report 2022-23 | 123



wm®

Notes to accounts

of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would
have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Derivative financial instruments

The company uses Derivative Financial Instruments such as forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency
risks. Such Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized and subsequently measured at Fair Value
through profit or loss (FVTPL). Derivatives are carried as Financial Assets when the fair value is positive and as
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains/ losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivative financial instrument are recognized in the
statement of Profit or Loss and reported with foreign exchange gains/ (loss) not within results from operating
activities. Changes in fair value gains/ (losses) on settlement of foreign currency derivative financial instruments
relating to borrowings, which have not been designated as hedge are recorded as finance expense.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

k. Employee benefits

1. Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefits
obligations in the balance sheet.

2. Other long term obligations

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value
of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the
reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields
at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-
measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of
when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

3. Post-employment obligations
The company operates the following post-employment schemes:

Defined contribution plans
The company pays provident fund contribution to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity liability, being a defined benefit obligation, is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.
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The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement
of profit or loss.

Re-measurement of gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They
are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

4. Bonus Plans
The company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses. The company recognizes a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted as follows:

Raw materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

Stores and spares & Chemicals: Cost is determined on FIFO/weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion.

. Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, 1s disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non - occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income
that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is
not a contingent asset and is recognised

Government grants
The Company recognises government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions
attached to them shall be complied with and the grants will be received. Grants related to assets are treated as
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deferred income and are recognized as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful life of the asset. Grants related to revenue are recognized in statement of Profit and
Loss under the heading ‘Other Operating Revenue’.

Income taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of
current tax & deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax asset shall be recognised
for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Revenue

Ind AS 115 was issued on 28th March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18
Revenue and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers. Ind
AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires
that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. It focuses on the identification of performance
obligations in a contract and requires revenue to be recognised when or as those performance obligations are
satisfied.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers.

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application of 1st April 2018.

In terms of the requirement of the new standard, revenue is recognised net of trade schemes, discounts and
incentives payable to distributors/dealers and retailers.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized
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Sale of goods

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of
variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services
rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company
as part of the contract.

In case of domestic sales, the company believes that the control gets transferred to the customer on dispatch of
the goods from the factory and in case of exports, revenue is recognised on passage of control as per the terms of
contract / incoterms. Variable consideration in the form of volume rebates is recognized at the time of sale made
to the customers and are offset against the amounts payable by them. The adaption of Ind AS 115 did not have
significant impact for the company.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR 1is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. Interest income is included in finance income in
the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

Insurance Claims
Insurance and other claims are accounted for as and when settled.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in Foreign currency are initially recorded at the exchange rate at which the transaction is carried
out.

Monetary Assets and Liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining outstanding at the year-end
are translated at the year-end rate.

In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount on forward exchange
contracts is amortised over the period of the respective contract.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation at the year-end
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the interest costs.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company, by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies
expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the trade receivables.
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The Company follows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowances on trade receivables.
u. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company’s cash
management.

v. Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within the credit period allowed. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. L.ong term trade payables are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

w. Related party transactions

Disclosure of transactions with related parties, as required by Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” has been set
out in a separate note. Related parties as defined under Clause 9 of Ind AS 24 have been identified on the basis
of representations made by the management and information available with the company.

2.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Note No : 3 - Property, Plant and Equipment (% in Lakhs)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION ‘NET BLOCK

As at Additions | Deductions Upto For the Sales/ Upto As at
Particulars 01.04.2023 RIN WA 728 31.03.2023 | Year | Adjustment [ERINIRE2ZENENKY N XPAr2]
Cost or
Deemed
Cost
Freehold Land 8,313.51 - - 8,313.51 - - - - 8,313.51
Buildings 540.66 11.71 - 552.37 119.24 18.33 - 137.57 414.80
Right to Use - Building 966.45 355.09 7.92 1,313.62 532.73 | 185.99 - 718.72 594.90
Plant and Equipments 1,219.32 83.47 - 1,302.79 462.42| 107.32 - 569.74 733.05
Motor Vehicles 197.82 33.42 - 231.24 67.70 24.31 - 92.01 139.23
Furniture and Fixtures 108.85 7.63 - 116.48 63.97 7.92 - 71.89 44.59
Office Equipments & 133.08 10.29 - 143.37 91.51 13.92 - 105.43 37.94
Computer
Sub - total 11,479.69 501.61 7.92| 11,973.38 1,337.55| 357.79 - 1,695.36 10,278.02
Capital Work in Progress 23.03 12.31 12.23 23.11 - - - - 23.11
TOTAL 11,502.72 513.92 20.15 | 11,996.49 1,337.55| 357.79 - 1,695.36 10,301.13
Note : - All the title deed of immovable property (Other than properties on lease) are in the name of the Company.
Ageing of Capital work-in-progress (R in Lakhs)

Amount in CWIP for a period of

As at 31st March 2024
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 12.31 10.80 - - 23.11
Total Capital work-in-progress 12.31 10.80 - - 23.11
(X in Lakhs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
As at 31st March 2023
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress 23.03 - - - 23.03
Total Capital work-in-progress 23.03 - - - 23.03
Property, Plant and Equipment - Previous Year (% in Lakhs)

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

As at Additions | Deductions As at Upto For the Sales/ Upto As at
Parti 01.04.2022 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022 | Year | Adjustment | 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2023
articulars
Cost or
Deemed
Cost

Freehold Land 8,313.51 - - 8,313.51 - - - - 8,313.51
Buildings 515.99 24.67 - 540.66 102.00 17.24 - 119.24 421.42
Right to Use - Building 932.15 42.69 8.39 966.45 365.17| 167.56 - 532.73 433.72
Plant and Equipments 1,116.01 103.38 0.07 1,219.32 365.92 96.54 0.04 462.42 756.90
Motor Vehicles 144.38 93.28 39.84 197.82 76.94 21.95 31.19 67.70 130.11
Furniture and Fixtures 108.82 0.26 0.23 108.85 56.33 7.85 0.21 63.97 44.88
Office Equipments & 113.29 20.26 0.47 133.08 78.83 13.00 0.32 91.51 41.57
Computer
Sub - total 11,244.15 284.54 49.00 | 11,479.69 1,045.19 | 324.14 31.76 1,337.57 10,142.12
Capital Work in Progress 6.60 23.03 6.60 23.03 23.03
TOTAL 11,250.75 307.57 55.60 | 11,502.72 1,045.19 | 324.14 31.76 1,337.57 10,165.15
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Note No : 4 - Current investments
Other Intangible Assets (X in Lakhs) Investments in Mutual Funds
- i GROSS BDLdOCK — = . ‘ZEPRE‘;I?TI/ON — | NETLOCK a) Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund Growth 77,890.40 300.39 - -
at itions eductions at pto or the ales pto at .
Particulars | 01.04.2023 NP2 31.03.2023 | Year | Adjustment [ERINERIZZSIEEINERIV! b) Bandhan Liquid Fund Growth 6,919.79 200.26 . .
Cost or ¢) SBI Liquid Fund Regular Growth 8,019.80 300.40 - -
Deemed Cost - -
Computer 132.69 7.38 - 140.07 71.85 12.33 - 84.18 55.89 Total Current Investment 801.05
Softwares g
(Acquired) 861.09 1.48
TOTAL 132.69 7.38 - 140.07 71.85 12.33 - 84.18 55.89
Intangible Assets - Previous Year (% in Lakhs) Aggregate amount of quoted 1nV.estments 866.43 10.43
GROSS BLOCE DEPRECIATION NET BLOCE Aggregate amount of unquoted m\{estments 1.13 1.13
As at Additions | Deductions As at Upto For the Sales/ Upto As at Aggregate market value of quoted investments 861.09 1.48
Particulars | 01.04.2022 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022 | Year | Adjustment | 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2023 Aggregate amount of impairment in value of 10.08 10.08
Cost or Investments
Deemed Cost
C 109.02 23.67 - 132.69 58.28 13.57 - 71.85 60.84 . . . . .
szr;f;iesr Besides above, the Company holds following shares in relation to the shares already sold by it:
(Acquired) a) Rampur Fertilizers Ltd. 16 16
Trade Mark - - - - - - - - - -
Sub - total 109.02 23.67 - 132.69 58.28 13.57 - 71.85 60.84
Note No : 5 - Investments (% in Lakhs) Note No : 6 - Loans (Unsecured, considered good) ( in Lakhs)
Face As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 Particulars As at As at
Particulars value Number Amount Number Amount RIETRV BV WA 1728 31st March, 2023
Ml of shares of shares Loan to Others 651.76 651.76
Non-current investments 651.76 651.76

Investments measured at Fair Value through
Profit & Loss

. . Note No : 7 - Other Financial Assets (Unsecured, considered good) (% in Lakhs)
Investments in Equity Shares As at et
a) Quoted, Fully paid u i
: Rampur Fer}t,i:zers Lli)mited 10 61 - 61 - Farticutars N lga ey 31st March, 2023
SMIFS Capital MarketsLtd. 10 3,500 1.74 3,500 1.35 Security deposits 14.55 43.76
United Credit Ltd. 10 1,000 0.20 1,000 0.13 Claim Receivable 68.62 -
= 1.48 83.17 43.76

b) Unquoted, Fully Paid up :
Other Companies

Orissa Tea Plantations Ltd. 10 100 ) 100 ) Note No : 8 - Other Non - Current Assets (Unsecured, considered good) (% in Lakhs)
Albion Plywood Ltd. 10 300 - 300 - . As at As at
Rajkot Nagrik Sahakari Bank Ltd. 50 1 - 1 - Farticulars Stk 31st March, 2023
- - Capital advances 24.61 51.46
c) Unquoted, Partly paid up Prepaid Expenses 3.20 5.02
Partly paid up ( T 60/- called and paid up) 27.81 56.48
The Purbanchal Bank Limited 100 200 - 200 -
1.94 1.48
Investments in Mutual Funds (Lien against the Loan from Tata Capital Limited)
a) Axis Banking & PSU Debt-G 608.00 14.51 - -
b) Bandhan Banking & PSU Debt Reg-G 64,969.00 14.52 - -
¢) ICICI Pru Short Term-G 16,223.00 8.83 - -
d) Kotak Banking and PSU Debt Reg-G 19,326.00 11.43 - -
e) SBI Short Term Debt-G 30,328.00 8.81 - -
58.10 - -
Total Non Current Investment 60.04 1.48
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Note No : 9 - Inventories (At lower of cost and net realizable value, unless stated otherwise) (% in Lakhs)
) As at As at Note No : 14 - Others (% in Lakhs)
Particulars KISV TS W28 31st March, 2023 Particulars As at As at
Raw Materials 3,655.61 3,192.62 RIETV BV WA 1728 31st March, 2023
Raw Materials in Transit - 185.19 Interest accrued 115.81 86.35
Work-in-Progress 1,056.02 1,190.88 115.81 86.35
Finished Goods 2,710.66 1,799.45
Finished Goods in Transit 3.48 24.06 Note No : 15 - Current Tax Assets (Net) (% in Lakhs)
Stock in Trade 1,033.65 592.11 Particular As at As at
Stock in Trade in Transit : 0.16 - RV WY 31st March, 2023
Stores & Spares and Chemicals 302.17 206.06 Advance tax (net) 46.98 48.96
Stores & Spares and Chemicals in Transit - 0.37 46.98 48.96
8,761.59 7,190.90
Note No : 16 - Other Current Assets (Unsecured, considered good) (% in Lakhs)
Note No : 10 - Trade receivables (% in Lakhs) ] As at As at
As at As at Particulars 31st March, 2024 (KIS CT S NAIX;
Particulars st March, st March,
il 31st March, 2023 Advance to suppliers and others 893.41 798.76
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured* 3,450.33 2,863.79 Slump Sale Receivable 6.63 12.63
Trade receivables - Credit Impaired 184.04 169.90 Balance with Statutory Authorities 157.56 11.87
Less:- Provision for Expected credit loss 184.04 169.90 Prepaid expenses 41.73 54.49
3,450.33 2,863.79 1,099.33 877.75
* includes X 84.24 Lakhs/- (Previous year ¥ 84.24 Lakhs) under litigation.
Note No : 11 - Cash and bank balances ( in Lakhs) Note No : 17 - Equity Share capital ( in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 LTI 18 CTed WA V2 As at 31st March, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents Particulars No. of Amount No. of Amount
Balances with banks 2.48 1.91 shares T in lakhs shares T in lakhs
Cheques, drafts on hand 73.38 4.02 (a)Authorised:
Cash on hand 3.40 79.26 3.49 9.42 Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 2,50,00,000 2,500.00 | 2,50,00,000 2,500.00
79.26 9.42 (b)Issued:
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,00,43,003 1,004.30 79,52,859 795.30
1,00,43,003 1,004.30 | 79,52,859 795.30
Note No : 12 - Other bank balances ® in Lakhs) > > -
As at As at (c) Subscribed and Paid up:
. a al
Particulars 31st March. 2024 IR S NI 7X) Equity shares of % 10/- each fully paid up 98,63,078 986.31 77,72,934 777.30
] )
Fixed deposits with banks* 330.70 333.62 Forfeited Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each (Amount originally paid up) 5,625 0.28 5,625 0.28
(Original maturity period above 3 Months but below 12 months) 286.59 777,58
330.70 333.62 (d)Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares
- - - - outstanding :
* includes % 330.70 Lakhs/- (Previous year ¥ 325.22 Lakhs) towards margin money for letter of credit o
At the beginning of the year 717,72,934 777.30 | 64,60,742 646.08
. . . ) Issued During the year 20,90,144 209.01 13,12,192 131.22
Note No : 13 - Other Financial Assets (Unsecured, considered good) (R in Lakhs)
At the end of the year 98,63,078 986.31 | 77,72,934 7717.30
Particulars As at As at
. TP CTe W 728 31st March, 2023
Security deposits 107.48 67.21
107.48 67.21
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(e) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of <10 per share. Each holder of equity shares
is entitled to one vote per share. The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time
to time. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(f) There are NIL (Previous year NIL) shares reserved for issue under option and contracts / commitment for the sale
of shares/disinvestment.

(g) During the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

1. Pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation, 1942857 shares were issued for consideration other than cash on
6th October 2018.

ii. No bonus shares were issued
111. No shares were bought back

(h) The company had issued and alloted 11,91,032 warrants on preferential allotment basis on 2nd September 2022.
There was 9,12,808 warrants outstanding at the beginning of the year, which was converted into Equity Shares as
per the below details:-

1. On 16th October 2023, 2,12,754 warrants were converted in Equity Shares having face value of X10/- each
2. On 18th December 2023, 4,86,774 warrants were converted in Equity Shares having face value of I10/- each
3. On 20th February 2024 2,13,280 warrants were converted in Equity Shares having face value of ¥10/- each

(1) Issue of Equity Shares and Warrants through Preferential allotment: -
During the quarter ended 31st March 2024, the company made following preferential allotment to non promoters on
27th March 2024

1. 11,77,336 equity shares, having face value of 10/- each, at a price of I 203 per Equity Share at a premium of

%193 per Equity Share aggregating to ¥2389.99 Lakhs.

2.9,85,220 warrants, each carring a right to subscribe to 1 (One) Equity Share of %10 each at an issue price of 203
per warrant aggregating to ¥1999.99 Lakhs, upon receipt of 25% of issue price of ¥50.75 per warrant amounting to
%499.99 towards warrant subscription money. The remaining consideration of 75% of the issue price ¥152.25 per
warrant amounting to 1500 shall be payable at any time within 18 months in one or more tranches from the date
of allotment of the warrants 1,e 27th March 2024. The amount received against warrants shall be adjusted/ set off
against the issue price for the resultant equity share.

3. The company on 27th March 2024 received a total amount aggregating to ¥2889.99 Lakhs, which includes Equity
Shares subscription of amounting to ¥2389.99 Lakhs and 25% of the warrant subscription money amounting to I500
Lakhs.

(j) The proceeds of the issue has been utilized to augment the long-term resources of the Company for meeting
funding requirements of its business activities, strengthen balance sheet, maintain adequate liquidity, pursue growth
opportunities and general corporate and other purposes.

(k) There are 985220 (Previous year 912808) securities convertible into Equity / Preference Shares.

(I) There are NIL (Previous year NIL) calls unpaid including calls unpaid by Directors and Officers as on the balance
sheet date.

(m) No shares were forfeited during the year or during the previous year. 5625 equity shares of ¥10/- on which ¥5/- each
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had been paid up, were forfeited in the year 1995-1996 and 1996-1997
(n) Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the equity shares in the Company :

Statutory

Report Financial Statements

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Name of Shareholder No. of % of No. of % of
B LR O (R T (b T S shares held | holding
i) Sudeep Chitlangia 365668 3.71 365668 5.66
1) Aashray Enterprises (P) Ltd. 723657 7.34 723657 11.20
iil) Archana Chitlangia 602479 6.11 602479 9.33
iv) Poushali Sales (P) Ltd. 1219228 12.36 594228 9.20
TOTAL 2911032 29.52 2286032 35.39
(0) Details of Shares held by the promoters in the Company

LU RV B0 WAVZl As at 31st March 2023 | Changes during the year
Promoters Name No. of % of No. of % of No of % Change
shares Total shares Total Shares | during the

Shares Shares year
Sheela Chitlangia 271650 2.75% 271650 |  3.49% - -0.74%
Jaydeep Chitlangia (HUF) 65604 0.67% 65604 | 0.84% - -0.17%
Archana Chitlangia 602479 6.11% 602479 | 7.75% - -1.64%
Akhilesh Chitlangia 364893 3.70% 169628 | 2.18% 1,95,265 1.52%
Abhishek Chitlangia 363757 3.69% 176428 | 2.27% 1,87,329 1.42%
Sudeep Chitlangia 365668 3.71% 365668 | 4.70% - -0.99%
Sudeep Chitlangia (HUF) 90786 0.92% 90786 | 1.17% - -0.25%
Sunita Chitlangia 385123 3.90% 385123 | 4.95% - -1.05%
Shreya Kanoria 164628 1.67% 164628 | 2.12% - -0.45%
Nikhilesh Chitlangia 390528 3.96% 210314 | 2.71% 1,80,214 1.25%
Purushottam Das Chitlangia (HUF) 90175 0.91% 90175 | 1.16% - -0.25%
Chitlangia Medical Society 72200 0.73% 72200 |  0.93% - -0.20%
Chitperi Farm Pvt. Ltd. 49694 0.50% 49694 |  0.64% - -0.14%
Abhinandan Fintex Pvt. Ltd.(since merged) - - 275000 | 3.54% | (2,75,000) -3.54%
Aashray Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. 723657 7.34% 723657 |  9.31% - -1.97%
Poushali Sales Pvt. Ltd. 1219228 | 12.36% 594228 | 7.64% 6,25,000 4.72%
Calcutta Technicians & Advisers Pvt. Ltd. 206000 2.09% 206000 | 2.65% - -0.56%

5426070 | 55.01% 4513262 | 58.06%
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Note No : 18 - Other Equity

Particulars
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(% in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
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Note No : 19 - Borrowings (contd...)

(a) Nature of securities:

Corporate Overview

Statutory Report

Financial Statements

(a) Securities premium Te.rm loan.from Banks are se(.:ured by first charge on the Company’s immovable prloperties situateq at Kolkata and
Bal last . 2276.29 75415 Rajkot (Gujarat) by deposit of title deeds and also by second charge on all plant & machinery and other fixed assets of the
aance as. per fas .accoun — - Company, both present & future, and are additionally secured by personal guarantees of the Managing Director. T'erm
Add: Received during the year 3,331.12 1,522.14 Loan from entities other than banks are secured by personal guarantees of the Managing Director.
. 5,607.41 2,276.29 (b) Terms of repayment:
(b) General reserve Amount outstanding as on Period of Number of Amount of
Balance as per last account 1,216.84 1,216.84 Partioul Balance Sheet date maturity instalments instalment
(c) Money received against Share Warrant 500.00 287.54 armeniars Non-Current Current w.r.tBalance ONEERGHTEER N
(d) Retained Earning ¥ in lakhs % in lakhs Sheet date on 31/03/2024
Balance as per last account 4,283.72 3,774.41 (202.59) (68.14) - - -
Add: Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income (50.86) (13.26) - -
S d L f Banks** - - -
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the Year 100.75 4,333.61 522.57 4.283.72 COHTEE oS TOT BAnEs (137.49) (44.96)
(e) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) B B _ _ _
As per last Balance Sheet - - (20'912 (521'66(1)}
Add: Movement in OCI(Net) during the year (50.86) (13.26) (26.04) (78.10) # Months E 050875
Less: Transferred to Retained Earning 50.86 - 13.26 - Secured Loans from Banlks** 79.69 50.33 IWes 24 419444
11,657.86 8,064.39 (125.83) (25.17)
- 26.62
* General reserve is primarily created to comply with the requirements of section 123(1) of Companies Act, 2013. This (27.20) (8333) 4Months 4 0694445
is a free reserve and can be utilised for any general purpose. Secured Loans from entities other 726 02 116 14
) ) ) 7 Yrs 5Months 90 942270
than Banks™** (-) (-)
3.61 8.24 .
Note No : 19 - Borrowings (% in Lakhs) (11.84) (7.68) IYr 5Months 17 73380
As at As at 2.50 5.71
Particul 1Yr 5Months 17 50871%
artieniars IRV TS W P28 31st March, 2023 (8:21) (5.33)
3.32 6.27
Term Loans Secured Loans from Banks 1Yr 6Months 18 56493*
(9.59) (5.82)
Secured 3.38 6.40
From banks 236.35 955.62 (9.78) (5.94) I\t 6Months 1 S7264%
From entities other than banks 836.16 - 8.71 5531 s SMonths 29 S4670%
1,072.51 955.62 ©) )
— 827.23 245.28
Less :- Current Maturities Long term Debt 245.28 376.14 Total (579.48) (376.14)
827.23 579.48 . . . .
Figures in the brackets pertain to previous year.
* Includes Interest
** Processing fees amortise as per IND AS
Note No : 20 - Lease Liabilities (% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
v KIS 7XW 31st March, 2023
Lease Liabilities 485.16 329.91
485.16 329.91
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Note No : 21 - Provisions
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(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at

As at
RIS WA V2l 31st March, 2023
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Note No : 25 - Lease Liabilities

Corporate Overview

Particulars
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(% in Lakhs)

As at

As at

RIEIDY EIR0 W72 31st March, 2023

Provision for employee benefits 615.55 517.20 Lease Liabilities 176.62 166.34
615.55 517.20 176.62 166.34
Note No : 26 - Trade Payables ( in Lakhs)
Note No : 22 - Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) ® in Lakhs) . As at As at
o - As at Particulars ISP TS W28 31st March, 2023
articulars KITY P a0 W72 31st March, 2023 Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 1,726.43 -
(a) Deferred tax assets : Outstanding dues other than of micro and small enterprises 4,676.51 6,390.17
Expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid 173.07 145.72
Carry Forward Loss 651.04 678.52 6,402.94 6,390.17
Transition Impact of IND AS 116 13.81 13.81 Note No : 27 - Other Fi al Liabilit; Lakh
t : - 0Ot t Ti
837.92 838.05 ote No er Financial Liabilities (% in Lakhs)
b) Def d tax liabilities : Particulars As at As at
(b) Deferred tax liabilities : IEPV LW/ 728 315t March, 2023
De‘prec1at1(‘)n 7915 79-13 Sundry Creditors Capital Goods 5.68 -
Fair Valuation of Free Hold Land Eoesil 1,598.11 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 6.51 5.91
1,677.26 1,677.24 Others against sales of assets - 650.00
Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) 839.34 839.19 Unpaid salaries and other payroll dues 301.11 255.27
* Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they relate to the same governing taxation laws. Security deposits 53.36 5521
366.66 966.39
Note No : 23 - Other Non - C t Liabiliti % in Lakh
ote o er on - Lurrent Laabrities " A: n Lakhs) Note No : 28 - Other current liabilities @ in Lakhs)
. at at ;
Particulars TSV PURRNPAYIN 315t March, 2023 Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Deferred Government Grant 45.28 56,13 Advances f.ror.n.A.gents and Customers 197.16 88.42
45.28 56.13 Statutory liabilities 88.28 99.18
Others 0.98 286.42 10.34 197.94
286.42 197.94
Note No : 24 - Borrowings (% in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at Note No : 29 - Provisions ® in Lakhs)
arbieutars IO 728 31st March, 2023 Particulars As at As at
Secured KICTRYEVYa W I7Z 8 31st March, 2023
From banks Provision for employee benefits 6.56 6.62
. . 6.56 6.62
Working Capital Loan 2,627.84 2,666.99
Current maturities of long - term debt
From banks 245.28 376.14
Unsecured
From entities other than banks 403.00 523.00
3,276.12 3,566.13

Nature of securities:

Working capital loan are secured by hypothecation of present & future stocks and book debts and first charge on the
Company’s immovable properties situated at Rajkot (Gujarat) by deposit of title deeds and also by second charge on all
plant & machinery and other fixed assets of the Company, both present & future, and are additionally secured by personal
guarantees of the Chairman.
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Note No : 30 - Revenue from operations

wm®

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2023
Sale of goods (Gross)
A. Manufactured Goods

1) Plywood 19,559.96 20,541.26

il) Veneers 8.98 19,568.94 131.66 20,672.92
B. Stock-in-trade

1) Plywood 12,678.70 8,687.81
C. Others 19.83 873.13

32,267.47 30,233.86

Note No : 31 - Other operating revenues (% in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended

|9\ S WAIP2 8 31st March, 2023

3

Insurance Claims 74.83 12.29
74.83 12.29
Note No : 32 - Other income (% in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended 31st March, 2024

Year ended 31st March, 2023

Interest income (Gross)

Fixed deposits with banks 18.55 17.24

Others 40.77 59.32 41.55 58.79
Dividend income 1.02 -
Government Grant 10.85 10.85
Profit on Fair Value of Quoted Investments 3.64 -
Rent 3.60 4.20
Unspent liabilities / balances written back 5.40 4.11
Reduction of Rent Expenses 491 1.24
Compensation received from Government - 93.15
Miscellaneous income 1.80 0.06
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets - 31.45

90.54 203.85

Note No : 33 - Cost of materials consumed (% in Lakhs)

K]

Year ended

Particulars T2 31st March, 2023
Veneer 7,530.28 7,115.38
Planks & Beams 1,262.75 1,324.85
Timber Log 660.62 289.41
Others 2,590.56 3,821.84
12,044.21 12,551.48
Note No : 34 - Purchases of stock-in-trade (% in Lakhs)

3

Year ended

Particulars 3 TS 20 31st March, 2023
Plywood 10,606.61 6,936.63
Others - 655.63

10,606.61 7,592.26
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(% in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2023
A. Finished Goods
Opening Stock
1) Plywood 1,394.53 1,298.01
ii) Veneer 428.98 408.32
1,823.51 1,706.33
Closing Stock
i) Plywood 2,237.43 1,394.53
ii) Veneer 476.72 428.98
2,714.15 (890.64) 1,823.51 (117.18)
B. Stock-in-Trade
Opening Stock
1) Plywood 592.27 426.17
i1) Furniture 3.86
592.27 430.03
Closing Stock
1) Plywood 1,033.65 592.27
i1) Furniture - -
1,033.65 (441.38) 592.27 (162.24)
C. Work-in-Progress
Opening Stock
i) Plywood 1,190.88 926.64
Closing Stock
i) Plywood 1,056.02 134.86 1,190.88 (264.24)
NET (INCREASE) / DECREASE IN STOCKS (1,197.16) (543.66)
Note No : 36 - Employee benefits expense (% in Lakhs)

Particulars

3

Year ended

I8\ EVed WAl 7Z 8 31st March, 2023

Salaries and wages 2,904.51 2,580.63
Contribution to provident and other funds 272.16 248.59
Staff welfare expense 44.26 35.29

3,220.93 2,864.51
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Note No : 37 - Finance costs (% in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2023
Interest expense
On long term borrowings 103.94 120.15
On short term borrowings 399.94 354.65
On others 58.78 5.65
On Lease Obligation 1A 637.11 80.53 560.98
Other borrowing costs 177.33 150.49
814.44 711.47
Note No : 38 - Other expenses ( in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2023
Consumption of stores and spare parts 170.52 163.50
Consumption of packing materials 93.67 82.62
Power and fuel 549.13 623.21
Repairs
Buildings 8.97 3.53
Machinery 35.75 38.76
Others 5.41 50.13 6.87 49.16
Job Charges 1,189.38 1,140.21
Rent 51.35 48.81
Electricity 40.01 39.71
License Fees 6.97 5.48
Rates & Taxes (excluding taxes on income) 24.28 24.02
Watch and Ward Expenses 46.66 43.16
Insurance 49.60 46.26
Communication Expenses 36.74 31.60
Travelling & Conveyance 331.33 283.55
Vehicles Maintenance 93.94 83.20
Printing & Stationery 19.38 13.37
Legal and Professional Charges 340.59 244.99
Director Sitting Fees 6.05 6.87
Miscellaneous Expenses 224.70 226.10
Human Resource Development Expenses 1.74 3.27
Statutory Auditors' Remuneration
Audit Fee 4.45 4.45
Certification Fee 2.05 6.50 0.75 5.20
Charity & Donations 25.88 22.77
Forwarding,Freight and Delivery Charges 1,277.84 1,204.19
Commission on Sales 198.46 246.26
Forward Premium Expenses 28.92 36.72
Foreign Exchange Fluctuations 2.63 41.37
Advertisement, Publicity & Sales Promotion 1,391.12 1,246.24
Loss on Fair Value of Quoted Investments - 0.08
Bad Debts - 48.19
Provision for Doubtful Debts 14.14 68.33
Royalty Paid 201.13 66.00
6,472.79 6,144.44
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Note No : 39 - ( in Lakhs)
Particulars As at
RIEI\Y EVd WA V2l 31st March, 2023
1. Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on Capital 101.39 6.46
Account and not provided for
2. Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of :
a) Uncalled Capital against partly paid-up shares held as investment 0.08 0.08
b) Demand raised by Govt.authorities in respect of Taxes and Duties 189.05 7,193.16
and contested by the Company .
Amount Paid against above 37.43 -

The company, has ascertained on the basis of legal opinion that a Income Tax Case amounting to ¥5827.57 lakhs has
very remote possiblity of occurrence and therefore the same is not a contingent liability.

3. The information as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified based on the information available

with the Company.

4. Company as a Lessee

Impact on Balance Sheet - Increase/(Decrease) (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2023
Assets

Right of Use Assets(Refer Note No. 3) 594.89 433.72
Liabilities

Lease Liabilities 661.77 496.25
Impact on Statement of Profit and Loss - Decrease/(Increase) in Profit (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2023
Depreciation and Amortisation 185.99 167.56
Other Expenses (251.17) (222.87)
Finance Cost 74.45 80.53
Net Impact on Profit and Loss Statement 9.27 25.22
Impact on Statement of Cash Flows ( in Lakhs)
Particulars RISV BN WAVl 31st March 2023
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 176.72 142.34
Payment of Interest portion of lease liabilities 74.45 80.53
Net Cash flows used in financial activities 251.17 222.87

The Company has lease contracts for Warehouse and office spaces used in its operations. These generally have lease

terms between 1 and 5 years. The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased

assets.

The company applies the exemption not to recongnise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12

months of lease term. Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movement

during the period:
(R in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2023
As at 1st April 433.72 566.98
Addition during the year 355.09 42.69
Deduction during the year 7.93 8.39
Depreciation Expense 185.99 167.56
As at 31st March 594.89 433.72
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Note No : 39 - (contd...)
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year: (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2023
As at 1st April 496.25 605.53
Addition during the year 355.09 42.69
Reversal during the year 44.53 9.63
Accretion of interest 74.45 80.53
Payments 251.17 222.87
As at 31st March 630.09 496.25
Current 176.62 166.34
Non Current 485.16 329.91
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 14.52%, with maturity between 2024-2029
The following are the amounts recognised in statement of Profit and Loss: (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2023
Depreciation expense on right-of use assets 185.99 167.56
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 74.45 80.53
Expense relating to other leases (including in other expenses) - -
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 260.44 248.09
(R in Lakhs)
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities are as follows: 2022-2023
1 Year 176.62 166.34
2to 5 Years 485.16 329.91

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and
all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s
capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company net debt includes
interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.
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Note No : 39 - (contd...)

6. Financial instruments by category
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(a) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost (% in Lakhs)
. 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Particulars . .
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost

Non current financial assets
(1) Investments 60.04 1.48
(i1) Loans 651.76 651.76
(i11) Other non current financial assets 83.17 43.76
Current financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 3,450.33 2,863.79
(i1) Investments 801.05
(1i1) Cash and cash equivalents 79.26 9.42
(iv) Bank Balance other than above 330.70 333.62
(v) Other current financial assets 107.48 67.21
(vi) Others 115.81 86.35
Total Financial assets 861.09 4,818.51 1.48 4,055.90
Non Current financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 827.23 579.48
(ii) Lease Liabilities 485.16 329.91
Current financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 3,276.12 3,566.13
(i1) Lease Liabilities 176.62 166.34
(i11) Trade payable 2.53 6,400.41 3.60 6,386.57
(1v) Other current financial liabilities - 366.66 - 966.39
Total financial liabilities 2.53 11,532.20 3.60 11,994.81

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortisd cost in the financial statements

are a reasonable approximation of their fair value since the company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts

would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets

(R in Lakhs)

Fair value measurement using

Particulars Quoted price in

active markets
(Level 1)

Significant
obserable inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobserable inputs
(Level 3)

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement
hierarchy for assets as at 31st March 2023

Assets measured at fair value

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2023
Borrowings (Note - 19 and 24) 4,103.35 4,145.61
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note-11) 79.26 9.42
Net debt 4,024.09 4,136.19
Equity 12,644.45 8,841.97
Capital and net debt
Gearing ratio 0.32 0.47

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure
requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31st
March 2024 and 31st March 2023.
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7. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to support its operations. The
Company’s financial assets include Investments, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that derive
directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s senior management oversees
the management of these risks. The company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that
advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. This financial
risk committee provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities
are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed
in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The management reviews and agrees policies for
managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

(A) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risks. Financial instruments affected by market risk include Trade payables and borrowings in foreign
currencies.

a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The
Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company expects the variable rate to
decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable and Fixed interest rates.

(X in Lakhs)
Descriptions RIEV BN WAl 31st March 2023
Variable rate borrowings 3,646.68 2,666.99
Fixed rate borrowings 456.67 1,478.62

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variable held constant, the Company’s profit before
tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

(R in Lakhs)
Descriptions Effect on Profit before tax
315t LY. WA 728 31st March 2023
Increase by 50 basis points (18.23) (13.33)
Decrease by 50 basis points 18.23 13.33

b) Foreign currency risks
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure in foreign currency is in purchase of raw
material through letter of credits. The Company is not restricting its exposure of risk in change in exchange
rates. The Company expects the Indian Rupee to strengthen and accordingly the Company is carrying the
risk of change in exchange rates.

Unhedged foreign currency exposure (% in Lakhs)

Particulars RIT S\ BV WAVZ M 31st March 2023

T'rade creditors

Rs. 757.28 322.96
USD 9.10 3.60
EUR - 0.59
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Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD/EURO exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for
all other currencies is not material.

(% in Lakhs)
Lo Effect on Profit before tax
Descriptions
RISV BN WAV 31st March 2023
USD/EURO Sensitivity
Increase by 5% (37.86) (16.15)
Decrease by 5% 37.86 16.15

B) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables).

(i) Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed
and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of number of days
and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addtion, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 10. The Company does not hold collateral as security.

(ii) Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury
department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 is
the carrying amount as illustrated in Note 39(7).

Trade Receivable Ageing (% in Lakhs)
As at 31st March 2024
Particulars Less than | 6 months 1-2 2-3 More than
6 months | -1year years years 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — 3,149.79 59.04 6.80 2.28 23242 | 3,450.33

considered good
(i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which - = = - - _
have significant increase in credit risk

(iif) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit - - - - 99.80 99.80
impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered - = = - - _
good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which - = = - - -
have significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit - - - - 84.24 84.24
impaired

3,149.79 59.04 6.80 2.28 416.46 | 3,634.37

Less : - Credit Impaired - - - - 184.04 184.04

TOTAL Trade Receivable 3,149.79 59.04 6.80 2.28 232.42 | 3,450.33
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Trade Receivable Ageing (% in Lakhs)
As at 31st March 2023
Particulars Less 6 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More Total
than 6 months than 3
months | -1year years
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables — 2,592.30 11.09 4.61 9.80 246.00 | 2,863.79
considered good
(i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which - - - - - -
have significant increase in credit risk
(1i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit - - - - 85.66 85.66
impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered - - - - - -
good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit - - - - 84.24 84.24
impaired
2,592.30 11.09 4.61 9.80 415.90 | 3,033.69
Less : - Credit Impaired - - - - 169.90 169.90
TOTAL Trade Receivable 2,592.30 11.09 4.61 9.80 246.00 | 2,863.79
Trade Payable Ageing (% in Lakhs)
As at 31st March 2024
Particulars Not Due Less 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More Total
than 1 than 3
year years
(i) Outstanding dues to MSME 1,570.44 155.99 - - - 1,726.43
(ii) Others 4,090.34 443.29 54.14 15.02 73.72 | 4,676.51
(111) Disputed dues MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues Others - - - - - -
TOTAL Trade Payable 5,660.78 599.29 54.14 15.02 73.72 | 6,402.94
( in Lakhs)
As at 31st March 2023
Particulars Not Due Less 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More Total
than 1 than 3
year years

(i) Outstanding dues to MSME - - - - - -
(ii) Others 3,626.59 | 2,583.24 52.54 23.34 104.45 | 6,390.17
(1i1) Disputed dues MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues Others - - - - - -
TOTAL Trade Payable 3,626.59 | 2,583.24 52.54 23.34 104.45 | 6,390.17

(C) Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Company’s
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect
to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources

148 | Duroply Industries Limited

Corporate Overview

Notes to accounts

Note No : 39 - (contd...)

Statutory Report Financial Statements

of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. The Company had
access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting periods -

(% in Lakhs)

Descriptions 31st March 2023
Floating rate
(a) Expiring within one year (Bank overdraft and other

facilities)

Secured

- Current maturities of long term debt 245.28 376.14

- Working capital loan 2,627.84 2,666.99

Unsecured

- Short term loans 403.00 523.00
(b) Expiring beyond one year (Bank loans)

Secured

- Rupees term loan from banks - 579.48

- Rupees term loan from financial institutions 827.23 -

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments -

(R in Lakhs)
Lo Less than 3to6 6to 12 1to2 2to 5
Descriptions
3 months | months months years years
Year ended 31st March 2024
Contractual maturities of borrowings 81.21 53.15 78.77 160.89 363.50
Contractual maturities of finance lease 7.81 7.96 16.38 18.84 2.67
obligations
Contractual maturities of trade payables 2,419.41 171.49 - - -
(% in Lakhs)
Lo Less than 3to6 6to 12 1to2 2to5
Descriptions
3 months | months months years years
Year ended 31st March 2023
Contractual maturities of borrowings 81.85 81.85 187.68 237.90 302.15
Contractual maturities of finance lease 6.02 6.13 12.61 26.62 12.81
obligations
Contractual maturities of trade payables 1,321.57 203.54 - - -

Disclosure pursuant to IND AS - 19 on “Employee Benefits”

Defined Contribution Plan:

Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund, Pension Scheme and Superannuation Fund are considered as
defined contribution plan and the contributions are made in accordance with the relevant statute and are recognized

as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. The contribution to defined

contribution plan, recognized as expense for the year are as under:

% in Lakhs)
Descriptions 2022-23
Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund & Pension Fund 189.70 166.38
Employers’ Contribution to Superannuation Fund 10.30 9.08
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Defined Benefit Plan: Breakup of Actuarial gain/loss: (% in Lakhs)
Post employment and other long-term employee benefits in the form of gratuity, sick leave and earned leave 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
encashment are considered as defined benefit obligation. The present value of obligation is determined based on Descriptions Gratuity| Sick Leave Gratuity| Sick Leave
actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date. The amount of defined benefits Leave Encashment Leave | Encashment
recognized in the balance sheet represent the present value of the obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past 5 5 —
. . Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from 9.85 0.25 3.33 (4.28) (0.11) (1.85)

service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets. o . .

change in financial assumption
Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the discounted value of any economic benefits available in the Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from 41.29 (1.75) 36.32 19.09 (0.04) 22.97
form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. The amounts recognised in the Profit experience adjustment
& Loss Statement and Balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as

Return on plan assets (greater)/less - - - - - -
follows: i

than discount rate

Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

(% in Lakhs)

Descriptions I BN WALl 31st March 2023
Gratuity Plan 462.22 347.11
Sick Leave | 17.12 | 14.35
Leave Encashment ‘ 142.77 ‘ 157.98
Total | 622.11 | 519.44
Changes in defined benefit obligation ( in Lakhs)
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Descriptions Gratuity | Sick Leave Gratuity | Sick Leave
Leave | Encashment Leave |Encashment
Present value obligation as at the start 483.96 14.35 157.98 419.46 11.25 134.32
of the year
Interest cost 33.82 1.03 10.17 28.19 0.80 8.56
Current service cost 39.27 3.24 19.39 42.50 2.45 21.60
Benefits paid 28.56 - 33.51 44.77 - 27.62
Acquisitions (credit)/ cost - - - 23.77 - -
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligations 51.14 (1.50) (11.26) 14.81 (0.15) 21.12
Present value obligation as at the 579.63 17.12 142.77 | 483.96 14.35 157.98
end of the year
Change in fair value of plan assets (% in Lakhs)
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Descriptions Gratuity | Sick Leave Gratuity | Sick Leave
Leave | Encashment Leave |Encashment
Fair value of plan assets as at the start 136.85 NA NA 143.33 NA NA
of the year
Return on plan assets 8.83 NA NA 8.59 NA NA
Actuarial loss/(gain) (0.28) NA NA (1.55) NA NA
Acquisition adjustment - NA NA 28.16 NA NA
Benefits paid 28.56 NA NA 44.77 NA NA
Fair value of plan assets as at the 117.41 - - 136.85 - -
end of the year
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Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets (3 in Lakhs)

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Descriptions MW Leave Gratuity | Sick Leave
Leave | Encashment Leave | Encashment
Present value obligation as at the end of 579.63 17.12 142.77 | 483.96 14.35 157.98
the year
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of 117.41 - - 136.85 - -
the year
Net (asset)/obligation recognized in 462.22 17.12 142.77 | 347.11 14.35 157.98
balance sheet
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss (% in Lakhs)
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Descriptions WW Leave Gratuity | Sick Leave
Leave | Encashment Leave | Encashment
Current service cost 39.27 3.24 19.39 42.50 2.45 21.60
Interest cost 33.82 1.03 10.17 28.19 0.80 8.56
Expected Return on the Plan Assets 8.83 NA NA 8.59 NA NA
Actuarial gain/ (loss) recognized in the (50.86) (1.50) (11.26) | (13.26) (0.15) 21.12
year
(Income)/Expense recognised in 64.26 2.77 18.30 62.10 3.10 51.28
the statement of profit and loss
Amount recognised in the statement of Other Comprehensive Income (% in Lakhs)
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Descriptions WW Leave Gratuity | Sick Leave
Leave | Encashment Leave | Encashment
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) for the year on (51.14) - - (14.81) - -
PBO
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) for the year on 0.28 - - 1.55 - -
Asset
Unrecognised actuarial Gain/(Loss) at (50.86) - - (13.26) - -
the end of the year
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Actuarial assumptions

wm®

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Descriptions Gratuity | Sick Leave Gratuity | Sick Leave
Leave | Encashment Leave | Encashment
Discount rate 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.20% 7.20% 7.20%
Future salary increase 500% | 5.00% | 500% | 5.00% | 5.00% 5.00%

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount

factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on

management’s historical experience.

Sensitivity analysis

31st March, 2024

Gratuity | Sick Leave
Leave | Encashment

Descriptions

Impact of the change in discount

rate

Present value of obligation at the end of 579.63 17.12 142.77
the year

a) Impact due to increase of 0.5 % 555.59 16.52 134.66
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.5 % 605.70 17.75 151.68
Impact of the change in salary

increase

Present value of obligation at the end of 579.63 17.12 142.77
the year

a) Impact due to increase of 0.5 % 605.39 17.76 151.11
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.5 % 555.67 16.51 135.10

31st March, 2023
Gratuity | Sick Leave

Leave | Encashment
483.96 14.35 157.98
463.56 13.86 149.17
506.07 14.89 167.62
483.96 14.35 157.98
505.78 14.84 167.00
463.66 14.79 149.65

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuring at the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

(R in Lakhs)
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Descriptions Gratuity | Sick Leave Gratuity | Sick Leave
Leave | Encashment Leave | Encashment
Within next 12 months 60.59 - - 49.99 - -

9. In calculating Earnings per share

Descriptions

a) Numerator used :
Profit / (Loss) after tax (% in Lakhs)

b) Denominator used in computing Basic Earning per Share:
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares

¢) Denominator used in computing Diluted Earning per Share:
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares including potential
Equity Shares

d) Nominal value of equity shares (%)

e) Basic Earnings per share (a/b) %)

f) Diluted Earnings per share (a/c) (?)

3

19\ T WAl ZZ M 31st March 2023

100.75 522.57
80,44,505 70,63,796
80,55,272 70,68,173
10.00 10.00
1.25 7.40

1.25 7.39
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10. Details of loan given during the year under section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013 are given under : -

(% in Lakhs)

Balance Loan Given Repaid/ Balance
Particulars as at 31st During the adjusted as at 31st
March 2023 year during the year JIENWJ.WA 72,
Arunachal Plywood Industries Limited 226.76 - -
Aadhunik Infrastructure Development (P) Ltd. 425.00 - - ‘ 425.00
Total 651.76 - - 651.76

11. Related Party Disclosures

Names of related parties & description of relationship

Enterprises over which KMP and his
relatives have significant influence:

Key Management Personnel and
Directors :

Relative of Key Management Personnels :

Aishani Infotech Private Ltd.

Aashray Enterprises Private Litd.

Calcutta Technicians & Advisers Private Ltd.
Chitperi Farm Pvt. Litd.

JSM & Company

Madhya Bharat Papers Ltd.

Poushali Sales Private Limited

Sujay Management Services LLLLP

Chitlangia Charitable Trust

PGT Partners

Anugrah Foundation

Industrial and Prudential Investment Company Limited
Paharpur Cooling Towers Limited

Shri Sudeep Chitlangia (Chairman) (Appointed with effect from
01.04.2024)

Shri Akhilesh Chitlangia (Managing Director & CEO) (Appointed
with effect from 01.04.2024)

Shri Pawan Kumar Verma (CFO)
Smt. Komal Dhruv (Company Secretary)

Shri Sujit Chakravorti (Independent Director) (Term completed on
31.03.2024)

Smt. Suparna Chakraborti (Independent Director) (Appointed with
effect from 19.05.2023)

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri (Independent Director) (Term
completed on 31.03.2024)

Shri Ratan Lal Gaggar (Independent Director) (Term completed on
31.03.2024)

Shri Probir Roy (Independent Director) (Term completed on
31.03.2024)

Shri Vinay Agarwal (Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director)

Shri Kulvin Suri (Independent Director) (Appointed with effect
from 13.02.2024)

Shri Arun Kumar Singhania (Independent Director) (Appointed
with effect from 19.05.2023)

Shri Abhishek Chitlangia
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Particulars of transactions during the year ended 31st March 2024 (% in Lakhs) Disclosure of Material Transactions with Related Parties
Associates/ Enterprises over Key (% in Lakhs)
Nature of Transactions which KMP and his relatives | Management Year Ended Year Ended
have significant influence Personnel Particulars 31st March, 2023
Rent Received 3.60 - 3.60 Rent Received
. (4.20) - (£20) ]S M & Company 1.20 1.80
Remuneration to KMP - 221.38 221.38 Poushali Sales Private Limited 2.40 2.40
- (177.30) (177.30)
Director's Sitting Fees 6.05 6.05 Sales : : .
(6.87) (6.87) Poushali Sales Private Limited 1.62 -
Consultancy Fees Paid 30.66 30.66 Paharpur Cooling Towers Limited 263.78 -
(11.61) (11.61) Consultancy Fees Paid
PGT Partners 30.66 11.61
Particulars of transactions during the year ended 31st March 2024 (% in Lakhs) Discounting Charges Paid
Associates/ Enterprises over Key Total Industrial and Prudential Investment Company 62.87 -
Nature of Transactions which KMP and his relatives | Management Limited
have significant influence Personnel Remuneration to KMP
Sales 26540 - 26540 Shri Sudeep Chitlangia (Managing Director) 85.84 72.41
Interest Received (_2 : (_2 Short term employee be.nefit 79.86 67.37
(35.95) : (35.95) Post employment benefit 5.98 5.04
Purchase 120.76 120.76 Shri Akhilesh Chitlangia (Executive Director & COO ) 56.14 48.03
(178.13) (178.13) Short term employee benefit 52.20 44.65
Interest Paid - - - Post employment benefit 3.94 3.38
(15.19) - (15.19) Shri Pawan Kumar Verma (CFO) 31.63 17.90
Royalty Paid 233.74 233.74 Short term employee benefit 29.59 16.73
(66.00) (66.00) Post employment benefit 2.04 1.17
Discounting Charges Paid 62.87 62.87 Smt Komal Dhruv (Company Secretary) 7.86 5.37
@) @) Short term employee benefit 7.86 5.37
Loan Received - - Shri Abhishek Chitlangia 39.90 33.25
(240.00) (240.00) Short term employee benefit 39.90 33.25
Loan Refunded - - - Directors Sitting Fees
(584.00) - (584.00) : :
Advance Refunded 650.00 : 650.00 Smt. Sheela Chitlangia - 100
B B B Smt. Suparna Chakraborti 0.88 -
Refund of Advance Given 20.00 - 20.00 Shri Sujit Chakravorti UED 1.62
) - ) Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 1.00 1.08
Outstanding against Guarantees - 6,264.47 6,264.47 Shri Ratan Lal Gaggar 0.20 1.38
Obtained - (5,549.99) (5,549.99) Shri Probir Roy 1.40 1.40
Balance Outstanding at the Balance 572.49 Dr - 572.49 Dr Shri Kulvin Suri 0.20 -
Sheet Date (22.27 Cr) ) (22.27Cr) Shri Arun Kumar Singhania 0.80 -
Notes: Shri Vinay Agarwal 0.60 0.40
a) Figures in the brackets pertain to previous year. Purchase
b) The Company has neither written off nor written back any amount recoverable / payable from / to any related party during the Poushali Sales Private Limited 120.76 103.01
vear . B . Interest Paid
c) The.am.ount dll,le from related parties are good and hence no provision for doubtful debts in respect of dues from such related Caleutta Technicians & Advisers Private Lid. B 14.40
parties is required.
Poushali Sales Private Limited - 0.79

154 | Duroply Industries Limited Anuual Report 2022-23 | 155



Financial Statements

Corporate Overview  Statutory Report

. DURO

Notes to accounts

Note No : 39 - (contd...)

Notes to accounts

Note No : 39 - (contd...)

Z in Lakhs) 12. Ratios ‘ . .
‘ Year Ended Year Ended The following are the analytical ratio for the year 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 Particulars Numerator Denominator RIEIR B3Vl 31st March | Variance
Royalty Paid . S 2024 2023
Sujay Management Services LLP 161.74 B Current R'atlo ( Note a) Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.41 1.01 39.60%
Chitperi Farm Private Ltd. 72.00 66.00 Debt Equity Ratio (Note b) | Total Debts Shareholders Fund 0.32 0.43 -25.58%
Loan Received Det?t Service Coverage Net Operating Debt (Principal + 1.13 1.52 -25.66%
Calcutta Technicians & Advisers Private Ltd. - 165.00 Ratio (Note ) 'Intcomet (before Interest)
Poushali Sales Private Limited - 75.00 . i ;1 er;s )f P — o AR
Loan Refunded eturn on Equity (Note d) et Profit after Tax verage . . -83.33%
ol Techmiciane & Advi o L 00,00 Shareholders Fund
tt te Ltd. = .
aet a. e nlc.lans : 'VISCI‘S et Inventory Turnover Ratio | Cost of Sales Average Inventory 3.47 3.77 -7.96%
Poushali Sales Private Limited - 75.00 .
Trade Receivables Sales Average Trade 10.22 12.42 -17.71%
Advance Refunded . .
' Turnover Ratio Receivable
Anugrah Foundation 130.00 - Trade Payables Turnover | Purchase Average T'rade 3.75 4.15 -9.64%
Chitlangia Charitable Trust 520.00 - Ratio Creditors
Advance Given Net Capital Turnover Ratio | Net Sales Working Capital 17.37 2728 -36.33%
Poushali Sales Private Limited - 418.32 (Note )
Refund of Advance Given Net Profit Ratio (Note f) | Net Profit Net Sales - 0.02| -100.00%
Poushali Sales Private Limited 20.00 - Return on Capital PBIT Capital Employed 0.05 0.12| -58.33%
Guarantees Obtained Employeed (Note g)
Sudeep Chitlangia 900.00 - Note: -
Outstanding against Guarantees Obtained a. Increases due to increase of Curvent Assets over Curvent Liabilities..
Sudeep Chitlangia 6,264.47 5,549.99 b, Decreases due to increase in shareholder fund due to equity infusion during the year.
Net Balance Receivable/(Payable) ¢. Decreases due to decrease in net operation income.
J S M & Company 3.63 1.71 d, Decreases due to increase in shareholder fund due to equity infusion during the year.
Madhya Bharat Papers Ltd. 205.36 205.36 e, Decreases due to higher working capital utilisation.
Sujay Management Services LLLP (11.73) - [ Decreases due to lower net profit.
Anugrah Foundation - (130.00) g. Decreases due to lover profit before interest and tax.
Ch%tlangia Charitéble Trust - (520.00) 13. The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been inititated or pending against the
Chitperi Farm Private Ltd. (0.12) 0.75 company for holding any Benami property.
PGT Partners (9.35) - . S .
. . 14. The company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
Sudeep Chitlangia (4.30) - . . . .
: : : surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act 1961 (such as
Akhilesh Chitlangia (2.32) - search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)
Abhishek Chitlangia (3.05) - 15 Th h ded or i dinC C Virtual C during the fi il
Pawan Kumar Verma (1.79) ) . e company has not traded or invested 1in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
Komal Dhruy (0.58) - 16. The Company has borrowing limits sanctioned from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly
Poushali Sales Private Limited 389.02 419.91 returns or statements filed by the company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.
Paharpur Cooling Towers Limited 7.72 - 17. The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies

Act, 2013) or consortium thereof or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the
Reserve Bank of India.

18. There has been no delay in Charges or satisfaction to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

19. The Company does not have any transactions with struck off companies under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies
Act, 1956, during the year.

20. As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at
least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility
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(CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are promoting education, promoting gender equality by empowering
women, healthcare, environment sustainability, art and culture, destitute care and rehabilitation, disaster relief,
COVID-19 relief and rural development projects.For the year ending March 31, 2024, the Company is not required
to contribute under CSR as the 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years is

negative.

21. The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: -

a. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. Provided any gurantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: -

a. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. Provided any gurantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

22. The Company has utilised the fund borrowed from banks and financial institutions for the purpose it was taken.

23. Disclosure under Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirments) Regulations, 2015 :
There are no transactions (except related party transactions) which are required to be disclosed under Schedule V
to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirments) Regulations, 2015.

24. The previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Amounts
and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year financial statements
and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year.

On behalf of the Board

For S KAgrawal And Co Chartered Accountants LLP PAWAN KUMAR VERMA AKHILESH CHITLANGIA

Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & CEO
(F.R.NO. 306033E/E300272) DIN. 03120474
CA VIVEK AGARWAL KOMAL DHRUV SUPARNA CHAKRABORTTI
(Membership No. 301571) Company Secretary Independent Director
Partner DIN. 07090308

Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date : 17th May 2024
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